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REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN AND ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
introduction

I write to you at a time when the sale process has been extended as a result of the improved all-cash offer
received from CompuGRQUP on 20 July 2007 The offer from CompuGROUP represents a significant
premium over the IBA Health tid and 1s a satisfactory outcome for shareholders

| would not wish to gloss over the fact that long-term shareholders in 1ISOFT have suffered a substantial
dechne in the value of ther iInvestment since late 2005 However, after the many disappointments that
occurred In the first six months of 2006, we have made considerable progress in rescuing 1ISOFT and
restonng it to a position where today the Group has solid value, as recognised by the CompuGROUP
offer After a complex and painstaking sale process, 1ISOFT 1s at last on the way to becoming part of a
well-funded group with growth prospects

Trading results for the year ended 30 Agpril 2007

By way of introduction to the resuilts, let me remind you that between January and June 2006, 1ISOFT
experienced a senes of difficulties, starting with a profits warning tnggered by difficulties in the National
Programme for IT in England (NPfIT) Many of those difficulties were outside our control and caused
consequential delays to the delivery of LORENZO The situation was further aggravated by speculation
and media comment and a necessary decision to change the Group's accounting policy for the
recognitron of revenues, which exposed starkly the underiying funding issues that it faced In July 2006
we became aware of certain accounting irregularthes involving 2004 and 2005, the effect of which
appears to have been to recocgnise some revenues earlier than they should have been which, following
an independent investigation, were reported to the FSA The resulting FSA investigatton remains
ongoing, but I1s focused on the 1ssues we reported to them

Tim Whiston resigned as Chief Executive Officer on 14 June 2006 and | took over as acting Cheef
Executive Officer in addiion to my role as Chairman Since then, new management has been brought
into the Group, we have renegotiated the terms of our relationship with CSC on the NPfIT, launched a
regeneration programme and imtated discussions leading to the current offer from CompuGROUP
Whilst revenues and profit from operations pnor to exceptional items for the year ended 30 April 2007
were lower than in the corresponding penaod, both profit from operations prior to exceptional items and
the year-end cash position were considerably better than we had budgeted for at the beginning of the
year

The trading performance In the financial year was within the range of the Group’s recently stated
expectations In spite of the difficult trading circumstances 1n which we have operated during the past
twelve months, there 1s a large installed base of systems generating solid recurrning revenus streams |
indicated last October that we expected revenues for the full year to be 10-15% lower than last year and
the final outcome was in the middle of that range, with sales 13 1% lower year-on-year, at £175 2 million
In Europe, the disposal of our operation in Switzerland in May 2006 was more than offset by a first
full-year contribution from our Spanish operation, which was acquired in October 2005

A sharp reduction (n the overall cost base enabled us to report a normalised profit from operations of
£6 6 million (2006 £13 3 million) before £21 0 million of net exceptional items (2006 £351 4 milhon) Had
we not taken urgent action to cut costs, it is likely that 1ISOFT would have registered a substantial
normalised operatting loss for the year At the start of May 2006 the Group’s cost base was running at an
annuabsed rate of nearly £210 million, which reflected an organisaticn that had been focused too much
on growth and too hittle on cost efficiency, especially at the corporate level Development costs were also
very high and rising fast, partly because we were, and to an extent still are, beanng the dual costs of
maintaining the existing portfolio of strategic products, while at the same time applying maximum effort
to complete the development of LORENZO for delivery to the NPfIT in 2008 Operating costs excluding
exceptional items for the full year ended 30 Apnl 2007 were just below £170 million

Net financing costs rose to £7 7 milion (2006 £5 6 million) reflecting higher underlying working capital
fevels due to the “unwinding” of prior year advance payments, largely offset by the favourable impact of
action to manage our balance sheet resources more tightly However, there was a sharp increase in the
cost of borrowing from January 2007 onwards when special payment-in-kind (PIK) interest became
payable under the terms of the bank agreement put in place in August 2006




Of the exceptional costs of £21 8 million, £4 0 million related to the closure of the former head office In
Manchester and £11 3 million to redundancy and regeneration plan costs A further £6 5 milion was
incurred for legal and adwvisory fees relating to changes in our funding arrangements, strategic sale
discussions and the FSA investigation The disposal of the Swiss operation resulted in a net gain of
£0 3 million and the wrte-back of negative goodwill resulted 1n a gain of £0 6m

There was a net tax credit of £13 2 million for the year, resulting in a net loss of £8 8 million compared with
a net loss of £382 2 million in the previous year, most of which arose as the result of a one-time goodwill
impairment charge of £351 4 milllion A tax refund of £21 5 milkon was agreed in connection with the
restatement of prior year revenues at 30 April 2008, of which £5 3 mulhon was receved in the first half and
the balance in the second half

There were 232,485,722 shares In 1ssue at 30 Apnl 2007, with outstanding warrants to subscnbe for a
further 8,595,362 shares

Funding

The Group had net debt of £67 9 million at 30 April 2007, compared with £41 8 million at the end of the
previous year, largely due to the impact of unwinding up-front payments received in pnor years The debt
postion was significantly better than onginally expected due to the tax refund recesved, action taken
under the regeneration programme and the incentive to mimimise debt ahead of PIK interest charges

The Group signed a new agreement with its banks at the end of August 2006, which provided facilities of
£141 midlion until November 2007 The cost of drawings against those facilihies ranges from 200-450
basis points over LIBOR However, the Group was required to pay addiional PIK interest at the rate of 5%
per annum on the total committed facilities from 1 January 2007, which rose to 7 5% per annum with
effect from 1 Apnl 2007 and 10% per annum from 1 July 2007 onwards

Under the terms of the CompuGROUP offer, ISOFT's bank faciliies will be fully repaid Letters of credit
and other guarantees of £46 1 millon that were outstanding at 30 Apnl 2007 are due to unwind almost
entirely over the next year and a half as the contracts are delivered These contingent commitrments will
also be taken over by CompuGROUP The balance of outstanding third-party contract financing
arrangements that amounted to £43 6 mifion at 30 Apnl 2007 will unwind n the normal course of
business predominantly over the next two years CompuGROUP will finance the acgquisition and
repayment of ISOFT's existing bank facilities, which are repayable upon a change of cantrol of ISOFT,
and the ongoing working capital requirements of the Enlarged Group, through a combination of
CompuGROUP Holding's existing cash resources and committed new debt faciities of £285 million
arranged and underwritten by SEB AG

New agreement with CSC—progress with the National Pregramme

In August 2006, we entered into a new contract with CSC, with whom we have been working successfully
in the North West region of the NPfIT since 2004 Under that contract, ISOFT agreed to be paid by CSC
based on delivery against a number of key milestones The majonty of these milestones involved key
product deliverables, compnsing intenm stages leading to the delivery of full LORENZO 3 5 funchionality
in the first quarter of 2008 As the quid pro quo for greater control and certainty over payment, ISOFT
agreed that in the event it failed to deliver on tme against the key milestones, CSC would have the nght
to step 1n and manage 1ISOFT's development operation, but without taking over any intellectual property
rights

The agreement was entered into in anticipation of a major redistnbution of responsibiities within the
NPIT In September 20086 it was announced that Accenture would transfer to CSC its obligations to
provide services to the North East and East and East Midlands ("EEM”) regions with effect from
8 January 2007 and CSC retained 1ISOFT to provide software in the regions that it took over

The August 2006 agreement with CSC has recently been superseded On 18 June 2007, 1SOFT and
CSC agreed to integrate their teams involved In the development of software for NPT, under CSC’s
leadership 1SOFT will contribute certain of the teams of people directly involved in the NPfIT project,
although the responstbility for employment of all such staff would remain with ISOFT

ISOFT will retain the intellectual property rights to LORENZO, including the nghts to exploit it outside the
CSC clusters LORENZO nstallations (current and planned) outside these clusters will be unaffected
and 1ISOFT does not anticipate that the changes to the contract will impact its core long-term strategy of




developing LORENZ( as its strategic product to be sold internationally In addition to LORENZO, CSC
will take respensibility for the code streams of 1 Patient Manager (1 PM) and 1 Integration Engine () IE) for
the NPAIT, two of ISOFT's current products The provision and support of these products by 1\SOFT for
other customers will be unaffected

Some two-thirds of icence payments to 1SOFT under the new agreement will for the next three years be
calendar-based and the remainder will be based on mutually agreed milestones in order to ensure the
alignment of both parties’ interests At the same time, CSC gave its consent under the August 2006
agreement to a change of control in the ownership of 1ISOFT

This senes of changes has seen us move from a complex organisation structure serving two separate
customers on the NP{IT {Accenture and CSC) to one in which we now have a single organisation fronting
up to the NHS, providing a streamlined and simplified management structure | am convinced that this 1s
a much better way forward for ourselves, for CSC and ultimately of course for the NHS

Under the terms of the CompuGROUP offer for 1SOFT that was published on 20 July 2007,
CompuGROUP declared that, if it 1s successful in acquinng 1ISOFT, it intends to sell to CSC those parts of
1SOFT's operations that are currently under CSC management and which develop and support product
for the NPAIT and that CompuGROUP will transfer to CSC copies of certain source codes, tangible assets
and staff resources used by 1ISOFT in the business of the development and support of the NHS versions
of the LORENZO software and the NPfIT versions of 1 Patient Manager and 1 Integration Engine

The Regeneration Plan

In July 2006 we began an intensive two-year transformation process covenng every aspect of the
business, which we refer to internally as the Regeneration Plan The Regeneration Plan was launched
formally in September 2006 The Group's management has been strengthened, product management s
being fully integrated with product development on an international basts and we have already made
substantial progress in reducing our cost base The one-time costs of this action were significant last
year, but will provide a solid foundation for the future

We have put into action a series of radical changes to the business to ensure that we maximise the
commercial opportunsties for the product portfoho, that the cost base 15 appropriate for the business
today and that it is an efficient, lean base for the coming years In terms of operating and overhead costs,
we have been engaged in a continuous process of cutting costs The closure of the Company’s head
office iIn Manchester and the transfer of key support functions te other operational locations were typical
of the radical action that we felt was necessary

The imitial target of this programme was to reduce the annualised cost base from £210 mullion at the start
of last year, to below £180 milhon in the financial year which commenced 1 May 2007 With operating
costs excluding exceptional items for the full year ended 30 Apnl 2007 down to less than £170 milhion we
are running ahead of that target and therg 15 potential for further reductions in due course, especially
once LORENZO has been launched At the same time, some reinvestment will be required to rebalance
the business to an optimal size and shape, which we expect will result in an ongoing cost level at, or
shghtly below, the level incurred in 2007

Commercial strategy and product development

We are commutted to deliver LORENZO 3 5 to CSC by early 2008 and CSC in turn is due to start rolling it
out to the NPT from mid-2008 onwards This 1s the single most important task we face today and the
future of the Company relies heavily on it

QOur aim over the next few years 1s to explost fully the existing portfolio of strategic products—especially
| PM and 1 CM—pnior to the gradual introduction of LORENZO from mid-2008 onwards We are currently
supporting too many vanants of our core portfolio of around 30 existing products and have therefore put
in place a central product management function, whose pnncipal objective is to rationalise the portfolio
and standardise products based on a single, configurable code stream across all of our international
country operations, thereby leveraging our expenence to a far greater degree

LORENZO 15 1SOFT's flagship strategic offering and it 1s central to the Group’s future It1s an integrated
healthcare system, built using a modern service cnented architecture (SOA) and adopting web-hased
protocols It 1s designed to be flexible and adaptable and will provide customers with easy operability
and lower costs of ownership than any other healthcare IT product That flexitility will enable custorners




to upgrade existing systems incrementally, phase and manage their investrment resources and provide
them with a tow-nsk, fully compatible upgrade path

LORENZO comprises several layers of development The technology layers provide a framework within
which bath 1ISOFT and third-party systerns can be retained by customers but enabled to communicate
securely with newly installed LORENZO solution applications LORENZO functionality (s now being
tested at early adopter sites in Germany and the Netherlands

We continue to apply substantial resources to the development of LORENZO, with much of that resource
located in Chennal and Hyderabad in India, where the Group now has approaching 1,300 employees,
being enhanced by resources from CSC

Investigation into possible accounting irregularities

In June 2006 the Group anncunced a change in accounting policy for revenue recogrution, as a
consequence of which it became necessary to review and restate revenues in pnior years Ansing out of
that review a number of possible accounting irregulanties came to hight in which it appears that some
revenues reported in the financial years ended 30 Apnl 2004 and 2005 may have been recognised earlier
than they should have been

On 20 July 2006 the Group engaged its auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP, to conduct a formal initial
investigation into these possible irregulanties In August 2006 it was confirmed that there were indeed
matters that needed further investigatton and we handed over relevant documents to the Financial
Services Authonty (FSA), which 1s now conducting that investigation The Group 1s working closely and
co-operatively with the FSA 1n order to complete the investigation as quickly as possible

On 25 October 2006 the Accountancy Investigation and Disciphne Board (AIDB) announced that it will
conduct its own mnvestigation The AIDB inveshigation 1s a review of the conduct of those members of
accountancy bodies that are regulated by the AID8 who were executive or non-executive directors of
1ISOFT duning the relevant penods, and RSM Robson Rhodes LLP, 1ISOFT's auditor for the financial years
ended 30 Apnl 2003, 2004 and 2005

All current executive directors of ISOFT who are members of those accountancy bodies were appointed
after the dates under investigation, as was the non-executive director who 1s currently chairman of the
audit committee The inihal nvestigation into possible accounting irregulariies conducted by Deloiite &
Touche LLP in July and August 2006 did not uncover evidence that any of the current non-executive
directors had any knowledge of the irregulanties

At the present ime we have no indication of when either the FSA or the AIDB intend to conclude their
investigations and report On the basis of information that has come to hght so far, the directors consider
that the restatement of revenues In the financial statements for the year ended 30 Apnl 2006 corrected,
where appropnate, the impact of these particular matters As the investigation is not yet concluded, it1s
not possible for the Board to finally determine what implications, if any, may anse from the conclusion of
the investigation into these matters Nevertheless they must be thoroughly investigated and we will
continue to co-operate with both organisations

Board changes

The Board underwent further substantal change durnng the year Tim Whiston resigned as Chief
Executive Officer on 14 June 2006 and | took over the responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer from
that date The onginal intention was to appoint a suitable replacement as soon as possible but the
recruitment process was put on hold in October 2006 when we decided to enter into discussions with a
number of external parties that had expressed an interest in acquinng all or part of ISOFT

On 8 August 2006, t{SOFT announced that Steve Graham, then Commercial Director of the Company,
had been suspended followming the initial investigation into possible accounting irregularnities in the
financial years ended 30 April 2004 and 2005 On 27 March 2007 the Board decided to remove Steve
Graham as a director and he also ceased to be an employee of the Company on that date

On 31 January 2007, Bill Henry was appointed to the Board Biil joined the Group as Chief Operating
Officer on 28 June 2006 after serving as Chief Executive of Star Technology Services Bill's experience
and input have been instrumental in helping us to make a strong start in turning around the financial
performance and prospects of ISOFT, and the Board was very pleased to recognise his contnbution by
appointing him as a member of the Board



On 4 May 2007 Ravi Kumar, Chief Technology Officer, resigned from the Board by mutual consent Raw
made an enormous contnbution to ISOFT over many years and in particular through his wision in
creating the framework design for LORENZO The Board wishes hum good fortune for the future

Management and employees

The management of the Company and all cur staff have shown great support and understanding in
dealing with the challenges we have faced n the past twelve months and once again | should like to
thank them all for their support

About 700 of our employees 1n the UK and India, representing about a quarter of our total staff, have
started operating under CSC’s management while LORENZO 3 5 and LORENZO 4 0 are completed
This 1s an unusual arangement but one that is in the best interests of the NPT and ultimately of ISOFT |
hope and expect that the expenence of working closely with the CSC Alllance on NPAT will be valuable
for everyone

Under the terms of the CompuGROUP offer announced on 20 July 2007, the above members of staff
would become full-ime employees of CSC

Prospects

Until the sale process has been fully resolved, it remains difficult to close sales of new systems to some
customers Once this situation 15 resolved the Board currently believes that the Group will be better
positioned to achieve some sales growth. The Board does not expect the Group fo return to significant
and sustaned revenue growth until LORENZO 1s developed to such a point where it 1s broadly
marketable outside the UK, this point to be reached in late 2007/early 2008 The Board's current
expectation i1s that revenues associated with intemational sales of LORENZO would not occur until fiscal
2009 and beyond

The cost base has been reduced substantially during 2007 and we begin the current financial year with
the expectation that, including reinvestment, the cost base will be similar o 2007 The Board expects the
ongoing Regeneration Programme 1o further reduce this cost base in the medium term, alihough the
majonty of cost reduction inihatives have already been taken However, with an improved outiook for
revenues once the business has long-term financing in place, and the further action we can take wrth
regard to the cost base, we are optimistic with respect to the praspects of the Group

In conclusion, we have made significant advances since the middle of 2006 Our position in the UK
National Programme for IT has been stabilised and the new agreement with CSC underpins and de-risks
the development programme for LORENZO, which we continue to believe 15 potentially the most
advanced healthcare IT system in the world

——
John Weston
Chairman and Acting Chief Executive Officer
31 July 2007




PROFILE
About iSOFT

1ISOFT builds software applications for the healthcare market We are a leader i the provision of
advanced application solutions in medern healthcare economies around the world We are creating
solutions that set a new standard 1n supporting co-operation between all those involved in healthcare
dehvery

iSOFT has delivered applicatons to more than 8,000 healthcare units In 27 countnes, Including
1,800 hosprtals and more than 6,200 family doctor practices

1ISOFT 13 developing and starting to deliver LORENZO, its next-generation product, which we believe 1s
one of the most advanced healthcare IT systems in the world LORENZO 1s based on a service onented
architecture (SOA), which makes it highly flexible and scaleable, with low costs of maintenance and
operation LORENZO provides a low-nsk, modular upgrade path for healthcare authorities

LORENZO 15 a state-of-the-art heatthcare scluton addressing fully the administrative and clinical
information management requirements of ciizens, patients and healthcare professionals it 1s designed
to help promote clinical and corporate governance, quality, efficiency and consent in healthcare,
enhancing the expenence for all participants it provides growth potential and flexibility for the future
LORENZO—One product, many solutions.

History of ISOFT

The business imihially operated as part of the KPMG partnership under the trading name KPMG Health
Systems The business was bought out from KPMG in April 1998 On 19 July 2000, ISOFT Group plc
achieved a full histing on the London Stock Exchange The business has since continued to act as a
consolidator in the healthcare apphcations market and the prnincipal milestones of its development are
set out below

2006 Disposal of Swiss operations
2005 Acquisition of Novasoft Sanidad S A
2004 World-wide strategic alllance with Microsoft

2004 Two principal contracts entered into to deliver software and services as part of the Natronal
Programme for IT (NPfiT} in England

2003 Merger with Torex plc
2002 Acquisition of Revive Group Limited
Acquisition of Paramedical Pty Limited
Acquisition of healthcare business of Northgate Information Solutions plc

Microsoft global launch partner and the only European software partner for the Windows
XP Tablet PC launch

2001 Dedicated offshore development business established in Chennay, Indha
Acquisition of ACT Medisys Limited
Acquisition of Eclipsys Limted and Eclipsys Ply Limited

2000 Full histing on London Stock Exchange

1999 Only Microsoft SQL Server 7 0 launch partner in UK health
Acquisition of CSC's Australlan healthcare systems business

1998 Management buy-out by senior executives to create 1ISOFT

1994 Healthcare information systems business founded within KPMG




Strategic objectives

ISOFT’s aim is to become a global leader in the development and distribution of comprehensive and
modern software apphlications for the healthcare sector These applications are a core component of
modern healthcare IT investment programmes

ISOFT was among the first to predict the nature and scope of the healthcare reform now being seen in
many of the world’s modern economies and the important role that information technology has to play n
supporting this reform agenda The demand for modern information management systems 1s growing
and the Group 15 uniquely placed to participate as an international vendor

Business strategy

A clearly defined business strategy accompanied 1ISOFT's listing on the London Stock Exchange
in 2000 Consistent with this strategy, management has from the outset focused on exploiting the best
technology available to develop software apphcation systems that address the administrative and
chinical information management needs of healthcare provider organisattons These needs include
administrative tasks such as appointment booking, resource scheduling, chmical information
management and electronic patient record creation and exchange

As the demand for advanced healthcare applications has developed, both in the UK and internationally,
ISOFT has established a reputation for anticipating and planning for the emerging requirements of
modern healthcare provision Management's strategy for developing the Group's global capabiity has
been focused on leveraging the extensive existing product portiolic by incorporating international best
practice into new strategic product offenings such as LORENZO The Group seeks to combine this
expertise with the latest relevant and proven technologies to create the most compettive apphcation
offerings whilst minimising technology risk

The following diagram illustrates the success achieved by iISOFT in bullding successive generations of
software, by predicting and then targeting the evolving market requirements, whilst also harnessing the
best avallable technology at the time

Image removed for filing purposes please visit
www 1softplc com/financial information tar complete version

ISOFT recognised that large-scale procurement needs would favour international vendors of substance,
often operating in consortia 1ISOFT has therefore built business allances and, where appropriate, made
strategic acquisitions which equip the Group to accommodate local requirements, whilst delivering
solutions that reflect international best practice

Market drivers

Modern economies face a number of common challenges in healthcare provision

The rising cost of heafthcare  An ageing population, nsing prescnption drug costs, malpractice ctaims,
government regulation and advances in medicine and diagnostic techmques have increased costs
associated with healthcare delivery

Increasing patient-driven demand A nse In healthcare consumensm, with patients demanding greater
access to safe, timely, qualty care and, where direct payment is required, competitive pricing




Reduced funding  Changes in funding models, typically resulting in a reduction in the level of funding
available, are compelling drivers for increasing efficiency, particularly in clinical and administrative
workflows

increasing regulation As new and more ngorous clinical governance and mandatory reporting
regulatons are introduced, providers contnue to assess and upgrade IT systems to achieve
compliance

These dnvers are consistent throughout all modern healthcare economies, thereby creating a significant
global market for integrated [T applications, systems and solutions Indwidual economies are
re-engineering thewr domestic healthcare systems at different rates, with the UK National Health Service
leading the way It 1s now widely accepted that addressing the needs of individual healthcare units on a
standatone basis will not suffice If meaningful improvements are to be achieved More fundamental
structural reform 1s required with care processes delivered by a vanety of healthcare organisations and
professionals acting collaboratively and in increasingly formalised relationships

Investment in a new generation of information management systems, which permit the scheduling of
resources and the communicaton of comprehensive patient information across traditonal
organisational boundanes, 1s now recognised as critical to supporting the transformation of healthcare
provision

Market size

The international healthcare information technology market, including software, hardware and services,
was estimated to be worth just over £10 bilion in 2005 Frost & Sullivan forecast that this figure will reach
£17 bilton by 2010, giving a compound annual growth rate {CAGR) of around 11% The stze and growth
rates for each major region are estimated as follows

EMEA  Americas APAC Total

£m
Market size 2005 1,996 6,882 1,322 10,200
% CAGR 10 6% 107% 121% 109%
Est market size 2010 3,303 11,443 2,340 17,086

Source Frost & Sulivan—Global Market Sizing, Analysis of Healthcare IT Markets, March 2006
EMEA: Europe (including Scandinavia}, Middle East and Afnca

Americas United States and Canada, Central and South Amenca

APAC: Asia Pacific, iIncluding Australa and New Zealand

The Group believes that healthcare information software represents approximately 40% of the above
market

International competition

Given the historic fragmentation of the healthcare systerns market, the competitive landscape in each
geographic market tends to be dominated by small, country-specific vendors ahead of market reform
(e g the NPAIT in England) In ine with the market's move towards more comprehensive integrated
solutions, sub-scale local vendors are increasingly being squeezed out of the market in favour of a small
number of international vendors with the reputation and investment capacity to deliver against integrated
national requirements

tSOFT's broad and technologically capabte product offering and large number of reference sites creates
a strang competitive position in the global healthcare IT market 1SOFT’s success in recent high-profile
procurements has confirmed the strength of the Company’s product and, in particular, that of the
LORENZO strategic application roadmap 1SOFT is today a leading supplier of technologically advanced
healthcare software applications in the international market, due to the Company’s significant installed
internahional base, its market-leading LORENZO solution roadmap, participation in major market reform
projects and key early adopter reference sites




Barriers to market entry

ISOFT scftware has already been deployed in a large number of trusts and healthcare organisations To
replace these installed systems with alternative systems and applications would be expensive,
time-consuming and would potentally lead to a loss of functionality

The LORENZO roadmap provides the most advanced and only fully integrated software solution
capable of seamlessly meeting both the functional and strategic capabilities sought by the NPfIT in
England and other large-scale healthcare procurement organisations Given the broad conservatism of
the healthcare market, any major new investment must support the phased migration of existing legacy
systems, thereby reducing the nsks and cost associated with new IT investments

In summary, the structural growth market for international healthcare IT, combined with 1ISOFT’s
well-established international position and market-leading LORENZQ solution, provides a basis for solid
growth over the coming years




FINANCIAL AND OPERATING REVIEW
Overview

The year ended 30 April 2007 was another challenging penod Operationally the Group made
considerable progress in stabilising the business after the difficulties expenenced in 2006 In parttcular,
we have revised our agreements under the National Programme for IT in England (NPfIT) Working now
with CSC alone, we present a single delivery crganisation to the NHS, thereby streamlining service
delivery and de-nsking the launch of LORENZO

We have also substantially reorganised and strengthened our business structures, bringing in new
management and reducing the cost base of the Group

Accounting policies

The Group's financial statements have been prepared under International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) There have been no new standards or changes to the interpretation of existing
standards that have a matenal impact upon the results of the Group in the current year

Trading results

in the year to 30 Apnl 2007, Group revenues decreased from £201 7 million to £175 2 milion Although
1ISOFT has a large installed base of customers that generates significant levels of recurning revenue, the
ability to win new contracts was affected by adverse publicity surrounding the Group’s financial position
last year and recently by uncertainties surrounding its long-term ownership

Profit from operations before exceptional items was £6 6 million, compared with £13 3 million for the
previous year Thts operating margin of 3 8% reflected the reduced level of revenue and a substantial
level of operational expenditure on mamtaining existing products and developing the LORENZO
platform The Group continues to mamtain nearly 30 core products within its intellectual property
portfolio whilst at the same time developing LORENZO In 2007, the cost of product development and
support was £22 5 millien, which compares with £22 6 million in the previous year This I1s an essential
commitment to maintaining the Group’s position as a leading healthcare software product and services
company

We have continued to invest in our dedicated Product Development Centre in Chennai, India, and the
Solution Centre in Hyderabad The average number of application specialists was 1,481 compared 1o
1,454 last year, representing approximately 48% of the tctal headcount of the Group Investment in the
Product Development Centre peaked in September 2006 and the total headcount had fallen to below
1,300 by year-end We anticipate a reduction in the number of core products being maintained as the
product streamliming process continues and as many existing products are replaced over the medium
term by the LORENZO product surte

We also reduced corporate overheads sharply following the launch of the regeneration plan in
September 2006 Operating costs excluding exceptional items were reduced in the year from
£188 4 million to £168 6 mithon through reductions in headcount, closure of the Group’s former head
office In Manchester and tight management of discretionary costs

Group profitability 15 clearly below our medium-term expectations To improve efficiency and streamline
the cost base, we continue through the regeneration programme to reduce costs further across the
business, whilst investing in specifically targeted areas to ensure progress in our operational delivery 1s
maintamned

Operating performance

The 1ISOFT strategy i1s to develop and promote a comman software application offering that i1s adaptable
for all markets and this continues to provide a focal point for our operational and marketing activities The
Directors beleve that the LORENZO concept 1s being positively received by customers Product roll-out
1s taking place at early adopter sites 1 Germany and the Netherlands, and we expect to see the
commencement of LORENZO user functionality in the Urited Kingdom from mid-2008 onwards The
Group’s mainstream actiwvities in the United Kingdom, Europe and Asia Pacific continue in the meantime
to sell and support the existing product portfolo, aided by the pull of the LORENZO product roadmap
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QOur activities in the United Kingdormn remained dominated by the prowvision of services around a strong
installed base of existing clients During the year the Group reached an agreement whereby the ISOFT
NPHIT software will be installed in seven hospitals in the London and Southern regions Work under the
NP1IT 1s building up, with the intenim delivery of existing products such as 1ISOFT Patient Manager (1 PM)
and 1SOFT Clinical Manager (1 CM) into many health trusts Existing systems are being packaged with
core elements of LORENZO technology, enabling those systems to communicate with the NHS National
Data Spine and the new national network Existng applications will be upgraded to LORENZO
functionality from mid-2008 cnwards This will provide customers with a phased, low-nsk migration of
therr systems

In Asia we have seen progress with a dedicated local team now in place The major project win in the
year was in Malaysia where a contract for a fully-integrated 1Series system including chinical, pharmacy
and laboratory functionality was won and will be delivered in the current financial year In our Australia/
New Zealand business we continue to see progress with significant 1Series functionality being delivered
into Victona Health

In Eurcpe, we have delivered LORENZO clinical functionality into the University Hospital Aachen in
Germany The systems are being vigorously tested for scalability and functionalty and we are making
solid and satisfactory progress Qur operatons m the Netherlands and Germany continued to
strengthen their market positions while in Span our new organisation acquired in late-2005 made good
progress We believe that many of the major countries in Western Europe will introduce standardisation
in the provision of healthcare systems in the coming years to reduce costs and improve the quality of
services This represents a significant opportunity for ISOFT in the future, benefiting from its expenence
in the United Kingdom

Exceptional ltems

The Group incurred exceptional costs of £21 8 milion, including £4 0 milhon for closure of the former
head office In Manchester and £11 3 milion In redundancy and reorganmisation costs A further
£6 5 million was incurred for legal and advisory fees relating to changes in our funding arrangements,
strategic sale discuss:ons and the FSA nvestigaton The results for the year to 30 Apnl 2006 included an
impairment charge of £351 4 million in respect of goodwill

Interest

Net interest cost in the year was £7 7 miflion {2006 £5 6 milhon) This increase reflected higher drawings
under the banking faciities, a reduced level of cash and consequent interest income and the accrual of
£2 6 milion of PIK interest since 1 January 2007 The net interest charge comprised

2007 2008
£'000
Interest paid on term loan (2,846) (2,338)
Interest paid on overdrafts (2,664) (1,252)
Faciity non-utihsation and margin on LOCs (1,495) (608)
Contract funding finance charges (1,744) (3,726)
Other finance costs (1,695) (824)
Total finance costs (10,444} (8,748)
Investment revenue 2,720 3,099
Net interest charge (7,724) (5,649)

Taxation

The tax credit of £13 2 million reflected a £21 5 mullion tax repayment receved in the UK following the
change in the Group's accounting policy for revenue recognition in the year to 30 Apnil 20086, offset by
the tax charges on underlying profits in the other terntories Of this repayment, €6 4 millon was
accounted for in the year to 30 Apnl 2006, being the Group's assessment of the losses available for
carry-back to pnor years at that ime The increased repayment has reduced to £64 6 mithon the losses
available to carry forward at 30 Apnl 2007
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Loss per share
The basic and diluted loss per share was 3 8p (2006 165 1p)

Reduction in limitations

Duning the year we have made significant progress in reducing and where possible removing the
hrmitations 1dentified last year dunng the preparation of the accounts

Last year we had 5 imitations that resulted in the audters being unable to form an opinion on the
accounts, these were

1 Investigatron into accountng irregulanties

2 Accounting policy for revenue and cost recognition and lack of associated accounting
information

3 Information concerning the status of delivery under the National Programme for IT
4  Potential for claims
5 Gotng concern
The detail of the current position with regard to these 1s iIncluded in note 1 The remaining hmitations are
1 Investigation into accounting Irregularities

These investigations are ongoing, however the FSA have confirmed that their investigations
have not caused them to look at any matters outside those drawn to its attention by the
Company

2 Accounting policy for revenue and cost recogniton and lack of associated accounting
information

Steps have been taken in the current financial year to improve the business systems and
processes, and the consequent improving level of information as the year has progressed has
enabled the Directors more accurately to estimate the stage of completton of contractual
arrangements However, given the lack of historical information, estimates have had to be
made in relation to certain contracts which account for £12 4 milhon of revenue in the current
year

3 Going concern

Details of the assumptions applied by the Directors in adopting the going concern basis In
these financial statements are set out in note 1

As a result of these remaining imitations, the auditars, whilst providing an opinion on the accounts have
provided a qualfied opimion as a result of these remaining hmitations, with an emphasis of matter
paragraph i relation to going concern

Risk factors

The Group's financial condition and results of operations could be matenally affected by a number of
internal or external events or factors These nsks are broadly categonsed under the following headings

* Market-related nsks

* The competitive position of the Group

» The National Programme for IT in England
* The financial position of the Group

Additional nisks not currently known to us, or nsks that we currently regard as immatenal, could have a
matenal adverse effect on the Group’s financial condition or the results of operations These may be
considered erther as downside nsk—the risk that something can go wrong and result in a financial loss
or financial exposure for the Group—or volatiity nsk Votatiity risk i1s the nsk associated with uncertainty,
which means that there may be an opportunuty for financial gan as well as financial loss
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Market-related risk

1ISOFT operates in the international healthcare IT market The use of IT systems in healthcare provision
remains comparatively low compared with other industries, except in the US where the Group does not
currently have operattons Spending 15 nsing rapidly in many other developed economies and
represents an increasing proportion of government spending, especially due to the ageing profile of the
population Improving the efficiency and effectiveness of healthcare provision is therefore a pnonty in
many economies, and healthcare IT spending 1s increasing at rates between 6-10% per annum The
Group therefore believes that 1t 1s operating in a market with above-average growth prospects into the
foreseeable future

Poltical or social nsk The Group operates mainly in Western Europe, Asia, Austrahia and New Zealand
and believes that the political or social nsks of disruption to its operations in these regions are
comparatively small

Environmental or other operational regulatory nsk The Group does not operate in a significantly
hazardous industry

Nevertheless it takes reasonable steps to ensure that it comphes with requlations relating to the disposal
and recychng of computer equipment and the control of water discharge and arr emissions, and that it
MINIMISes paper use

Competitive position

Customner dependence The Group has a large number of ndvidual customers The Group recorded
revenues of £30 2 million under England’s NPAIT in the year ended 30 Apnl 2007, representing 17 2% of
total revenues If the Group ceased to be involved in NPfIT without appropnate compensaton, it would
have a matenal adverse impact on its revenues and profits To manage this nsk the Group continues to
apply sigrificant focus and management resource to ensuring that the requirements of this complex
programme are fulfiled Sales to the next largest customer amounted to £3 8 million

Technology and intelfectual property nghts  The Group develops and installs admimistrative and clinical
healthcare software systems Its future financial success depends on continuing to develop systems
with better functionahty and lower costs of ownership for s customers ISOFT has a history of
developing advanced products since 1ts launch in 1998 and the current development of LORENZO 15
expected to maintain the Group’s technology lead However, the Group i1s at nisk if its systems do not
function properly, if competitors are able 10 develop similar technology independently and more quickly,
and if the Group does nct adequately protect its intellectual property or does not take steps to prevent
the misappropriation or infringement of its intellectual property

Key employees The Group’s success depends on recruiting and retaining key management,
development, support and sales staff Given the current circumstances surrounding the Group, the rnisk
of the Group not being able to retain and recruit lugh calibre employees 1s greater The Group employs a
rigorous range of policies and practices to incentivise, motivate and retain key employees

Reputation  Events and publicity surrounding 1ISOFT over the last 18 months, including the profits
warnings in January and Apnl 2006 and the change in revenue recognition policy in June 2006 have had
an adverse impact on the reputation of ISOFT with regard to its products and its financial structure
These concemns have had an impact on the propensity of customers to enter into contracts with the
Company

The National Programme for IT in England

The National Programme for IT (NPfiT) 15 an ambitious programme to deliver integrated electronic
patient records nationally The creation of a national electronic patient record requires departmental,
patient administration and general prachtioner software to communicate on a national basis and on a
scale that has not previously been attempted anywhere in the world It i1s a large-scale and ground-
breaking pragramme and there are many challenges still facing the programme
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Dunng the last 12 months 1ISOFT has entered into agreements with CSC which are mutually beneficial to
CSC and \SOFT and which underpin and de-nsk the development and launch of LORENZO and secure
an important revenue stream from the NPIT Those agreements are

On 11 August 2008, iISOFT signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with CSC confirming the
schedule under which it will provide deliveries to CSC up to a value of £153 million in respect of the CSC
Agreement, subject to the satisfactory achievement of delivery milestones, with the opportunity to win
addional NPAIT business in future through CSC in certain circumstances Under this agreement, ISOFT
has made a number of commitments with respect te the future development of its products for the NPAIT
and the costs that it will bear for that work CSC would have the nght to take over the management of the
development team in the event that ISOFT 1s unable to fulfil those obligations with respect to the future
davelopment However the nghts to the IPR remain with \ISOFT under all circumstances This agreement
offers greater certainty of cash flow to ISOFT as payments are tied to specific milestones tied for the most
part to software incremental releases

On 28 September 2006, NHS Connecting for Health, Accenture and CSC announced a change of Local
Service Provider for delivery of the NHS National Programme for IT in the North East and East and East
Midlands regions As a result, the contract between 1SOFT and Accenture was terminated, although
ISOFT provided transitional services until 8 January 2007 Under the termination arrangements, 1SOFT
and Accenture agreed that no further payments would be made between the two parties and any
potential itigation relating to the penod between 2 Aprl 2004 and 28 September 2006 was annulled
Accenture transferred responsibility for the delivery of its obhigations within the NPIT to CSC and CSC
continues to fulfil its contractual obhgations to provide services to the North West and West Midlands
region

ISOFT Is the principal CSC alliance member and its application suite forms the core of the CSC alliance’s
software solution already being implemented n the Narth West and West Midlands 1SOFT retains
exclusity In providing core software soluttons in the North East region and exclusivity for intenm
solutions in the East and East Midlands region 1SOFT will retain preferred supplier status for future
solutions i the East and East Midlands region, subject to a benchmarking review This agreement
increased to more than £300 millon the potential Iifetime value of revenues expected from the NPAIT
project

The August 2006 agreement with CSC has recently been amended On 18 June 2007, 1ISOFT and CEC
agreed io integrate their teams involved In the development of software for NPfIT, under CSC's
leadership 1SOFT wili contnibute certain of the teams of people direcily involved In the NPfIT project
although ali such staff would remain in the employment of ISOFT

ISOFT will retain the intellectual property nghts to LORENZO, including the nghts to exploit it outside the
CSC clusters LORENZO installations (current and planned) outside these clusters will be unaffected
and 1ISOFT does not anticipate that the changes to the contract will impact its core long-term strategy of
developing LORENZO as its strategic product to be sold internationally In additon to LORENZO, CSC
will take responsibilty for the code streams of | Patient Manager () PM) and 1 Integration Engine (1 IE} for
the national programme, two of ISOFT's current products The provision and support of these products
by 1SOFT for other customers will be unaffected

Some two-thirds of licence payments to ISOFT under the new agreement will over the next three years
be calendar-based and the remainder will be based on mutually agreed milestones in order to ensure
the alignment of the two parties’ interests At the same time, CSC gave iis consent in a separate letter,
under the August 2006 agreement, to a change of control in the ownership of ISOFT

This series of changes has seen us move from a complex organisation structure serving two separate
customers on the NPT (Accenture and CSC) to one in which we now have a single organisation fronting
up to the NHS, providing a streamlined and simplified management structure This I1s a better way
forward for (SOFT, CSC and for the NHS

Under the terms of the CompuGROUP offer for ISOFT that was announced on 20 July 2007,
CompuGROUP has said that, if it 1s successful in acquinng 1ISOFT, it intends to sellio CSC those parts of
1SOFT’s operations that are currently under CSC management and which develop and support product
for the NPfIT
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Financial position

Liquidity The Group's overall objective 1s to ensure that it 1s at all times able to mest its financial
commitments as and when they fall due Note 1 outlines a number of uncertainties and assumptions
which could impact this objective To the extent possible, surplus funds are collected centrally and
managed to retamn flexibility, whilst ensuring reasonable interest receipts and minimal credit nsk The
Group renegotiated the matunty of all of its bank borrowing facilihies in August 2006 to ensure thatit has
sufficient short-term iquidity The Group’s bank barrowing facilites mature in November 2007 or, if
earlier, on the date of the proposed acquisition of the Group by CompuGROUP Consequently the Group
will require financing by the Group’s proposed new parent company at a level adequate to mest s
projected financing requirement, or through a refinancing of the Group’s existing debt should the
proposed acquisition not occur

Funding and cash flow  The Group may require capital to sustain or expand its business in the future
At present the Group has established sources such as cash flow from operations, bank debt, equity or
the realisation of non-core assets and, subject to the uncertainties set out in note 1, believes that the
sources of funding currently available will be sufficient to fund tts operations (see page 16 for further
information regarding the rewision of bank faciliies) If the Group's plans or assumptions regarding its
funding requirements change, it may need to seek other sources of financing such as additional lines of
credit with commercial banks or institutions, to renegotiate existing bank facilties or seek additional
equity contnbutions The renegotiated facilities carry stepped interest from 1 January 2007 The Group
has been using the period of stability provided by the revised facilities to consider and execute a
longer-term financial strategy

Investigations info accounting irregularies  As detalled in Note 1, the Company commenced an
investigation into possible accounting trregulanties in July 2006 The initial investigation completed on
7 August 2006 concluded that there were grounds for a more formal investigation which is still being
conducted by the FSA In October 2006 the Accountancy Investrgation and Discipline Board (AIDB)
announced that it will conduct its own investigation The AIDB mvestigation concerns individuals and
another party rather than the Company

The investigation by the FSA 1s ongoing and the Company continues to co-operate with the FSA The
FSA has confirmed that their investigations have not caused them to look at any other matters outside
those particular contracts drawn to their attention by the Company These matters could impact on
reported revenues and profits and, in the balance sheet, deferred income and accrued income and
consequent potential habilities, including fines However, the directors consider that the restatement of
revenues in the financial statements for the year ended 30 Aprl 2006 corrected, where appropniate, the
impact of these particular matters As the investigation 1s not yet concluded, 1t 1s not possible for the
Board to finally determine what implications, if any, may anse from the conclusion of the investgations
into these matters

Pension schemes  The Group operates both defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans,
the majonty of which are in the United Kingdom The UK defined benefit scheme was in deficit by
£11 2 million at 30 April 2007 calculated under an IAS 19 basis Deterioration 1n asset prices or long-term
interest rates could fead to an increase in the deficit or give nse to an additional funding requirement

Volatility There are a number of additional volatility nisks concerning the valuation of assets and
habilties, currency fluctuations and interest rate exposures, which are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements

Balance sheet and funding

At 30 Apnl 2007 the Group had net debt of £67 9 million (2006 £41 8 million) as detaited 1n note 19,
including contract financing arrangements, with cash and cash equivalents of £19 0 million (2006
£77 5 million) The net cash outflow from operations before exceptional tems amounted to £26 5 milion
(2006 inflow of £1 9 million), reflecting the operating difficulties of the business and the net impact of
unwinding customer up-front payments recerved in previous financial years

The reduction in net cash of £58 5 million, which 1s summansed below, largely reflects the unwinding of
advance payments recewved by the Group In prior years, restructuring costs of £12 8 million, interest
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payments of £29 milllon and capital expenditure of £3 7 million, offset by a net tax refund of
£199 million The cash outflow in the year was as follows

£m
Cash outflow from operations (26 5)
income taxes received 199
Net interest paid (29)
Purchase of fixed assets and capitahsed costs 37
Restructunng costs (12 8)
Net loans and financing repayments (33 8)
Proceeds from fixed asset disposals 13
Reduction in cash balance (58 5)

At 30 Apnl 2007 the Group had banking facililes amounting in total to £141 0 million, comprising a term
loan of £36 0 milion and a revolving credit facility of £105 0 million At the balance sheet date the term
loan was fully drawn and of the revolving credit £54 1 millon was drawn leaving unutilised faciities of
£50 9 milion and cash of £19 0 milion The utilsation of the revolving credit facility comprised drawings
of £8 0 milion and letters of credit and guarantees of £46 1 milhon The unutlised facilties and cash held
by the Company provide the lquidity required by the Company The bank facilities expire on
14 November 2007

Additionally, to assist with the funding of the business durning a penod of high development spending, the
Group previously utiised contract financing arrangements Amounts payable to third-party providers of
this funding from the proceeds of collections from customers amounted at the balance sheet date to
£43 6 milion (2006 £62 0 million) and have been included on balance sheet The Group has ceased
using third-party non-recourse contract financing arrangements because of the high relative cost

Revision of bank facilities

Under the terms of the CompuGROUP offer, which was announced on 20 July 2007, CompuGROUP has
Indicated its intention to repay ali of ISOFT’s existing bank borrowtngs at completion, and take over its
contingent habilities, including letters of credit 1ssued n the form of guarantees in respect of up-front
payments received by 1ISOFT in prior years in addition to all third-party contract financing arrangements

CompuGROUP will finance the acquisition and repayment of (ISOFT’s existing bank faciliies and the
ongoing working capital requirements of the Enlarged Group, through a combination of CompuGROUP
Holding’s existing cash resources and committed new debt {acilities of £285 mifhon arranged and
underwniten by SEB AG

Should the CompuGROQUP offer not be accepted then the Group will seek to negotiate an extension to
the current bank facilities

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactional exposure 1s monitored on an ongoing basis and 1s managed using
natural hedges where possible Where natural hecdges for econormic exposures are not avallable,
non-deliverable forward contracts are utihsed to hedge the Group’s exposures

Working capital

The Group’s working capital (defined as inventones and trade and other receivables less trade and other
payables, excluding corporation tax recoverable and deferred consideratton) amounted to
£(54 7) rmilhon at 30 Aprl 2007, compared with £(87 4) million at the end of the previous financial year As
a result of the change in revenue recognition accounting policy made as at 30 Apnl 20086, creditor
balances included £53 8 milllon (2006 £96 8 million) for deferred income, including up-front payments
made by customers in previous financial years The Group's addihonal working capital requirernents
over the next two years to fund operating costs as these up-front payments unwind are reflected within
the existing bank facilittes of the Group referred to above

Trade receivables at 30 Apnl 2007 amounted to £28 9 million (2006 £34 4 million), representing 51 days’
sales ocutstanding, compared with 53 days at the end of the previous financial year, on a comparable
restated basis
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Pensions

The Group operates a mixture of defined benefit and defined contnbution pension schemes, the former
having been acquired as part of the merger with Torex The Torex Medical Systems defined benefit
scheme was closed to new members in April 2000 This pension scheme 15 accounted for in accordance
with IAS 19 At the balance sheet date, the [AS 19 deficit in respect of the scheme was £11 2 million,
which 1s recorded In the financial statements with a corresponding deferred tax asset of £3 4 million

The Company intends to close this pension scheme to future accrual of benefits The Company has
consulted with members of the scheme and 15 in the process of discussions with the Trustees of the
pension scheme to reach agreement on the future funding of the deficit

Dividends

The Company does not have distnbutable reserves from which to pay dividends to holders of ordinary
shares and therefore 1s not able to pay a dvidend for the year ended 30 Apnl 2007

Gawvin Jame
Group Finante\Drfector
31 July 2007
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTCRS

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of the Company and the
Group for the year ended 30 April 2007

Principal activities

The Group licenses and implements market-leading software applications to healthcare provider
organisations it provides solution design and development, installation, system configuration, training
and customer support services In respect of its applications

Business review and future developments

The performance of the business dunng the year, the financial position at the year end and a review of
expected future developments are set out in the Report of the Chairman and Acting Chief Executive
Officer on page 1 and the Financial and Operating Review on page 10 The Group’s Corporate Social
Responsibility policies In respect of employees and the environment are set out on pages 30-31

The Directors are committed to the prninciples of gooed governance A statement explaming the
Company’s corporate governance 1s set out on pages 22-29

Key performance indicators are set out on page 94

Results and dividends

The results of the Group are set out in the Consolidated Income Statement The Company has no
distnbutable reserves from which to pay a final dividend for the year ended 30 Apnil 2007 The Group
made a loss for the financial year of £8 8 milhon (2006 £382 2 million)

Directors
The Directors of the Company at the balance sheet date are shown below

John Weston CBE (55), Chairman, was appointed to the Board of the Company as Non-Executive
Chairman on 19 October 2005 Following the resignation of Tim Whiston on 14 June 2008, he has also
assumed on a temporary basis the duties of the Chief Executive Officer John Weston was formerly Chief
Executive of British Aerospace plc from 1998 to 2002 and spent more than 30 years with that company in
a vanety of senior management positions He 15 also Charman of Acra Controls, Insensys and
Learndirect—the University for Industry John Weston 1s also a member of the President's Committee of
the CBlI He was formerly Non-Executive Chairman of Spirent Communications plc

Gavin James (44), Group Finance Director, was appointed to the Board of the Company on 21 June
2005 He was formerly Finance Director of Morse plc from 1998 to 2005 and before that was Group
Finance Director of Menveir-Swain Group pl¢c He 1s a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales

Bill Henry (40), Chief Operating Officer, joined 1ISOFT in June 2006 and was appointed to the Board of the
Company on 31 January 2007 He was previously CEQ of Star Technology Services, a diviston of
Messagel.abs Group From 2000 until 2004 he worked at PeopleSoft where he was part of the executive
team that turned the US services business around Prior to that, he held executive roles at Bellcore/
Telcordia Technologies, Sprint and Computer Sciences Corporation (CSC)

Rawvi Kumar (39), Chief Technology Officer, joined KPMG's healthcare information systems business
In 1992 and was part of the original management team of ISOFT when it was founded in 1998 He was
apponted to the Board of the Company on 7 October 2004 Ravi Kumar left his role as Chief Technology
Officer and resigned as a director of the Company on 4 May 2007

Eurfyl ap Gwilym {62}, Non-executive director, was appomnted to the Board of the Company on 19 May
2000 and 1s Charr of the Remuneration Committee He I1s a non-executive director of the Principality
Bullding Society, NCC Group plc and Pure Wafer plc He was formerly a director of the Terence
Chapman Group plc

Rene Kern (44), Naon-executive director, was appointed to the Board of the Company on 14 March 2003
He 1s a managing director and a member of the Executive and Investment committees of General
Atlantic LLC, which owned 5 01% of the shares of ISOFT Group plc at the balance sheet date He 1s also
a non-executive director of Intec Telecom Systems plc and RiskMetrics Group Inc
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Ken Lever (53), Non-executive director and chair of the Audit Committee, joined the Board of the
Company on 21 June 2005 and 1s the Senior Independent Director He 1s the Finance Director of
Tomkins Plc, and the Chairman of the Hundred Group Financial Reporing Committee He has held
executive directorships at Albnght and Wilson plc, Alfred McAlpine plc and Corton Beach plc and was a
partner in Arthur Andersen He is a fellow of the Insttute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales

David Thorpe (57), Non-executive director, joined the Board of the Company on 23 December 2003 He
has held a number of semor positions withun Electronic Data Systems (EDS) including UK Chief
Executive and latterly President of EDS Europe He is Executive Chairman of Morgan Chambers plc,
nan-executive chairman of CAS Services Holdings Limited and a non-executive director of VT Group plc,
the Innovation Group plc and Staffware plc He 1s also non-executive Chairman of Tunstall Ltd and a
member of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accounting

Geoff White (54), Non-executive Deputy Charrman and charr of the Nominaton Committee, was
appotnted to the Board of the Company on 19 May 2000 He s Non-executive Chairman of Patentine
and Camwatch Ltd and a non-executive director of Tekdata Dnstnbution Ltd and Tekdata
Interconnections Ltd He was formerly Non-executive Chairman of Punch Graphix plc and Chief
Executive of Pressac plc and a non-executive director of Derby City NHS Trust He 1s a fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales

Tim Whiston resigned as Chief Executive Officer and as a director of the Company on 14 June 2006 On
8 August 2006, the Board deemed 1t appropriate to suspend Steve Graham pending the final outcome of
the more formal investigation into possible accounting irregulantes On 27 March 2007, Steve Graham
was removed as a director and ceased to be an employee of the Company Ravi Kumar resigned from
the Board on 4 May 2007

The Board considered that on his appoinrtment John Weston was independent The Board considers
that Eurfyl ap Gwilym, Ken Lever, David Thorpe and Geoff White were independent throughout the year
and that they remain independent at the date of this report The Board does not consider Rene Kern to
be independent due to his relationship with General Atlantic Partners LLC, which holds a 501%
shareholding in the Company All directors are subject to election by the shareholders at the first
opporturity after therr appointment, and to re-election thereafter at intervals determined in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association

Bill Henry will stand for election at the Annual General Meeting, it being the first Annual General Meeting
since his appointment In addition, Gavin James, Ken Lever and Geoff White will retire by rotation and will
offer themselvas for re-election at the AGM The Chairman has confirmed that the directors standing for
re-election have fully met the performance standards required of directors by the Company and that
each of them continues to be commutted to the role

Directors’ share interests

The beneficial share interests in the ordinary share capital of the Company of those persons who were
directors at the balance sheet date were as follows

Ordinary shares % issued Ordinary shares % issued
at 1 May 2006 caprtal at 30 April 2007 capital

John Weston 106,000 0 05% 106,000 0 05%
Gavin James 134,553 0 06% 134,553 0 06%
Rawvi Kumar 885,298 (0 38% 885,298 0 38%
Eurfyl ap Gwilym 45,454 002% 45,454 0 02%
David Thorpe 10,000 0 004% 10,000 0 004%
Geoff White 50,454 002% 50,454 0 02%

* at 1 May 2006 or date of appomniment if later

(1} Including a beneficial interest in awards made under the 1ISOFT Performance Share Plan 2005 on 28 July 2005 For further
details of the 1ISOFT Performance Share Plan 2005 see page 33

{2) Inclucding a beneficial interest in the Bonus Shares awarded on 28 July 2005 For further details of the Bonus Shares see
page 37
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Beneficial interests include the directors’ personal holdings and those of therr spouses and minor
children as well as holdings in family trusts of which the directors’ spouses or their minor children are
beneficianes or potential beneficianes

Rene Kern had no beneficial share interests at the balance sheet date, however, he 1s an employee of
General Atlantic LLC, which owned 5 01% of the 1ssued share capital of ISOFT Group plc at the balance
sheet date

There have been no changes In the above interests between 30 April 2007 and 31 July 2007

Research and development

The Group committed significant investment to research and development in 2007 and employed an
average 1,481 employees dunng the year {2006 1,454) out of a total average employee base of 3,107
(2006 3,224) Research and development spending, net of capitalised costs of EMil millilon (2006
£0 7 million), totalled £22 5 million (2006 £22 6 milhon), representing 12 8% of turnover This investment
ensures that ISOFT's software application portfolio benefits from the latest technologies and continues
to address the current and emerging customer business needs, thus protecting the market position of
the Group and the potential for future revenue generation

Quality

1ISOFT maintains a policy of ensuring that appropriate standards of operation are maintained across the
Group Dunng the year ISO 9001 2000 accreditation has been further extended to four more sites Iin
Australia 1SOFT has also obtained 1SO 27001 for the Banbury site

Payments to creditors

The Company does not follow any specific external code or standard on payment practice, but its policy
1s 1o negothiate normal commercial terms of payment with all suppliers and to ensure that those suppliers
are made fully aware of those terms The Company abides by those terms provided 1t 1s satisfied that
suppliers have met their contractual obligations At 30 Apnl 2007, the number of days of trade creditors,
calculated by reference to the total amounts invotced by suppliers, was 60 days (2006 33 days)

Share capital

Full detauls of changes in share capital in the year are shown in note 22 to the financial statements on
page 77 Other than the directors, the Company has been notified of the following interests in more
than 3% of the issued share capital of the Company at 31 July 2007

Deutsche Bank AG 10 05%
K Capital Partners LLC 9 82%
UBS Investment Bank 8 54%
General Atlantic Partners 501%
Arrowstreet Capital 353%
Legal and General 325%
The Capital Group Companies Inc 345%
Openheimer funds Inc 330%

Annual General Meeting

The timing and venue for the Annual General Meeting will be notified In due course The resolutions to be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting, together with explanatory notes, appear in the separate Notice
of Annual General Meeting sent to all shareholders The proxy card for registered shareholders 1s
distnbuted with the Notice of Annual General Meeting
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Information given to auditors
Each of the directors at the date of approval of this report confirms that

(1) so far as the director 1s aware, there 15 no relevant audit informatton of which the Company’s
audiors are unaware, and

{2} the director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director to make himself aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that
information

This confirmation s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s234ZA of the
Comparies Act 1985
Auditors

The Company has monitared and reviewed the performance of its external auditors as detailed in the
Audit Committee Report, and proposes to re-appoint Deloitte & Touche LLP at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting

Approval
The Report of the Directors was approved by the Board on 31 July 2007 and signed on its behalf by

John Weston
Chairman and Acting Chief Executive Officer
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board of ISOFT Group plc 1s committed to maintaining the required standards of corporate
governance The following statement explamns how the Company has applied the principles of good
governance and best practice in compliance with the provisions of the Combined Code

Statement of Compliance with the Code of Best Practice

Throughout the year ended 30 Apnl 2007, the Company has been in compliance with the Code
provisions set out in section 1 of the 2003 FRC Combined Code on Corporate Governance, with the
exception of the following matters listed below

1 Following the resignation of the Chief Executive Officer, Tim Whiston, on 14 June 20086, the
Chairman has also assumed the responsibifities of the Chief Executive Officer As a result, the
Company does not currently comply with the provision A 2 2 of the Combined Code that
requires a clear division of responsibilittes at the head of a Company between the running of the
Board and executive responsibility for the runming of a Company’s business However, the
Board recognises that the Charman has assumed these responsibiiies as a temporary
measure and believes that the Charrman 1s best placed to lead the Company through this
transittonal penod Dunng the year the Board considered appointing additional executive and
non-executive directors to increase the diversity, skills and expenence brought to the Board
and to complement existing expertise This consideration lead o the appointment of Bill Henry
as Chief Operating Officer to the Board on 31 January 2007 Appointment of additional
non-executive directors was deferred pending the outcome of the sale process of the
Company

2 The Combined Code provision B2 1 requires the remuneration committee to comprise at least
three members who should ali be considered to be independent Following the resignation of
Colin Wall on 3 Apnl 2006, the Remuneration Committee has compnsed only two independent
directors On 24 August 2006, the Board appointed Eurfyl ap Gwilym as chairman of the
remuneration committee During the year the Board did not appoint a third member of the
remuneration committee and consequently the Company has not been in compliance with this
Code provision throughout the year

3 The Combined Code provision A3 3 requires the Board to appoint one of the independent
non-executive Directors to be the senior independent director On 25 July 2005 Colin Wall
replaced Sir Digby Jones as Sentor Independent Director Subsequently, the Board took the
opportunity to consider its structure and balance and appointed Ken Lever to this role on
24 August 2006 As a result, there was no compliance with this provision between 3 April 2006
and 24 August 2006 (see point 2 above)

Board balance and independence

Up untid 14 June 2006 when Tim Whiston resigned, the Board compnsed a non-executive Charrman, a
Chief Executive Officer, three further executive directors and five expenenced non-executive directors
From 14 June 2006, the non-executive Chairman also assumed the duties of the Chief Executive Officer
On 31 January 2007, Bill Henry was appointed as an executive director bringing the number of executive
directors to four for the penod from 31 January to 27 March 2007 On 27 March 2007 Steve Graham was
removed as a director reducing the number of executive directors to three from the period 27 March
2007 to 3 May 2007 when Ravi Kumar resigned as a director From 3 May 2007, the Board has comprised
a nen-executive Chairman and acting Chief Executive Officer, two executive directors and five
experienced non-executive directors

Biographical detalls of each director are set out on pages 18-19

In accordance with A 3 1 of the Combined Code Eurfyl ap Gwilym, Ken Lever, David Thorpe and Geoff
White are considered 1o be independent Directors Rene Kern 1s not considered to be an independent
Director, on account of im being a Director of General Atlantic LLC, which owned 5 01% of 1ISOFT
Group plc at 30 Apnl 2007

22




Chairman and Chief Executive

John Weston was appornted Non-Executive Chairman on 19 October 2005 The Board considers that on
his appointment the Chairman met the independence critena set out in paragraph A 3 1 of the Combined
Code As reported above, following the resignation of the Chief Executive Officer cn 14 June 2006, the
Chairman has also assumed the responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer since that time

Board responsibilities

The Board has adopted a formal schedule of matters reserved for its attention, which include the
determination of strategy and the approval of annual budgets, significant investments and nsk
management This schedule 1s avallable for inspection at the Company’s registered office

The Board’s role includes
* representing the interests of shareholders and satisfying all statutory dutes due to them,

» deciding the strategic direction of the Company and providing the resources required to fulfil its
future needs,

providing a challenging, confidentral forum in which the Chief Executive Officer can test strategic
thinking with an informed Group having broad continuity over time,

requinng the Chief Executive Officer to report regularly and openly on the operational
performance of all parts of the Group,

monitoning the effectiveness of the Chief Executive Officer and his executive team against a senes
of performance abjectives and benchmarks,

« setting a control framework within which the Chief Executive Officer can operate and authonsing
decisions on major 1ssues and mvestments,

= constiiuting sub-committees of the Board to address the issues of remuneration, new
appointments and aud,

* determining the remuneration of executive directors and senior members of staff and ensuring
that they are appropnately incentivised,

* assisting value creation through entrepreneunal leaderstip and by the controlled and measured
management of a wide range of business nisks,

* ensuring appropriate behaviour with respect to the various codes of corporate governance and
good business practice, including providing an audit trail of accountability, and

« overseeing good corporate cihizenship and ethical behaviour by the Group and its employees
with regard to all its internal and external stakeholders

The directors are encouraged to bring indepencdent judgement to bear on both strateqic and operational
matters Any director may challenge Company policy and decisions are taken demaocratically after
discussion

The Board believes that regular involvement with management through the Acting Chief Executive
Oflicer and the executive directors 1s the most effective way to monitor performance and achieve proper
control of the Group Through opennsss, the provision of well-defined information and discussion, the
Board endeavours to provide leadership in the interests of shareholders

Board meetings

The Board normally meets at least nine times per year for scheduled Board meetings The Board also
meets as required on an ad hoc basis to deal with urgent business The table below lists the number of
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Board meetings (excluding ad hoc sub-committees) and Board committee meetings, and Directors’
attendance throughout the year

Board Nomination Remuneration Audit
Meetings Committee Commuttee Committee
Total number of meetings held 15 1 5 8
John Weston 15 — 2 8
Bill Henry™ 8 — — —
Gavin James 15 — — 8
Steve Graham®@ 1 — — —
Tim Whiston® 1 —_ —_ _—
Rawvi Kumar 14 — — 2
Eurfyl ap Gwilym 15 — 5 8
Rene Kern 1 — —_ 2
Ken Lever 14 — 5 8
Dawvid Thorpe 12 1 — 6
Geoff White 14 1 — 2

(1) Bili Henry was appornted as an executive director on 31 January 2007
{2) Steve Graham was suspended as a director on 8 August 2006 and was removed as a director on 27 March 2007

{3) Tim Whiston resigned as a diector on 14 June 2006

During the year ended 30 Aprnl 2007, the Chairman held meetings with the non-executive directors,
without executive directors present after every scheduled Board meeting except two The Board also
appointed ad hoc sub-committees as appropnate dunng the year to consider specific transactions and
other Board-related matters

Appointments to the Board

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, all directors are subject to reappoiniment by shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting {AGM) following their appomtment, and one third of the directors must
retire annually by rotation and seek reappointment at the AGM Gawin James, Ken Lever and Geoff White
will retire by rotatron and will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM

Each member of the Board brings different experience and skills to the operation of the Board and its
vartous committees Board composition 1s kept under review and when a new appomintment 1s to be
made, consideration 1s given to the particular skills, knowledge and experience that a potential new
member could add to the existing Board composition Comprehensive, formal and tallored induction 1s
provided to new Board members The Group has long recognised the vital role that non-executive
directors have in ensuring high governance standards and maintains a significant, high-calibre
non-executive representation on the Board

Details of the length of executive Directar's service contracts appear on page 34 The terms of
appointment of non-executive Directors are set out on page 38 Any reappointment of a non-executive
director beyond two three-year terms 1s subject to ngorous review Any non-executive director who has
served for more than nine years 1s subject to annual reappointment by shareholders at the AGM

Information and professional development

In advance of each scheduled Board meeting, all directors are supplied with information and bnefing
matenal in relation to the business to be considered at that meeting Senior executives and advisers are
invited to attend Board meetings as required by Directors The Chairman and Group Finance Director
also brief Directors on key i1ssues and communications with institutional investors

Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, and may seek independent
advice, at the Group’s expense, if necessary for the proper performance of their duties The availability of
this advice 15 set out for non-executive directors In wrniting upon their appointment

Induction and tramning for new directors 1s arranged by the Company Secretary Existing Board members
have many years of relevant experience and each is responsible for ensunng therr continuing
professional development to mantain up-to-date and effective skills and knowledge
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Performance evaluation

The Board monitors performance agamst the actuevement of the Group’s strategic objectives Each
executive director has defined responsibilities for performance and measurement of achievement
These include a mix of financial and non-financral, predictive and histonc indicators

The Board has conducted an evaluation of its own performance and that of the Board Commuittees and
indmidual directors and conttnues to momnitor and consider the effectiveness and performance of each
Board committees

The Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees of the Board deal with specific aspects of the
Group’s affairs in accordance with their wntten terms of reference, which are available for inspection at
the Company’s Registered Office Each 1s comprised of independent non-executive directors only

The Charman and other dtirectors are able to attend the meetings of the Board commitiees under the
policy that any director may attend any meeting of a Board committee providing they have no conflict of
interest In respect of the business to be discussed

The Nomination Committee

The Board has established a Nomination Committee which meets formally as necessary The principal
functien of the Normination Committee 1s to review and make recemmendations to the Board about
Board appointments The terms of reference of the commuttee are as follows

* to propose to the Board the responsibiiies of non-executive directors including membership and
charmanship of Board commititees,

= to ensure that there 15 a satisfactory, formal process for the selection of non-executive directors,
» to propose to the Board any new Board appointments,

» to ensure there 15 good succession planning at Board level,

= to review the effectiveness of directors, and

* to nominate suitable people for the most senior executive positions, including that of Chief
Executive Qfficer

The Normination Committee was chaired by Geoft White, Non-Executive Deputy Chairman, throughout
the year Members of the committee duning the year compnised Geoff White and Dawvid Thorpe Other
directors are able to attend the meetings of the Nemination Committee under the practice that any
director may attend any meeting of a Board Committee providing they have no conflict of interest in
respect of the business to be discussed

The Nomination Committee reviewed and made proposals for the nominatien of Bill Henry as Chief
Operating Officer and executive Board director
The Remuneration Committee

Members of the committee dunng the year were Eurfyl ap Gwilym and Ken Lever Eurfyl ap Gwilym was
appointed Chairman of the Remuneration Committee on 24 August 2006 Details of the role and work of
the Remuneration Committee are set out in the Remuneration Report on page 32

The Audit Committee

Since 25 July 2005, Ken Lever has been the Charman of the Audit Committee Dawvid Thorpe and
Eurfyl ap Gwilym are also members of the Committee Other directors and the internal and external
auditors are invited to attend meetings of the Commitiee as appropriate Details of the role and work of
the Audt Commuttee are set out in the report of the Audit Committee on page 39

Accountability and audit

Financial reporting

Through the Financial and Operating Revitew, the Board seeks to provide a balanced assessment of the
business of the Group In conjunction with the Report of the Charman and Acting Chief Executive
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Officer, the Directors’ Report and the financial statements, the Board seeks to provide a balanced
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and praspects

Internal ¢control

Notwithstanding the investigaton into possible accounting irregulanties, the Board has apphed
pnnciple C 2 of the Combined Code which requires them to establish a continuocus process for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant nsks the Group faces which accords with the
guidance on internal control published in September 1999 (the Turnbull Guidance) The Board regularly
reviews this process which has been in place throughout the financiat year and up until the date of the
approval of this report Further information on this review process 1s noted below

The Board retains full responsibility for the Group’s systems of internal controls and for reviewing its
effectiveness Whilst acknowledging their overall responsibility for the system of internal control, the
directors are aware that the system 1s designed to manage rather than ehminate the nsk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against matenal
misstatement or loss

Histoncally, key elements of the Group’s internal controls are

* abusmess nsk framework identifying the potential ikelhood of strategic, operational, commercial
and financial nsks, their respective potential financial impact and the plans and associated
management action to mshgate those risks,

+ detalled budgeting process,
= quarterly re-forecasting of profits and cash flows,

= regular monitoring of results and forecasts against budget, with investigation and action taken in
response to vanances,

+ established procedures for the approval of capital expenditure, investment and acquisiion
projects,

+ clearly defined management structure and delegated authonties for individual busmess units and
managers within the business units,

+ clearly documented internal procedures set out in the Group's 1SO 9001 2000 accredited quality
management system and regular internal quality audits of key processes and procedures, and

* regular provision of information to executive management and the Board covering financial
performance and key performance indicators, including non-financtal measures

It was identified dunng the year ended 30 April 2006 that there were areas where the systems of internal
control needed to be strengthened to improve the overall effectiveness of the management of the Group
Progress on these items 1s detalled below

(1) Forecasting of profits and cash flows of the business units of the Group

The Group 1s developing an integrated financial model which will prowide Income Statement, Balance
Sheet and Cashflow information at a business unit and Group level and will address the key cashflow
dnvers of the business, contract finance unwind, working capital movements and the anticipated
changes ansing from the ongoing business regeneration plan

{2) Strengthening controls around revenue recognition and the establishment of systems to support
the current basis of revenue recognition

A contract costing database based on existing systems and drawing, as far as possible, from already
existing data has been set up 1n the UK A process 1s now operating in the UK that

» faciltates contract profitability analysis,
* concentrates on the major contracts involving implementation phases or managed services,
« supports the implementation of the revised revenue recognition policy, and
* utihses tme recording systems for charging of employees’ ime to projects
This will be introduced into the internationat business units durng the year to 30 Apnl 2008
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{3) Clear identification of product profitabiity

A project has commenced with the aim of prowiding monthly product reporting dunng the new financial
reporting year This involves developing a system for reporting revenue, tme-related costs, direct
expenses and direct overheads by product Inihial focus 1s on core international products and on
revenue/costs relating to the NPT First reports are expected in the eatly part of the new financial year

{4} Review and approval by the Board of contractual arrangements with existing and new customers
The Board 1s informed of all key business i1ssues through regular reporting, including

« progress and the latest status on the National Programme for IT (NPfIT),

¢ significant new contractual arrangements, and

* status of contraciual issues

(5) Monitoring the progress of new product development in accordance with agreed milestones
A monitoring process 1s In place for all significant contracts

(6) The process for reviewing the Board's own effectiveness

A self-assessment process has been implemented to assess the effectiveness of the Board and Board
Committees

A combination of Internal Audit reviews, self-assessment control questionnares and balance shest
reviews has enabled an assessment of the internal control environment to be made This has identified
additional specific projects where further improvements in financial controls can be made in certain
bustness units

Management has appropnate action plans to address identified shortcormings following each review
The progress against which is part of the continuous process to identify, evaluate and manage specific
risks faced by the business

The Directors confirm that there has been a process in place from the start of the year to date of the
approvat of this report for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks faced by the Company,
which 1s 1In accordance with guidance on internal control published In September 1999 (the Turnbull
Guidance)

Going concern

The Group’s directors have prepared projected cash flow information for the period ending 12 months
fromn the date of approval of these accounts The projections include certain key assumptions made by
directors, described in note 1

The nature of the Group's business s that there can be considerable unpredictable variation and
uncertainty regarding the tming and/or occurrence of the matters referred to in note 1, the timing and
margin of sales, the quantum and timing of cash flows from new business activity and the achievemnents
of contractual milestones

In preparning these projections the directors recognise that there are matenal uncertainties that may cast
significant doubts on the Group’s abibty to continue as a going concern

Having taken into account the uncertainties referred to in note 1 and above, the directors consider that
the cash flow projections are compited on a reasonable basis and it 1s on that basis, taking into account
the offer from CompuGROUF, that the directars consider it approprnate to prepare the Group's accounts
on the going concern basis The accounts do not include any adjustments which may be necessary If
the Group was unable to continue to operate

As noted on page 15 the Group's existing bank facilihes expire on 14 November 2007 If the takeover of
ISOFT by CompuGROUP proceeds then the existing debt, contingent hability and contract finance
obligations will be assumed by CompuGROUP CompuGROUP will finance the acquisition and
repayment of ISOFT’s existing bank facilities, which are repayable upon a change of control of ISOFT,
and the ongoing working capital requirements of the Enlarged Group, through a combination of
CompuGROUP Holding's existing cash resources and committed new debt facilites of £285 million
arranged and underwritten by SEB AG

Should the takeover not proceed then the Group would require re-financing of its bank facilities to
continue 10 operate
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Shareholder communication

The Board 1s commiited to maintaining regular, open dialogue with all of its shareholders The Board
values the views of shareholders and recognises their interests in the Group's strategy and performance
Regular face-to-face meetings are held with institutional fund managers and equity analysts to ensure
that the investing community receives a balanced and consistent view of the Group’s performance In
normal circumstances when the Group has a separate Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, the Chief
Executive Officer and Group Finance Director regularly attend investor meetings and briefings The
Charman attends as required and, in particular, at the intenm and full year resufts announcements
Whilst the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer roles are temporanly combined as noted above, the
Charman/Acting Chief Executive Officer and Group Finance Director will attend briefings

The Group has established an investor relattons facility on its website www isoftplc/investor_centre
where up-to-date financial and other information can be found, including copies of the Company’s
presentations to analysts

Constructive use of the AGM

The Board welcomes the opportunity offered by the AGM to communicate with investors, and
encourages therr attendance Shareholders are invited to use this opportunity to raise questions and
express their views Those unable to attend are inwited to submit therr questions in writing

The Chairman introduces the AGM with a formal presentation of the Group's business performance over
the past year and future prospects going forward The Chawrman of each of the Board committees 1s
avatlable at the AGM to answer questions on their areas of responsibility

The numbers of proxy votes cast in favour of, and agamst, resolutions are reported to the meeting and
will this year be pubhshed subsequently on the Company's website, www.isoftplc.com

Statement of directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for prepaning the Annual Report, Directors’ Remuneration Report and the
financial statements in accordance with apphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year The directors
are required by the |IAS Regulation to prepare the group financial statements under IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union The group financial statements are also required by law to be properly prepared In
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that IFRS financial stalements present fairly for each
financial year the Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows This requires the
fathful representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the
definitions and recognition critena for assets, kabilittes, Income and expenses set out in the International
Accounting Standards Board's “Framework for the preparation and presentation of financial
statements” In virtually all circumstances, a fair presentation will be achieved by compliance with all
applicable IFRSs However, directors are also required to

* propery select and apply accounting policies,

+ prasent information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information, and

» provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are
insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and
condrtions on the entity’s financial position and financial performance

The directors have elected to prepare the individual company financial statements in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law) The parent Company financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company In prepanng these financial statements, the directors are required
to

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
» make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and
+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Caompany and enable them to ensure that the individual
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company financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detecttan of fraud and other wregulanties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company’s website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Based on the matters descnbed in note 2 on page 51 and subject to the matters referred to in note 1, the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have, subject to the support
of CompuGROUP (following the offer being effected via a schemae of arrangement), adequate resources
to continue In operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the acccunts

The Annual Report 15 avallable on the Group's website at www isoftplc com/investor centre

The reader’s attention 1s drawn to note 1 of the financial statements “Significant matters retating to the
basis of preparation of the financial statements”

Approval
This report was approved by the Board on 31 July 2007 and signed on its behalf by

John Weston
Chairman and Acting Chief Executive Officer
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Commitment to Corporate Social Responsibility

It 15 1ISOFT’s view that operating in an envtronmentally and socially sustainable manner provides a
stronger basis for the future development of its business operations

Empiloyment policy

As a knowledge-based organisation, 1ISOFT continually reviews the suttability of employment policies
and practices to atiract and retain knowledgeable, high-performing employees

The directors recognise the importance of individual employee contributions in delivering the Group’s
performance and have maintained a commitment that each employee should receive a formal appraisal
every six months The appraisal process 1s an important means by which individual reward and personal
advancement 1s determined The process measures individual performance against an integrated
scorecard of objectives, under the headings financial, technical and operational, management and
relationships, team working and collaborative effort

Due to the uncertainty surrounding the future of the Company, there was a significant nsk that it might
lose key employees To address this nsk the Company implemented a retention plan

The Company mantains links to local universities and supports education sponsorship within local
communittes, principally in India and Germany

Equal opportunities policy

The Group I1s a committed equal opportunities employer and operates working practices to promote an
employment environment that 1s free from discrimination and harassment

it 15 1ISOFT pohcy to ensure that all employees and applicants are treated equally, regardless of gender,
manital status, race, colour, disability or sexual onentation Disabled individuals are afforded the same
opportunities as others, and the Group actively supports the employment of disabled persons and in the
retention of employees who become disabled whilst in the employment of the Group

Health and safety policy

Following a review of the Group’s Health and Safety management, the Group I1s currently revising its
Health and Safety policy and planming to improve communication of its Health and Safety policy and
arrangements through the production and 1ssue of a new guide for all employees and wvisitors

Employee equity participation

Many employees across the Group have sharehelding interests in the Company either directly or under
share option and Sharesave schemes The directors actively encourage employee equity participaton,
subject to compliance with the Group's employee share dealing policy Details of the current employee
share option schemes and options granted dunng the year are provided in note 22 to the financial
statements on page 77

Employee communication and consultation

The Group provides employees with regular updates and information about the Group through the
electronic publication of an employee newsletter and through the Group's employee intranet, IGATE In
March 2007, the Chief Operating Officer introduced a monthly webcast to all employees

iISOFT has established two Employee Consultation Forums (“IVOICE') with elected representatives
These are for employees in the UK and India WVOICE was established to create a means of active
involvement, social dialogue, tnformation dissemination and commurncation In the UK, WOICE played
an important role in representing employee interests to the Company regarding the closure of the
Birmingham office and the mthal stages of the UK headcount reduction programme

Social, environmental and ethical (SEE) matters

The 1\SOFT business recogrises that achieving success in environmental and social management is a
joint responsihility between employees and management Active employee participation in community
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events and chanties 1s strongly supported through the giving of time and the internal promotion and
support for such activities

The directors recogruse that whilst ISOFT’s business activities as a developer and supplier of software
apphcations have minimal direct environmental impact, there are environmental impacts n running a
company and our commitment to adopting best practice evidences our responsibiity The Group’s
environmenital policy aims to raise awareness of environmental matters, establish standards, assess the
impact of #s business actvites on the environment, set improvement objectives and monitor
perfoermance against these objectives

The Group’s philosophy is to establish a paperless working environment wherever appropriate This 1s
supported through the autornation of a number of internal management and administrative processes
such as performance appraisals, job profiles, a competency framework and annual leave requests The
Group continues to look at ways to move closer to a paperless working environment

The Group also encourages staff to minimise unnecessary travel by using web exchange and wideo
conferencing faciliies and working from home in appropriate crcumstances

The responsibility for maintaining and enforcing the SEE policy resides at Board level The Board
confirms that it does not consider any significant SEE issues to have anisen during the course of the year

A copy of the current environmental policy 1s available on the Group's website at www.isoftplc.com/
corporate/company_information
Donations

Indmdual office locations throughout the Group have informally co-ordinated employee fund-raising
activites for national charties duning the course of the year

1ISOFT made no chantable or politicali donations in the year

Approval
This report was approved by the Board on 31 July 2007 and signed on its behalf by

N

John Weston
Chairman and Acting Chief Executive Officer
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REMUNERATION REPORT
Introduction

This report sets out the 1SOFT Group executive remuneration policy, structure and detalls of
remuneration received by directors in the year ended 30 Apnl 2007 as required by the Directors’
Remuneratton Report Regulations 2002

Role of the Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee 1s responstble for setting the remuneration of the Charman, executive
directors and direct reports to the Chief Executive Officer and the executive directors, where base pay is
In excess of £100,000 per annum, or where base plus cash bonuses are In excess of £200,000 per
annum The Remuneration Committee also monitors remuneration policy more generally and
particularly 1n relation to overall coherence and expected or potental cost The remunerabon of
non-executive directors 1s determined by the Board as a whole No director 15 invelved in discussions
relating to his own remuneration

Membership and meetings

The members of the Remuneration Committee during the year were Eurfyl ap Gwilym and Ken Lever
Eurfyl ap Gwilym was appointed chairman of the committee on 24 August 2006 All of the members of
the Remuneration Committee are independent non-executive directors The committee met 5 times
during the year Details of attendance at meetings can be found on page 24 The Chairman and other
directers are able to attend the meetings of the Remuneration Commuttee under the practice that any
director may attend any meeting of a Board Commitiee providing they have no conflict of interest in
respect of the business to be discussed

Advisers

During the year the Remuneration Committee received guidance on executive remuneration from the
Charrman, the Group Human Resources Director and the Company Secrelary, except on matters
relating to their own remuneration The Remuneration Committee received independent external advice
from Kepler Associates Ltd as its principal independent external adviser for remuneration matters

Executive directors’ remuneration policy

The Remuneration Committee aims o align executive director and senior management interests with the
interests of shareholders by ensuring that remuneration at senior levels 1s weighted toward
performance-related elements The policy i1s also specifically designed to attract, retain and motivate the
talent the business needs.

Remuneration packages of the executive directors are reviewed annually to ensure that they reman
aligned with the Group's business objectives and the interests of shareholders The remuneration of
executive directors dunng the year compnsed the following elements

» base salary,
» annual performance bonus,
» share option awards,

« pension contribution,

other benefits, and
= transaction bonuses

Base salary

Base salanes are reviewed annually and adjustments made where necessary to reflect changes in
responsibiities, indwvidual performance and market rates

The Remuneration Committee determined the competitiveness of pay will be assessed primanly in terms
of total remuneration, with less emphasis on base salary alone Base salary and total remuneration levels
are benchmarked against similar posiions 1n comparable companies The executive directors’ base
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salanes are reviewed at 1 January consistent with other Group employees Details of directors’
emoluments are set out on page 35

Annual performance bonus

The Group provides performance-related bonuses for executive directors Annual bonuses for directors
are capped at 100% of base salary and the whole of the bonus 1s paid in cash Bonuses are payable at
the discretion of the Committee based on the Group’s financial performance and individual
performance The financial performance targets are set with reference to, amongst other things, Group
normalised profit before tax, amended for the impact of any acquisitions and exceptional items The
Remuneration Commmuttee ensures that the indwvidual performance critena are suitably challenging and
as such are aligned with sharehclder interests

The Performance Share Plan (PSP) 2005

The Performance Share Plan (PSP) was approved by the shareholders at the AGM in July 2005 Under
the PSP, executive directors can receive annual grants of nil-cost options or conditional shares which will
vest three years after the date of grant to the extent that performance conditions have been achieved

Grant sizes may be reviewed from time to tme, taking account of total remuneration for executives within
the Group versus the market It1s not intended to change the grant sizes each year but there 1s an overall
annual plan imit of 200% of base salary to allow flexibility in exceptional circumstances

The performance measure 15 1SOFT's Total Shareholder Return (TSR}, 1e share pnce growth and
dividends, relative to that of the companies that make up the FTSE Software & Computer Services Index

The graph below illustrates TSR performance of the Company in companson to the FTSE Software &
Computer Services Index over the perod since Iisting in July 2000
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No options or conditional shares will vest if ISOFT 1s ranked below median, 20% of shares will vest for
median performance and full vesting will occur only for top quartile performance Vesting between
median and upper quartle will be on a straight-line basis The executives will be entitled to a payment
equal to the dividends which would have been due duning the three-year performance period on those
shares that actually vest

Due to the circumstances in which the Company found rtself, the Company did not make any awards
under the PSP during the year
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Share options
The Group operates an approved and an unapproved share opthon scheme

Due to the exceptional circumstances existing in the current year, share options have been granted to
directors to align their interests with those of shareholders All options granted to executive directors are
subject to the achievement of certain performance conditions

Details of the share options granted to date are set out on page 36

Pension contributions

The Group makes an annual payment to executive directors equal to 20% of base salary Directors are
responsible for using these funds to make their own pension arrangements Details of contnibutions paid
to the executive directors dunng the year are set out on page 38

Other benefits

Other benefits provided to the executive directors compnsed pnivate health insurance, private medical
insurance and life assurance Rawi Kumar's entitlement to a car allowance ended on 30 Apni 2006

The Bonus Co-investment Plan (BCP) 2005

The Bonus Co-Investment Plan (BCP) was approved by the shareholders at the AGM n July 2005 Under
the terms of this plan, executive directors are able to commit voluntanly up to 100% of their earned
annual bonus into 1ISOFT shares This would provide the opportunity for executives to earn matching
shares up to a maximum of three for one subject to ISOFT meeting challenging three-year Earmings Per
Share (EPS) growth targets In the event that an executive director disposes of committed shares within
a penod of three years, he loses the benefit of the BCP in respect of the committed shares disposed of
The Remuneration Committee reviewed the introduction of the BCP in 2007 and decided to postpone
the intreduction of the BCP due to the circumstances in which the Company found stself

Transaction Bonuses

The Company has wntten to Gavin James, Bill Henry and 11 sentor managers informung them that they
will be entitled to receive a bonus based on a percentage of their base salary relating to the sale of the
Company The amount of any such bonus will be calculated by reference to specific sale prices being
achieved, and will not be payable at all f certain mimimum targets are not achieved

Service contracts and termination provisions policy

The Combined Code and the latest guidelines 1ssued by institutional investors recommend that notice
penods of no more than one year be set as an objective for executive directors, and that any payments to
a departing executive director should be determined having full regard to the duty of mitigation Itis the
Company’s intention to achieve these objectives, wherever possible

Details of the service contracts of those serving as executive directors at the year end are set out below

Unexpired Notice
Contract date term penod Termination payments
Bill Henry 26 June 2006 Roling 12 months 1 year's salary plus

1 year’s pension
contribution and benefits

Gavin James 25 Apnl 2005 Roling 12 menths 1 year's salary plus
1 year's pension
contribution and benefits

Ravi Kumar 01 November 2004 Roling 12 months 1 year's salary plus
1 year's pension
contnbution and benefits

The Company's policy 1s that in normal circumstances executive directors should have rolling service
contracts with an indefirute term providing for a maximum of one year's notice from either party to reflect
market practice
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Share ownership guideline

To further align the interests of shareholders and executives, the Remuneration Committee has
introduced a share ownership guideline, which requires executive directors to hold shares with a value
equivalent to 125% of salary for executive directors Durning the year the share ownership guideline was
met by Rawi Kumar and up to ther resignations by Tim Whiston and Steve Graham Due to the
excephonal circumstances of the Group in the current year the requirement in respect of Gavin James
has been deferred As a newly appointed executive director, Bill Henry 15 not yet required to meet this
guideline

External appointments

The consent of the Board 1s required for any external appomntments proposed by an individual director,
such as a non-executive director position with another Company, to ensure that the appointment does
not give nse to a conflict of interest Where an appointment 1s accepted, 1 must be undertaken in the
director's own time The director 15 permitted to retain any remuneration eamed from the external
appointment Details of principal external appointments of the directors are set out on pages 18-19

Directors’ emoluments (audited)
Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 30 Apnlt 2007 was as follows

Prevailing
base
Bonus salary/fees
Base payable Total Total at 30 April
salary Benefits Compensation in cash 2007 2006 2007
£'000

John Weston" 412 — — — 412 107 440
Patrick Crynet! — — — — — 93 —
Tim Whiston® 54 14 552 133 753 465 —
Steve Graham® 353 4 — — 357 390 —
Gavin James'? 254 5 — 260 519 190 260
Bill Henry® 65 1 — 260 326 — 260
Rawvi Kumar(9 250 4 250 125 629 259 —
Geoff White 85 — — — 85 120 60
Sir Digby Jonest — — — — — 24 —
Eurfyl ap Gwitym 55 —_ —_— —_ 55 54 60
Colin Wall® —_— — — — — 60 —
David Thorpe 50 — — — 50 50 50
Rene Kern® — — — — —
Ken Lever® 60 — — 60 42 60
Total 1,638 28 802 778 3,246 1,854 1,190

*  Benefits compnse private medical insurance, hfe assurance, permanent health insurance and car aflowances Pension
contnbutions made by the Company are shown separately on page 38

(1) Patnck Cryne resigned as a director on 19 October 2005 He was retained by the Group as an employee 1n the role of Business
Davelopment Executive under his existing service contract and resigned on 26 February 2006

(2) Gavin James was appointed on 21 June 2005 and started employment in July 2005 He sacrificed an element of his base
salary towards payment into his Group Personal Pension Scheme via the SmartPay mechanism

(3) Bill Henry was appointed as a director on 31 January 2007

(4) Sw Digby Jones resigned as a non-executive director on 25 July 2005 As was indicated in last year's annual repor, the
Company retainted the services of Sir Digby Jones as an adviser following his resignation as a director on 25 July 2005 Under
the terms of thus arrangement, Sir Digby Jones was pard a fee of £45,000 durning the financia!l year ended 30 Apnl 2006

(5) Coln Wall resigned as a non-executive drrector on 3 April 2006
(6) Rene Kern 1s a dwrector but recewves no fee
{7) Ken Lever was appointed as a non-executive drector on 21 June 2005

{8) Tim Whuston resigned as Chief Executive Officer on 14 June 2006 The amount shown above as base salary earned includes
£2,000 back pay for the increase n remuneration received with effect of 1 Apnl 2005 Following his resignation on
14 June 2006, Tim Whiston was paid a sum of £552,000, being equivalent to 12 months’ notice and pension contnbutions The
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Remuneration Committee also agreed that Tim Whiston's deferred bonus shares would vest and would be settled by a cash
payment of £132,685 The Remuneration Commuttee further resolved that Tim Whiston would be treated as a good leaver for
the purposes of the share option schemes and the PSP

In addrtion to the emoluments above, 1n the financial year ended 30 April 2006 he exercised 1,701,000 share options wath a
gross gain of £3,687,730 and sold 935,852 of the shares acquired, realising sufficient funds to match tax habilibes and
amounts payable to the Company on the option exercises

{9) Steve Graham's base salary eamed shown above includes £2,000 back pay for the increase in remuneration receved with
effect from 1 Apni 2005

(10) Ravi Kumar received £250,000 as compensation for loss of office In addiion to the emoluments above, in the financial year
ended 30 Apnl 2006 Ravi Kumar exercised 226,000 share options with a gross gamn of £596,283 and sold 155,813 of the shares
acquired realising sufficient funds to match tax habiites and amounts payable to the Company on the options exercised

(11) John Weston's base salary was icreased to £440,000 per annum with effect from 14 June 2006 reflectng the ncreased
responsibility in his combined role as Chairman and Acting Chief Executive Officer
Share options (audited)

In addition to the directors’ share interests noted in the Report of the Directors on page 19, the following
share options have been granted to directors

Exercise Granted Exercised At Date from
price At 1 May during durtng 30 April which Expiry
pence 2006* the year the year 2007 exercisable date
Bill Henry 50 2519 — 477,611 — 477,611 5 September 2009 4 September 2016
Gavin James 423 75 250,000 — — 250,000 30 June 2008 29 June 2015
50 25 — 500,000 — 500,000 5 September 2009 4 September 2016
30 September
Ravi Kumar 151 339 100,000 — — 100,000 2005 29 September 2012
33812 150,000 — — 150,000 24 March 2007 23 March 2014
371 692 250,000 — — 250,000 9 February 2008 8 February 2015

*  Or at date of appointment if later

(1} Options are exercisable subject to growth in the Company's normahsed profit before tax exceeding the growth in RPI by 2%
over the 3 year period cammencing on the day following the final day of any penod by reference to which the Company’s
financial results are calculated immediately preceding the date of grant

{2) Optlions are exercisable subject to the growth in the Company's normalised profit before tax relative to the growth in RPI over
the three year penad from the date of grant of the option

* 50% of oplions may be exercised if normalised profit before tax growth exceeds the growth in RPI by 10%
* 100% of options may be exercised i normalised profit before tax growth exceeds the growth in RPI by 20%

* Where the performance target growth falls between the levels specified, the proporion of options that may be
exercised will be calculated on a straight ine basis Where tha growth 1s less than the minimum growth level specified
above, all of the options lapse and cease to be exercisable

(3) The performance cnteria for these options has been satisfied as the performance of the Company's Total Shareholder Return
(TSR) relative to growth in the Retall Pnce Index (RPi) over the three year penod from the date of grant of the option has
exceeded the growth in RPI by 50%

Performance Share Plan 2005

At 1 May 2006
and 30 Apri 2007

Award date Number Date due to vest
Ravi Kurmnar 28 July 2005 74,745 29 July 2008
Gavin James 28 July 2005 74,745 29 July 2008

The mid market price of the Company’s shares at 1 May 2006 and 30 Apnl 2007 was 117 5 pence and
4175 pence respectively The range dunng the financial year was between 118 25 pence and
31 75 pence The shares are subject to forfeiture arrangements in the event that the Company’s Total
Shareholder Return {TSR) does not achieve the performance measures set out below over a three year
penod relative to the companies that make up the FTSE Sofiware & Computer Services Index
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* |f the Company 1s ranked at or above the upper quartile position of the TSR bst, all of the shares
will become vested and be released to the director

» If the Company Is ranked at a median position of the TSR list, 20% (rounded up to the nearest
whole share) of the shares will become vested and be released to the director

* |If the Company 15 ranked below the median posthion of the TSR list, none of the shares will be
released to the director

+ |f the Company Is ranked between the median and upper quartile positions of the TSR list, the
number of shares which will become vested and released to the director will be calculated on a
straight ne basis between the median and upper quartile

Deferred share bonus awards (audited)

Shares awarded to the directors and former directors under the deferred share bonus plan are as
follows

At 1 May Loapsed/ At 30 Apnl

2006 Vested 2007

Award date number number number Vesting date

Patrick Crynet® 30 Apnl 2003 95,351 — 95351 1 May 2006
30 April 2004 62,378 — 62,378 1 May 2007

30 April 2005 44,507 — 44507 1 May 2008

Tim Whiston® 30 Apnl 2003 95,351  (95,351) — 1 May 2006
30 April 2004 63,112 (63,112) — 1 May 2007

30 April 2005 81,690 (81,690) — 1 May 2008

Steve Graham® 30 Apnl 2003 82,637 (82,637) — 1 May 20086
30 April 2004 61,644 (61,644) — 1 May 2007

30 Apnl 2005 68,450 (68,450} — 1 May-2008

Rawvi Kurnar 30 Apnl 2005 47,605 — 47,605 1 May-2008
Roger Dickens 30 Apnl 2003 76,403 — 76,403 1 May 2006

(1) In June 2006, £132,856 was paid to Mr Whiston in cash to settle the deferred share awards outstanding to him

(2) On 15 March 2006, the Remuneration Committee exercised its discretion to allow Patrick Cryne to retain his deferred bonus
shares

{3) On 27 March 2007, Steve Graham was removed as a Director and his deferred shares lapsed

{4) Pending the outcome of the FSA investigation, the Company has decided not to setle any of the deferred share awards that
have potentally vested but have not been paid

If the director leaves employment with the Company before the end of the three-year holding penod, for
any reason cther than iIll-health, redundancy, retirement, death or because the business or Company
with whom he holds office 1s no longer a member of the Group, or for any other reason at the discretion of
the Remuneration Committee, the director shall immediately forfeit all of the deferred share bonus
award

Other Deferred Share Awards
Other deferred shares awarded to the directors as bonus shares are as follows

At 1 May 2006

and 30 Apnl
2007
Award date number Vesting date
Ravi Kumar 28 July 2005 59,808 29 July 2008
Gavin James 28 July 2005 58,808 29 July 2008

Deferred share bonus awards are awards of condittonal shares which have been granted to executive
directors and which will vest three years after the date of grant |fthe director leaves employment with the
Company before the end of the three-year holding pernod, for any reason other than ill-health,
redundancy, retirement, death or because the business or Company with whom he holds office 1s no
longer a member of the Group, or for any other reason at the discretion of the trustee, the director shall
immediately forfeit all of the conditional shares If the director leaves for any of the reasons set out above
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before the end of the three-year period, the conditional shares shall be released to the director
corresponding to the proportion of the holding psnod which has elapsed at the date of leaving

Penslion contributions (audited)

in addrion to the remuneration included in the table on page 35, pension contnbutions for Directors
were as follows:

2007 2006

i —
Patnck Cryne . . .. .. cee s . . .. — 18
Tim Whiston . e . . e e . . 1 9
Steve Graham . e e e e e e e e e 71 77
Rawv Kumar(" .. e e e e e e e . 55 76
Gawin James® ... . T, . 55 64
Bl Henry . . . . Ciee e e e . e .13 =
Total . ... ... ....... e e . e eaeaans . i":’. ‘3;8

(1) Ravi Kumar invested an etement of his pension allowance in the Company's Group Pension via the SmartPay mechamsm The
empioyer's National Insurance rebete for 2008 of £5,000 has been included in the pension allowance arnaunt shown above
The increased pension allowance amourt for 2006 was due to the pension allowance back payments for 2005

{2) Gavin James invested an element of his pension aflowance in the Company’a Group Pension via the SmartPay mechanism
The employer's National Insurance rebate for 2005 of £2,000 has been included in the pension allowance amount shown
above The 2007 pension allowance amount is lower than 2006 becauss it does not include the pension salary sacrifice
amounts which were contained in the 2006 figure

Non-executiva directors

Non-executive directors do not have service agreements and are appointed under letters of
appointment. Under the tenms of the letters of appointment, non-executive directors are appointed for an
initial term of three years, unless the appointment i1s terminated by erther party There are no provisions
for early tetmination payments The appointment of a non-executive director 1s subject to shareholder
approval at the first annual general meeting following the director’'s appointment. Continuaton of
appaintment 1s subject to continued satisfactory performance and re-electon at forthcoming annual
general meetngs, in accordance with the Company's articles of associaton Letters of appointment are
available for inspection at the Company’s registered office

The remuneration of non-executive directors 15 determined by the Board with regard to market
comparatives Independent adwice 1s sought to ensure panty is maintained with simidar businessas.
Remuneration was last reviewed in January 2007,

The basic annual fee for non-executive directars was not increased durng the year The Board may pay
additional remuneration for any services outside the scope of the ordinary duties of a non-executive
director

Combined Code

The Committee and its operation comply with the pnnciples of good govemance and the Combined
Code on corporate governance as appended to the Lising Rules of the FSA

Approval
This report was approved by the Board on 31 July 2007 and signed on ris behalf by

jﬁﬂlﬁ‘,

Eurfyl ap Gwilym
Chair of the Remuneration Committee




AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

This report to shareholders has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of paragraph C 3 3
of the Combined Code and paragraphs 5 1 and 5 2 of the Guidance on Audit Committees prepared by
Sir Robert Smith The report descrnibes the actvibes of the Audit Committee in meeting these
requirements

Terms of reference

The Audit Committee's terms of reference are reviewed from time to ttme and approved by the Board of
ISOFT They are based on the model terms of reference set out in the Guidance Note produced by the
Institute of Chartered Secretanes and Admimstrators and the guidance notes set out in Sir Robert
Smith’s report published in January 2003

The terms of reference cover membership and appointments, meetings, (frequency, quorum, attendees
and minutes), duties and responsibilities covering external audit, internal audit, financial reporting,
internal controls and risk management systems, whistleblowing, reporting responsibilities, authority
(delegated by the Board) and a number of other matters

Audit Committee membership and experience

The Audit Committee compnses three independent non-executive directors The members of the
Commiitee are Ken Lever, who was appointed to the Committee as Chairman on 25 July 2005, David
Thorpe, who was appointed on 11 May 2004, and Eurfyl ap Gwilym, who was appointed in preparation
for the hsting of the Company on the London Stock Exchange Eurfyl ap Gwilym served as Chairman
until 25 July 2005 Colin Wall was alsc a member of the committee until the appointment of Ken Lever
The Board has determined that all members of the committee are tndependent non-executive directors
for the purposes of the Combined Code The members have wide-ranging commercial, financial and
management expenence that they bring to the work of the Audit Committee Their biographical details
are set out on pages 18-19

Meetings

The Audit Committee meets at least four times a year and on other occasions as circurnstances require
The quorum for the meeting 1s two members The Finance Director, representatives of the external
auditor and the internal auditor attend the meetings under a standing invitation The Chairman, Chief
Executive Officer and other directors are able to attend the meetings of the Audit Committee Other
finance executives attend the meetings and the Company Secretary I1s secretary to the Committee The
Audit Committee Charrman reports regularly to the Board on its activites Eight meetings were held
during the year and attendance is set out on page 24

Work of the Committee

The Audit Commitiee has established an agenda framework that t1SOFT believes s vital for maintaining
an appropnate focus cn the objectives of the Commitiee The agenda framework sets out all of the
operational duties and responsibilities outhned in the Committee's terms of reference and 1s based on
four meetings in July, August, November and Apnl The areas covered by the agenda framework are as
follows

* Corporate Governance, including the regular review of the terms of reference and annual
evaluation, regulatory issues, review of delegated authonties and review of auditor
independence,

« Business Risk Assurance and internal audit, including the review of the business risk assessment
completed by executive management, the review of the internal audit plan and review of intemnal
audit reports,

» confidential sessions with the external auditor and internal auditor in the absence of executive
management,

= financial reporting, including current accounting and financial reporting matters and review of
intenm and annual reports and related results’ announcements, and
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+ external audit and appointment of external auditors, including audit plan, and scope, review of
audr fees, cost effectiveness, reports on intenm and annual financial statements, audit status
reports, management letters and the nature and extent of non-audit services performed by the
external auditor

The audit plan and scope sets out detalls of the areas to be covered and how the audit 1s to be
conducted. The Charrman of the Audit Committee meets penaodically with the external audiior to discuss
progress on the audit and the major points ansing, and has the opportunity to assess the effectiveness of
the process The Audit Committee I1s also able to assess the effectiveness of the process through reports
made to the Committee by the external auditor

In addition to the tems considered by the Audit Committee under the “agenda framework”, during the
financial year other important issues considered included regular reviews of the internal control systems
and the statement to be made i the Annual Directors’ Report and Financial Statements in respect of
internal controls, Group busmess risk profile, updates on comphance with the Cambined Code, and
developments in accounting systems Confidential meetings with representatives of the independent
audit and internal audit functions, in the absence of executives, took place dunng the year

The Audit Committee met earlier in the year to consider the 2007 intenm financial statements

Non-audi services are ordinarnly put out to tender and require the approval of the Chairman of the Audit
Commitice above certain levels In those cases where the work was awarded to the external auditor ¢
was concluded that the firm of the independent auditor was best pfaced to supply such services due to
the expenence and qualffications of the indwiduals providing such services and that the best interests of
the Company were served by engaging the firm of the independent auditor The policies adopted by the
Audit Committee, including those relating to audit partner rolation and relevant ethucal guidance 1ssued
by the professional bodies in the Consultative Committee of Accountancy Bodies, in particular that the
external audior should not audit its own firm’s work, make management decisions for the Company,
create a mutualty of interest nor be put in the position of advocate for the Company, when taken
together, provide adequate protection of auditor independence All fees proposed by the external
auditor must be reported to the Audit Committee and pnor approval is required from the Chairman of the
Audit Commuttee for any projects with fees in excess of £5,000 Deloitte & Touche LLP have provided tax
comphance and corporate finance services to the Company dunng the year Deloitte & Touche LLP with
Eversiveds LLP also underiock on behalf of the Company an investigaton into the aczountng
irregularittes as descnbed on page 49

The committee has reviewed the non-audit fees paid to the externai auditors which, in aggregate,
totalled £2,539,000 and has deemed that in the year ended 30 Apnl 2007 they do not affect
independence

As noted on page 43, the independent auditors’ opinion as to whether the financial statements give a
true and fair view 1n respect of the accounts for the year ended 30 Apnl 2007 1s qualified due to the
matters outlined in note 1

Internal audit function

in 2005, the Group introduced an internal financial audit function, supported by resources from Ernst &
Young LLP to enhance the existing internal contral framework Their work focused on a review of
segregation of duties and adherence to Group Schedules of Authonsation, together with a follow-up on
prior year's findings in four termtones This work was supplemented by specialist pieces of work
performed by other consultants Work performed to date internally has included the update of the Group
risk assessment, self assessment of financial controls and balance sheet reviews for all the Group
entites The internal audit function reports formally to the Audit Committee

Approval
The report was approved by the Board on 31 July 2007 and signed on its behalf by

Lor

Ken Lever . LN
Charrman of the Audit Committe
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ISOFT GROUP PLC

We have audited the Group financial statements of ISOFT Group plc for the year ended 30 Aprnl 2007,
which compnse the conschdated income statement, the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated
cash flow statement, the consohdated statement of recognised income and expense, and the related
notes 1 to 30 These Group financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set
out therein We have also audited the information in the directors’ remuneration report that 1s descrnbed
as having been audited

We have reported separately on the Individual company financial statements of ISOFT Group plc for the
year ended 30 Apnl 2007 The opimon in that report 1s qualified on the grounds of imitations on audit
scope and 1s modified by the inclusion of an emphasis of matter regarding going concern

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, tn accordance with sechon 235 of the
Companies Act 1985 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we meght state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’'s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for prepanng the annual report, the directors’ remuneration report and the
Group financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted for use in the European Union are set out in the statement of directors’
responsibilities

Our responsibifity 1s to audit the Group financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration
report described as having been audited in accordance with relevant United Kingdoem legal and
regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, In
accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework, and whether the Group financial statements
and the part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having been audited have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation We report to
yocu whether in our opinion the information given in the directors’ report 1s consistent with the Group
financial statements The information given in the Directors’ Report includes that specific information
presented in the Financial and Operating Review, Report of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Corporate Social Responsibility Statement and Key Performance Indicators that are cross-referred from
the Business Review section of the Directors’ Report

In addition, we report to you if, in our optnion, we have not received all the information and explanations
we reqguire far our audtt, or If information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other
transactions 1s not disclosed

We also report to you if, in our opinion, the company has not complied with any of the four directors’
remuneration disclosure requirements specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial
Services Authonty These comprise the amount of each element in the remuneration package and
information on share options, details of long-term incentive schemes and money purchase and defined
benefit schemes We give a statement, to the extent possible, of details of any non-comphance

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the company’s comphance with the
nine provisions of the 2003 Combined Code specified for our review by the Listng Rules of the Financial
Services Authonty and we report if t does not We are not required to consider whether the board's
statement on intermal control covers all nsks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s corporate governance procedures or its nisk and conirel procedures

We read the other information contained in the annual report for the above year as descnbed In the
contents section, including the unaudited part of the directors’ remuneration report, and consider
whether it 1s consistent with the audited group financial statements We consider the implications for our
report If we become aware of any apparent misstatements or maternal inconsistencies with the Group
financial statements Our responsibilities do not extend ta any further information outside the Annual
Report

a1




Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audrit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued
by the Auditing Practices Board, except the scope of our work was limited as explained below An audit
Includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the Group
financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having been
audited It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the Group financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropnate to the Company’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned our audit so as to obtain all the informaton and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the Group
financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report descrnibed as having been audited
are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregulanty or error

However, the evidence avallable to us was imited because of the following significant matters

Investigations into accounting irregularities in relation to subsidiaries

As detailed in note 1, the Board initiated a formal investigation into accounting irregularities on 20 July
2006, which has given nse to investigations by the Financial Services Authorty (“FSA") and the
Accountancy Investigation and Disciphne Board (“AIDB”) The Directors recogruse that the AIDB
Investigation concerns indviduals and another party rather than the Company

The FSA has confirmed to the Company that their investigations have not caused them to look at any
other matters outside those particular contracts drawn to their attentton by the Company These matters
could impact on reported revenues and profits and, in the balance sheet, deferred income, accrued
income and consequent potential habiities As detailled in note 1, the Directors consider that the
restatement of revenues n the financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2006 corrected, where
appropriate, the impact of these particular matters However, the Directors recognise that the FSA
investigation 1s not yet finally concluded

Given the circumstances, the ability of the directors to conclude on the completeness or accuracy of
transactions recorded in the year ended 30 April 2007 and prior penods 1s imited Consequently, the
evidence avarlable to us was himited, and there were no other satisfactory audit procedures that we could
adopt to confirm that nc further adjustments to the financial statements as presented are required

Accounting policy for revenue and cost recognition and lack of associated accounting
mformation

As detalled in notes 1 and 2, in the pnor year the Group changed its accounting policy for revenue and
cost recognition on contracts, as the current board considered the previous accounting policy to be
inappropriate Under the previous accounting policy the directors deemed it unnecessary to establish a
detalled contract costing and review process to measure contract activity Under the new accounting
pohcy, sufficient and appropriate audit evidence 1s not availlable to determine whether revenue and costs
are properly recogrused in the consolidated income statement and consolidated balance sheet to reflect
the stage of completion of contracts

This hmitaticn on audit scope has a potential impact on certain items recorded In the financial
statements, in particular revenues of £12 4 milion (2006 £7 1 million), accrued income of £2 0 million
(2006 £2 8 milhion), deferred income of £6 6 million (2006 £105 milion) and other habilities of
£1 1 million {2006 £Nil) and any consequential impact on the reported loss

This represents contracts with a total value of £56 0 mithon, on which cumutative revenues to 30 Apnl
2007 of £28 4 milion had been recognised

There was no system of control over such contracts, in place throughout the year ended 30 Apnil 2007,
on which we could rely for the purposes of our audit and there were no other satisfactory audit
praocedures that we could adopt to cenfirm that such amounts have been properly recorded

Lack of information on slatus of delivery of product under the National Programme lor IT in
the year ended 30 April 2006

As detailed 1n note 1, the Group changed its accounting policy for revenue recogrition under the
National Programme for [T in the year ended 30 Apnl 20086, the new policy being based on the timing of
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software delivery Under the former accounting policy, the directors deemed it unnecessary to record the
detaled status of delivery and acceptance of product The company has been unable to obtan
conclusive third-party confirmation of the status of delivery and acceptance of product for peniods earlier
than the year ended 30 Apnl 2006 As a result, under the new accounting policy, sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence Is not available to determine whether revenue amounting to £32 2 milhion had
been recogrised in the consolidated mecome statement and consolidated balance sheet in the year
ended 30 Apnl 2006 to reflect contract actmvity

In forming our opimion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
Group financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having been
audited

Qualified opinion ansing from limitations in audit scope

Except for any adjustments to the financial statements that might have been found to be necessary had
we been able to obtain sufficient evidence concerning the matters noted above, in our opinion

* the Group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the Eurapean Union, of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 30 Apri 2007 and of its loss for the
year then ended, and

* the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation,

* the part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having been audited has been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and

+ the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the group financial statements

In respect of the imitations on our work referred to above we have not obtained all the information and
explanations that we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit

Separate opinion in relation to IFRS: qualified opinion anising from limitations in audit scope
on view given by financial statements

As explained in note 2 of the Group financial statements, the Group, in addition to complying with its
legal obligation to comply with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, has also complied with the
IFRSs as 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board Except for any adjustments to the
financial statements that might have been found to be necessary had we been able to obtain sufficient
evidence concerning the matters noted above, Iin cur cpinion the Group financial statements give a true
and farr view, in accordance with IFRSs, of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 30 April 2007 and of its
loss for the year then ended

Emphasis of matter—going concern

Without qualifying our opinion in this regard, we draw attention to the disclosures made in note 1 of the
financial statements concerning the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern These include the
following uncertainties

* the unencumbered completion of the proposed acquisiion of the Group by CompuGROUP UK
Limited, which 1s subject to shareholder and court approval,

= the ongoing willingness and ability of CompuGROUP UK Limited to provide adequate financing
arrangements f the transaction legally completes,

» the renewal of existng banking facilities, which are presently scheduled to expire on
14 November 2007, should the proposed acquistion by CompuGROUP UK Limited not take
place, and

+ satisfactory trading in hine with the Directors’ expectations The nature of the Group’s business i1s
such that there can be considerable unpredictable vanation and uncertainty regarding the timing
and margin on sales, the quantum and timing of cash flows from new business activity and the
achievement of contractual milestones and contractual requirements

Hawving taken into account these matenal uncertainties, the directors consider 1t 1s appropnate to prepare
the financial statements on the going concern basis In the circumstances of the Group, these
conditions, along with the other matters included in note 1, indicate the existence of a matenal
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uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
financial statements do not include the adjustments that would result if the Group were unable to
continue as a going concern, which would include wnting down the carrying value of assets, including
goodwall, to their recoverable amount and providing for any further habiiites that might anse as it 1s not
practicable to determine or quantfy them

gﬁﬁ:&b\ -l '——_‘o—g)\-z\ va
Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Manchester, United Kingdom
31 July 2007




Consolidated income statement for the year ended 30 April 2007

Revenue

Negative goodwill and impairments
Exceptional costs

Profit on disposal of subsidiary undertaking
Other operating costs

Total operating costs

Loss from operations
Investment revenues
Finance costs

Loss before tax
Tax credit/(charge)

Loss for the financial year

Attributable to
Minonty interests—equity
Equity holders of the parent

Laoss for the year

Loss per share

Basic and diluted loss per share
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Notes 2007 2006
£°000
3 175,206 201,695
4a 591 (351,410}
4b (21,812) _
11m 269 —
4 |(168,563) (188,386}
(189,515} (539,796)
(14,309) (338,101)
5 2,720 3,099
6  {10,444) {8,748)
(22,033) (343,750)
8 13,213 (38,432)
(8,820) (382,182)
258 357
(9,078) (382,539)
(8,820) (382,182)
Notes 2007 2006
10 {38p) (1651p)




Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense for the year ended 30 April 2007

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Actuanal gains/({losses)
Tax on items taken to equity

Net losses recognised directly in equity
Loss for the year

Total recognised income and expense for the year

Aftnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent
Minonty interests—equity
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2007

2006

£'000

102
70
(218)

(345)
(957)
942

(46)
(8,820)

(360)
(382,182)

(8,866)

(382,542)

(9.124)
258

(382,899)
357

(8,866)

(382,542)




Consolidated balance sheet as at 30 Apnl 2007

Non-current assets

Goodwill

Cther intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax asset

Current assets

Inventones

Trade and other recevables
Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current assets held for sale
Total assets

Current habilities

Trade and other payables
Obligations under finance leases
Bank and cther loans
Short-term provisions

Liabilities associated with non-current assets classified as held for sale

Net current habilities

Non-current habilities

Bank and other loans
Retirement benefit obligation
Obligations under finance leases
Deferred tax liabilities

Other payables

Long-term prowvisicns

Total habilities
Net assets

Equity

Share capital

Share premium account
Own shares

Merger and other reserves
Retained earnings

Equity attnbutable to equity holders of the parent
Minority interest

Total equity

Notes 2007 2006
£'000
11 141,114 144,144
11 — 771
12 10,552 14,057
13 7,653 10,027
159,319 168,999
125 720
14 51,439 66,250
15 19,047 77,543
70,611 144,513
16 — 4,000
229930 317,512
17 {106,054) (151,698)
18 (470) (947)
18  (58,148) (47,765)
20 {1,783) (943)
(166,455) (201,353)
16 —  (3,000)
(166,455) (204,353)
(95,844)  (59,840)
18 (28,004) (70,149)
21 (11,167)  (10,712)
18 (276) (529)
13 @12) (805)
(4,094)  (3,327)
20 (1,118)  (2,199)
(44,971)  (87,721)
(211,426) (292,074)
18,504 25,438
22 23,249 23,249
23 53,543 53,543
23 (3,758)  (3,758)
23 129,273 130,742
23 (183,803) (178,948)
18,504 24,828
— 610
18,504 25,438

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 31 July

2007 They were signed on its behalf by

John Weston
Charrman and Acting Chief Executive Officer
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Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 30 Apnl 2007

Operating activities
Cash absorbed by normal operations
Cash absorbed by exceptional items

Cash absorbed by operations
Income taxes received/(paid)
Interest paid

Net cash flow used in operating activities

Investing activities

Interest received

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds on disposal of property plant and equipment
Deferred consideration pad

Purchase of own shares

Disposal/(acquisition) of subsidianes

Capitalised development costs

Net cash from/(used in} investing activities

Financing activities

Didends paid

Proceeds on 1ssue of shares

New loans raised

Repayments of obligations under finance leases
Debt 1ssue costs

Repayment of loans

Net cash {used in)/from financing activities

Net decrease In cash and cash equivalents
Exchange differences
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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Notes 2007 2006
£'000

(26,532) 1,946
(12,766) —
24 (39,298) 1,946
19,947 (17,788)
(5,636) (4,644)
(24,987) (20,486)
2,720 2,456
(3,630) (5,717)
1,349 37
(79) (241}

—  (3,758)
{144) (8,250}
— (722)
216 (16,195)
—  (8,030)

— 7,030

285 41,548
(1,015)  (1,199)
(1,200) (66)
(31,829) (37,195)
(33,759) 4,088
(58,530) (32,593)
34 (4)
77,543 110,140
19,047 77,543




NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Significant matters relating to the basis of preparation of the financial information

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
detaled in note 2 In prepanng these financial statements, the following significant hmitations and
circumstances were taken into account

Investigations into accounting irreqgularities

On 20 July 2006, the Board initiated a formal investigation into accounting rregulanties The Company
announced on 24 August 2006 that the FSA had notfied the Company that it would be conducting an
investrgation into possible accounting irregularities Furthermore, on 25 October 2006, the Accountancy
investigation and Discipline Board ("AIDB") announced its intention to commence its own investigation
into the same matters The AIDB investigation concerns individuals and another party rather than the
Company

The investigation by the FSA 1s ongoing and the Company continues to co-operate with the FSA The
FSA has confirned that therr investigations have not caused them to look at any other matters outside
those particular contracts drawn to therr attention by the Company These matters could impact on
reported revenues and profits and, in the balance sheet, deferred income and accrued income and
consequent potential habilities, including fines However, the directors consider that the restatement of
revenues In the financial statements for the year ended 30 Apnl 2006 corrected, where appropnate, the
impact of these particular matters As the investigation 1s not yet concluded, it 1s not possible for the
Board to finally determine what implications, if any, may anse from the conclusion of the investigations
into these matters

Accounting policy for revenue and cost recognition and lack of associated accounting
information

The Group’s accountng policy for revenue recognition was changed dunng the year ended
30 April 2006 Further details on the background to this accounting policy change are contained in the
Annual Report and Financial Statements for that year

Under the new accounting policy for revenue recognition, and in accordance with the requirements of
IAS 18, contractual revenue that 1s earned through the rendering of services should be recognised on a
stage of completion basis in ine with the activity and costs associated with each project Under the
former accounting policy, it had not been deemed necessary to capture indrvidual contract costs to
measure contract activity

As a result, the information was not available to enable management to measure revenue on a strict
stage of completion basis and therefore, tn relation to the financial statements for the year ended
30 April 20086, the directors cencluded that, in the absence of more reliable data, the most appropnate
and practicable basis in the circumstances was to recognise revenue on existing contracts using time as
the basts of recogniion Licence and implementation revenue was therefore spread evenly over the
estimated period of implementation in the case of implementatton (unbundled) contracts and over the
total contract term in the case of bundled contracts

Dunng the year ended 30 April 2007, steps have been taken such that for new contractual arrangements
and for existing contracts prospectively the directors believe that it 1s pessible to capture costs and
activity on a contract by coniract basis so that costs and activity can be used as a basts of allocating
costs and revenues between accounting pericds

However, despite the steps taken in the current financial year to improve the business systems and
processes, given that the histoncal costing records of the business do not identify activity by contract,
the nformation 1s not avallable to enable management to measure revenue on a stnct stage of
completion basis retrospectively

The lack of historical records has also meant that it has not been possible to provide sufficient and
appropnate evidence to the independent auditors to demonstrate that revenue and costs are properly
recognised n the appropriate period in Iine with contract activity as required by the Group's revenue
recognition policy for the financial years to 30 Apnl 2006
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The steps taken in the current financial year to improve the business systems and processes, and the
consequent Improving level of information avarable as the year has progressed, have enabled the
directors to estimate the stage of completion of contractual arrangements The directors have
concluded that, under the circumstances, this provides the best available representation of revenues in
the year to 30 Aprnl 2007

Given the lack of complete histoncal information, estimates have had to be made n relation to certain
contracts This has a potential impact on certain items recorded in the financial statements, in particular
revenues of £124 milion (2006 £7 1 million), accrued iIncome of £2 0 million {2006 £2 8 million},
deferred income of £6 6 million (2006 £10 5 million) and other habilities of £1 1 milhon {2006 £Nil) and
any consequential impact on the reported loss

This represents contracts with a total value of £56 0 millon, on which cumulative revenues to
30 Apnl 2007 of £28 4 millon had been recogrnised

If complete historical information were avallable it may give nse to adjustments or restatements to these
amounts In the current and comparative penods as presented that could be matenal to that penod

Information concerning the status of delivery under the National Programme for IT (“NPfiT")
in the year ended 30 Apnl 2006

In the year ended 30 Apnl 2006, the Group changed its revenue recognition pohicy in relation to the NPAIT
contracts based on the tming of software delivery

Due to the complexity of the contractual arrangements between Connecting for Health and the Local
Service Providers {LSPs) and between the LSPs and ISOFT and the difficulty in measuring and recording
delvery of product, the Board was unable to obtain conclusive third-party confirmation of the status of
delivery

In August and September 2006 new agreements were entered into with CSC, and Accenture transferred
its obligations under the National Programme to CSC Under these new contracts 1ISOFT will in future be
paid by CSC based on its delivery against milestones The achievement of milestones will now form the
basis for revenue recognition under the National Programme and provide appropriate third-party
evidence to support the phasing of revenue

The new agreements also provided third-party evidence of the revenue recogmisable to date under that
element of the National Programme, and confirmed the Group's appropnate cumulative revenue
recognition on the National Programme to 30 April 2006 The Group is still unable to obtain third-party
evidence to determine the appropnate phasing of that revenue between the year ended 30 Apnl 2006
and penods pnor to this The amount of revenue recognised under such contracts in the year ended
30 Apnl 2006 was £32 2 milion

On the basis of the kmited third-party evidence that is available and the detailed internal knowledge and
records of the 1ISOFT operational team, the Board believes that in the circumstances it has taken all
reascnable steps to ensure that revenue recognised in the comparative penod 1s in accordance with the
stated accounting policies However, conclusive third-party confirmation of the status of delivery from
the LSPs may have given nise to adjustments or restatements to the comparative period as presented
which could be matenal to that period

Potential for claims as disclosed previously

The Group had prewviously reported that it had expenenced a number of difficulties in the delivery of the
National Programme for IT, some of which were outside the control of the Group Some of these
difficulties resulted in formal correspondence being exchanged between the Company and the LSPs,
Accenture and CSC, alleging matenal contractual breach by the Company The Company has
vigorously denied all of the alleged breaches None of this correspondence resulted in notice to
terminate being given or any formal claims being made by the LSPs

During the year ended 30 Apnl 2007, agreement was reached with each of Accenture and CSC whereby
all potential histonc claims have been waived

Additionally the group reported in the 31 October 2006 intenm report that it was in discussions with the
Health Services Executive (HSE) to resolve certain matters in relation to the contract between 1ISOFT and
the HSE These discussions are continuing and are detailed in note 29
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Going concern

The Board has prepared projected cash flow information for the penod ending 12 months from the date
of approval of these financial statements The projections include certain key assumptions made by the
directors

(a) Satisfactory continuation of trading in line with the Directors’ expectations

(b) The satisfaction of the conditions contained in the banking agreement to enable the continuation of
the Group’s facilities to the earlier of 14 November 2007 or the date of the proposed acquisition of
the Group by CompuGRQUP

(c) The successful completion of the recommended offer for the Group by CompuGROUP

{d) The refinancing of the Group’s banking facilities by the Group’s proposed new parent company ata
level adequate to meet the projected financing requirement of the Group, or through a refinancing of
the Group’s existing debt should the proposed acquisition not occur

{e) The ongoing ability and willingness of CompuGROUP to provide such financial support to 1SOFT
Group Plc following the transaction to enable the Group to continue to trade

Itis assumed that CompuGROUP will finance the acquisition and repayment of ISOFT’s existing bank
facilities, which are repayable upon a change of control of 1SOFT, and the ongoing working capital
requirements of the Enlarged Group, through a combination of CompuGROUP Holding's existing cash
resources and committed new debt faciliies of £285 million arranged and underwritten by SEB AG

In prepanng their projections the directors recognise that there are matenal uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern These are as follows

The nature of the Group’s business i1s such that there can be considerable unpredictable vanation and
uncertainty regarding the matters referred to above, the iming and margin on sales, the quantum and
timing of cash flows from new business activity and the achievement of contractual milestones In
addition, until the proposed CompuGROUP transaction legally completes, the successful completion of
the transaction {including shareholder and court approval) and ongoing willingness and ability of
CompuGROUP to provide financial support to the Group reman uncertainties Should the fransaction
not proceed, it would be necessary to extend or renegotiate the Group’s banking agreements beyond
therr current expiry date of 14 November 2007

Hawving taken into account the uncertainties inherent in the assumptions referred to in this note, the
directors consider that the cash flow projections are compiled on a reasonable basis and that it 15
appropnate that the financial information should be prepared on the going concemn basis Future events
may give rise to circumstances not foreseen by the stated assumptions such that the use of the going
concern basis proves to be inappropnate Sheculd the going concern basis be inappropriate, the Group
may be unable to realse 1ts assets and discharge 1ts habiities in the normal course of business The
financial information does not contan any adjustments that would be required were a satisfactory
outcome to the uncertainties, as detailed above, not achieved Such adjustments would include writing
down the carrying value of assets, including goodwill, to their recoverable amount and prowviding for any
further abilites that may arise

2. General information and significant accounting policies

General information

ISOFT Group plc 1s a Company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 1985 The
address of the registered office 15 given on page 95 The nature of the Group’s operations and iis
principal activities are set out on page 18 and in the Financial and Operating Review on pages 10-17

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that i1s the currency of the pnmary
economic environment in which the Group operates Foreign operations are included in accordance
with the policies set out in the note below
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At the date of authonisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations
which have not been apphed in these financial statements were 1n 1ssue but not yet effective

IFRS 7 Financial instruments Disclosures, and the related amendment to IAS 1 on capital
disclosures

IFRS 8 QOperating Segments

IAS 1 Amendment "Capital Disclosures”
IAS 23 Amendment "Borrowing Costs”
IFRIC 4 Determuning whether an Arrangement contains a Lease

IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hypennffationary Economies

IFRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2

IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Dervatives
IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
IFRIC 11 Group and Treasury Share Transactions
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

The directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future penods will
have no matenal impact on the financial statements of the Group, except for additional disclosures on
capital and financial instruments, and intenm financal reporting when the relevant standards come into
effect for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2007

Sigrnificant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reparting
Standards (“IFRS") The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with IFRS
adopted by the European Union and therefore comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regutation

The financal statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis The principal accounting
policies adopted are set out below

Gaing concern

The Group's directors have prepared projected cash flow information for the period ending 12 months
from the date of approval of these accounts The projections include certain key assumptions made by
the directors as disclosed in note 1

The Group has undergone and continues with a significant restructunng of its UK and international
operations, a process which has generated cost savings through, inter alia, the removal of excess
resources bult up dunng the Group’s development over recent years, the simplificatton and
re-engineering of the Group’s core processes and systems, the renegotation of contractual
commitments and the streambning and simplificaticn of the Group’s market offerings The nature of the
Group’s business 1s such that there can be considerable unpredtctable vanation in the timing and
margin of sales, the quantum and timing of cash flows from new business activty and the achievement
of contractual milestones However, on the basis of the projected cash flow informaticn, which assumes
the continued careful management of working capital, the directors consider that the Group will continue
to operate withun the bank facilities currently agreed However, these facilities end on 14 November,
2007 As highlighted in note 1, it is the Directors’ expectation that revised facilities will be provided by a
new parent company or through a refinrancing of the Group’s existing debt should the proposed
acquistticn not occur

Hawving taken into account the uncertainties referred to above and in note 1, the directors consider that
the cash flow projections are compiled on a reasanable basis an the assumptions set outin note 1 and it
Is on that basis that the directors consider it appropriate to prepare the Group's accounts on the going
concern basis The accounts do not include any adjustments which may be necessary 1f the Group were
unable to continue 10 operate Such adjustments would include wnling down the carrying value of
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assets, including goodwill, to therr recoverable amount and providing for any further hiabilities that may
anse

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incarporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 30 Apnl each year Control 1s achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities

On acquisition, the assets and habilities and contingent habilities of a subsidiary are measured at their
fair values at the date of acquisiion Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the far values of the
identifiable net assets acquired 1s recognised as goodwill Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below
the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired (negative goodwill) 1s credited to the profit and loss
account m the penod of acquisiton The interest of minonty shareholders 1s stated at the minonty’s
proportion of the fair values of the assets and habilities recognised Subsequently, any losses applicable
to the minonity in excess of the minonty interest 1s allocated against the interests of the parent

The results of subsidiary undertakings acquired or disposed of during a financial year are included from,
or up to, the effective date of acquisiion or disposal Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidianes to bring the accounting policies in ine with those used by the Group

Intercompany transactions, balances, and income and expense are eliminated on consolidation

Goodwill

Goodwtll ansing on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisiion over the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the identfiable assets and lab:lities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition
Goodwill I1Is recognised as an asset and reviewed for impairment at least annually Any impairment s
recognised immediately in profit or loss and 1s not subsequently reversed

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attnbutable net book value of goodwill 1s included in the determination of
the profit or loss on disposal

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwili

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether those assets have suffered an impairment loss If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset I1s estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any} Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) 1s reduced to its recoverable amount
An impairment loss I1s recognised as an expense immediately

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use In assessing value In
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nisks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

Where an imparrment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating
unit} 15 Increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no imparrment loss
been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in pricr years A reversal of an impairrment loss 1s
recognised as income immediately
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Internally-generated intangible assets—research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities 1s recognised as an expense in the penod in which 1t1s incurred An
internally-generated intangible asset ansing from the Group's software development 1s recognised only
if all of the following condittons are met

= an asset 1s created that can be clearly identified,
= 1t 1s probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits, and
= the development cost of the asset can be measured relhably

Internally-generated intangible assets are amorhised on a straight-ine basis over therr useful lives
commencing from the date of first income recognition Where no internally-generated intangible asset
can be recognised, development expenditure 15 recognised as an expense n the penod in which 1t 1s
incurred

Revenue

The Group's revenues are denved from the sale of software product licences, the attendant installation,
maintenance and support revenues and supplies of third-party hardware and software

The change in revenue recognition policy in the prior year was implemented by way of a pnor year
adjustment as required by International Financial Reporting Standard 1 The accounting palicy
restatement involved reversing revenues of £76 million, £54 milhion and £44 million {total £174 million)
which were recognised In the years ended 30 Apnil 2005, 2004 and 2003 or earlier, respactively Those
revenues are now being recognised in the current and future years in accordance with the provisions of
the new accounting policy In calculating the prior year adjustment, note 1 cuthnes the imitations in the
historical data available to the Directors

The Group's policy on revenue recogmtion 1s that revenue 1s recognised only when persuasive evidence
of the arrangement exists, the price to the customer s fixed or determinable and collectibility 1s
reasonably assured and there are no matenal outstanding conditions or contingencies attaching to the
receipt of monies due

Unbundfed arrangements

The Group enters into certain arrangements involving the defivery and implementation of a given
software product against predetermined milestones, and the future maintenance and support thereof In
the case of such arrangements the revenue from the sale of product software licences 1s not clearly
separable from the attendant installation and the revenue for services I1s recognised on a percentage
completion basis over the period of the installation with due regard for future anticipated costs Supponrt
revenues In this regard are recogmsed from implementaton over the remaning penod of the
arrangement

National Programme for IT

The National Programme contract 1s a product delivery arrangement with a phased release of
funchonality enhancements over the period of the arrangement The licence revenue is recognised as
the elements of the product are delivered Implementation and service revenues are recognised in line
with the provision of those services, and support revenues on a percentage completion basis over the
relevant penod of the arrangement

Bundled arrangements

The Group enters into bundled service arrangements whereby 1t agrees to make certain software
applications avasgable for the duration of the arrangement As the fair values of the services deliverable
and maintenance and support to be provided under such supply arrangements are not clearly separable
from the software supply, total revenue in relation to the supply arrangement 1s recogrused on a stage of
completion basis over the penod of the arrangement, subject to the hmitations in histonical information
available outhned in note 1

Revenue ansing from contract extensions involving the granting of a licence to continue to use installed
software for an extended time penod 1s recognised on a straight line basis over the extended period
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Deferred income 1s recognised mn respect of invoices 1ssued and cash recewved in advance of revenue
recognition

Foreign exchange

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rates ruhng at the dates
of transactions Monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet
date are translated at the rates ruling at that date Translation differences are taken to the profit and loss
account

In order to hedge its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks, the Group enters into forward contracts
(see below for detais of the Group’s accounting policies in respect of such denvative financal
Instruments)

On consolidation, results of averseas subsidiaries are translated using the average exchange rate for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significanily The balance sheets of overseas subsidiaries are
translated using the closing year end rate Exchange differences ansing, if any, are taken to equity Such
translation differences are recognised as income ar as expenses In the penod in which the operation 1s
disposed of

Goodwill and farr value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and habilihes of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate The Group has elected to treat
goodwill and farr value adjustments ansing on acquisittons before the date of transition to IFRS as
sterling-denominated assets and habilites

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are transactions deemed exceptional by the Directors as a result of their size or
incidence

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial habifities are recognised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provistons of the instrument

Trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at theirr nominal value as reduced by
appropnate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts when there 1s objective evidence that the
asset1s impaired The allowance recognised Is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the estimated future cash flows on an undiscounted basis

Fmancial liabilittes and equity

Financial habilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into An equity instrument 1s any contract that evidences aresidual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its habilities

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnise cash on hand and other short-term highly iquid investments that
are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant nsk of change in
value

Bank and other borrowings, including discounted receivables financing

Interest-beanng bank loans and financing arrangements entered into In respect of specific customer
contracts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs

Finance charges are accounted for on an accrual basis to the profit and loss account using the effective
nterest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not
settled in the period n which they anse
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Trade payabies

Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value

Equity instruments

Equity instrumenits 1ssued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue
costs

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group's activities expose It pnmanly to the financial nsks of changes in foreign currency exchange
rates The Group uses foreign exchange forward contracts and options to hedge these exposures The
Group does not use denvative financial instruments for speculative purposes

The use of financial denvatives 1s governed by the Group’s policies approved by the Board of directors,
which provide written principles on the use of financial denvatives

Denvative financial instruments are recognised on the Group balance sheet at far value The Group has
not applied hedge accounting and changes in the fair value of denvative financial instruments are
recogrused in the iIncome statement as they anse The fair value of denvative financial instruments at
30 Apnl 2006 and 30 Apnl 2007 was not matenal

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost less any applicable discounts Depreciation 1s provided
at rates calculated to wnte down the cost of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful hife
on a straight-ine basis The annual rates of depreciation, by category of fixed asset, are as follows

» freehold land and bulldings 2%

= long leasshold improvements over perniod of lease
= fixtures, fitings and equipment 12 5% to 20 0%

* computer equipment 33 3%

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale f their carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transacton rather than through continuing use This condition 1s regarded as
met only when the sale 1s highly probable and the asset or disposal group 1s avallable for immediate sale
In its present condiion Management must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification

When a non-current asset or disposal group no longer meets the cnteria for being held for sale, the asset
or disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale and 15 measured at the lower of its carrying
amount before classification, adjusted for depreciation or amortisation that would have been charged
and its recoverable amount

Inventores

Inventories comprise goods held for resale and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value
Cost includes alf costs in bringing each product to its present location and condition Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completton and costs to be
incurred in marketing, selling and distnbution

Share-based payments

The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2, “Share-based Payments” In accordance with the
transitional provisions, IFRS 2 has been applied to all grants of equity instruments after 7 Novemnber
2002 that were unvested as of 1 May 2005

The Group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees
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Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant The farr value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments 1s expensed on a straight-ine
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest Far
value 1s measured by use of a Black-Scholes model or binomial model, as most appropnate for the terms
of the instrument The expected hife used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations

The cost in relation to the deferred bonus scheme 15 charged in the year of performance

Leased assets

Leases are classtfied as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nsks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases

Assets held under finance leases are included in the balance sheet at fair value, or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at inception of the lease These assets are
depreciated in accordance with the Group’s normal accounting policy for the class of asset concerned
The present value of future rentals 1s shown as a hiability The interest element of rental obligations 15
charged to the profit and loss account over the penod of the lease in proportion to the balance of capital
repayments outstanding Finance charges are charged directly against income

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line
basis cver the period of the lease

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payabte 1s based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported 1n the income statement because 1t excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes itermns that are never taxable or deductible The Group’s
hability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and llabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used i the
computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet hability method Deferred tax
habiites are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be avarllable aganst which deductible
temporary differences can be utihsed Such assets and habilihes are not recognised iIf the temporary
difference anses from goodwill or from the inihal recogmition {other than in a business combination) of
other assets and labilities in a transaction that affects nerther the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax habilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arnsing on investments In
subsidianes and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group 15 able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it 1s no longer probable that suffictent taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered

Detferred tax s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penod when the hability is
settled or the assetisrealised Deferred tax s charged or credited in the income statement, except when
it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with in
equity

Retirement benefits

For defined benefit retirement benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits 15 deterrmined using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuanal valuations being carried out on a tn-annual basis and
updated at each balance sheet date Actuanal gains and losses are recogrised n full in the period In
which they occur They are recogrised outside profit or loss and presented in the statement of
recognised income and expense
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Past service cost I1s recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and
otherwise 1s amortised on a straight-line basis over the average pertod until the benefits become vested

The retirement benefit obligation recognised In the balance sheet represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost and as reduced by the far
value of scheme assets Any asset resulting from this calculation s imited to past service cost, plus the
present value of available refunds and reductions in future contnibutions to the plan

Payments to defined contnbution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they
fall due

Multi-employer defined benefit schemes are accounted for as defined contribution schemes when the
Group 1s unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and labilities of the scheme

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is
probabile that the Group will be required to settle that obligation Provisions are measured at the
directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the abhigation at the balance sheet date, and
are discounted 1o present value where the effect 1s matenal

Provisions are reviewed on a regular basis and released to profit and loss account where changes in
circumstances indicate that a provision 1s no longer required

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies the Directors have made judgements that
those policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements
(apart from those involving estimations, which are dealt with below)} are detalled in note 1

Key sources of estiration uncertainty

In addition to the matters descnbed in note 1, the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of esimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant nsk of causing a
matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and habilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below

impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwi! 1s impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated The value in use calculation requires an
entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to anse from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate present value The carrying amount of goodwill at the balance sheet
date was £141 1 million and no impairment was identified in the current year review

Deferred tax

Determining whether a deferred tax asset should be recognised in respect of utilisable tax losses
requires an estimation of the future taxable profits of the legal entittes in which the tax losses reside
Details of the deferred tax assets recognised are shown in note 13
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3. Segmental analysis

The prnincipal activity of the Group 1s the development and supply of software application products and
related services to the healthcare sector All turnover and profit/(loss) 1s generated from this activity

Revenue

An analysis of the Group's revenue I1s as follows

Supply of sofiware, maintenance and support services

Investment revenue
Total revenue

Geographical operations

United

2007 2006
£000
175,206 201,695

2,720 3,099

177,926 204,794

Kingdom Other Rest of
and Ireland EU World Total Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
£'000

Total revenue 107,804 132,014 53,768 58,048 39,026 36,044 200,598 226,108
Internal revenue (2,978) (4,771) {2) — (22,412) (19,640} (25,392) (24,411)
External revenue 104,826 127,243 53,766 58,048 16,614 16,404 175,206 201,695
Operating {loss)/profit before

goodwill and exceptional

tems (9,501} 2471 11059 5749 5085 5089 6,643 13,309
Exceptional tems (19,283) —  (1,899) — (630} — (21,812) -
Profit on disposal of subsidiarnies 269 — — — — — 269 —
Goodwill impairment — (257,574) — {64,888) 591 (28,948) 591 (351,410)
(Loss)/profit from operations (28,515) (255,103) 9,160 (59,139) 5,046 (23,859) {14,309) (338,101)
Investment revenues 2,720 3,099
Finance costs {10,444)  (8,748)
Loss before tax (22,033} (343,750)
Tax credit/{(charge} 13,213  (38,432)
Loss for the year (8,820) (382,182)
Net (liahilities)/assets (96,667) (B2,536) 116,466 110,701 (1,295) (2,727) 18,504 25,438
Other information
Capital additions 2,261 3,253 287 363 1,082 2,886 3,630 6,502
Depreciation (4,747) (3,196) {452) (730) (1,487) (842) (6,686) (4,768)
Amortisation of intangible assets {771) (2,305) — — — — {771}  (2,305)
Balance sheet
Segment assets 63,865 154,389 145,012 142,585 21,053 20538 229,930 317,512

Segment habifihes

(160,532) (236,925) (28,546) (31,884) (22,348) (23,265) (211,426) (292,074)

Net {iabilities)/assets (96,667)

{(82,536) 116,466 110,701

(1,295) (2,727) 18504 25,438

During the year the Directors have reconsidered the allocation of assets by segment As a result of this
change the 2006 asset allocation has been restated to be comparable with the current year allocation
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4, Operating costs and loss for the year
4a) Net operating costs

Net operating costs (credits) are analysed as follows

2007 2006
£'000

Change n stocks of finished goods 505 491
Other external charges 35967 44,576
Staff costs 96,397 106,959
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4,966 4,768
Amortisation of development costs 771 2,305
Total other operating charges 29,867 29,287
Operating costs before goodwill impairment and exceptional items 168,563 188,386
Exceptional items (including accelerated depreciation of £1,720,000 and staff

costs of £5,613,000 in 2007) 21,812 —
Profit on disposal of subsidiary undertakings (269) —
Negative goodwill and impairments (591) 351,410
Total operating costs 189,515 539,796

4b) Exceptional items

Duning the year the Group has been engaged in a number of activities that are exceptional in nature
These activities include the restructuning of the business {under a plan descrnbed as the “'regeneration
plan™), the investgation of the accounting wrregulanties and the subsequent support of the FSA
investigation, and the planming and preparation for the sale of the business or the provision of long-term
finance These costs are summansed as follows

£°000
Regeneration plan and redundancies 11,305
Property provisions 3,999
Corporate finance and strategic options costs 5,767
Accounting irregulanties and FSA professional fees 741
21,812

Goodwill impairment, the release of negative goodwill and profit on disposal of subsidianes have also
been classified as exceptional tems and separately identified on the face of the income statement

4c) Impact of changes in estimates

Duning the year, and as descnbed in note 1, the directors have reassessed various estimates regarding
revenue recognition made in the prior year In accordance with IAS 8, “Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors™, such changes to estimates have been recognised in the 2007 resulis

The net impact of these reassessments of prior year estimates has resulted in an increase in revenues of
£2 1 milhion and an increase in the loss for the year of £0 7 milion These reassessments relate to
previous years’ estimates and hence there will be no impact in future penods
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4d) Loss tor the year

Loss for the year 1s stated after charging/(crediting)

Staff costs (including exceptional costs of £5,613,000 in 2007)
Research and development, net of capitahsed costs
Current service costs in respect of defined benefit scheme
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Gam on disposal of subsidiary operation
Foreign exchange gains
Foreign exchange losses
Depreciahion of property, ptant and equipment
Owned (including exceptional costs of £1,720,000 in 2007)
Held under finance leases
Amortisation of development costs
Negative goodwill and impairments
Exceptional items (see note 4a)
Operating lease rentals
Premises
Vehicles and equipment

The following services were provided by the Group's auditor

Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the Company’s annual

accounts
The audit of the Company’s subsidiarres pursuant to legislation

Total audit fees

Tax services—comphance work
Tax serices—advisory
Corporate Finance services
Forensic services

Other assurance services

Total non-audit fees
Total professional fees

2007 2006

£°000

102,010 106,959
22,493 22,556

670 760
(269) —
(91) (220)
123 54
5799 3,580
887 1,188
771 2,305

(591) 351,410
21,812 —

4,442 4,193

790 2,083
2007 2008
£'000

50 45
_585 760
635 805
0 —
200 —
1,624 200
556  —
— 70
2,539 270

3,174 1,075

All indwidual pieces of non-audit work above £5,000 must receive prior authonsation from the Audit

Committee

5. Investment revenues

Bank interest
Other interest and foreign exchange
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2007 2006
£'000
1,314 2,439
1,406 660

2,720 3,099



6. Finance cosis

2007 2006
£'000

Bank loans overdrafts and other loans 8,749 7,983
Amortisation of loan arrangement fees 1,267 239
Pension fund finance costs 305 330
Finance leases 123 196

10,444 8,748
7. Staff costs
7a) Staff costs (including executive directors) dunng the year were as follows

2007 2006
£000

Wages and salares 91,736 94,953
Social secunty costs 7,098 8,384
Other pension costs 3,176 3,622

102,010 106,959

Defined contnbution pension costs totalled £2,506,000 (2006 £2,862,000)

7b) The average monthly number of employees {including executive directors) employed by the
Group during the year was

2007 2006

Number
Development 1,481 1,454
Sales and marketing 112 148
Installation and project management 1,218 1,289
Administration and services 296 333

3,107 3,224
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8, Tax
8a) Analysis of tax {credit)/charge in the year

2007 2006
£'000
United Kingdom corporation tax
Current tax on loss for the year 115 (4,431)
Adjustments in respect of pnor years (17,196) (1,782)

(17,081) (6,213)
Overseas taxation

Current tax on profit/(loss) for the year 1,976 (43)
Adjustments in respect of pnor years 229 (140)
2,205 {183)
Total current taxation (14,876) (6,396)
Deferred taxation
Current year—United Kingdom 600 44,600
Current year—overseas 2340 2,503
2940 47103
Prior year—United Kingdom (873) (2,550)
Prior year—overseas (404) 275
(1,277) (2,275}
Total deferred taxation 1,663 44,828
Tax (credit)/charge (13,213) 38,432

8b) The tax (credit)/charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss per income statement as

follows
2007 2006
£'000

Loss before tax (22,033) (343,750)
Loss on ordmnary activities tax thereon at 30% (2006 30%} {6,610) (103,125}
Effects of

Non-taxable or deductible iIncome and expenditure (901) 1,574
Goodwill iImpairrment not deductible — 100,593
Current year tax losses carmed forward not provided 13,439 37,393
Withholding taxes wnitten off 115 —
Difference in tax rates in overseas companies {1,242) {1,672)
Adjustment in respect of prior penod deferred tax (1,277) (2.275)
Adjustment in respect of prior period corporation tax (16,967) (1,922)
Other current year deferred tax movements not provided 230 7,866
Tax (credit)/charge for the year (13,213) 38,432

In addition to the amounts charged to the income statement, tax related to certain share options and
adjustments o reserves totalling £218,000 has been charged directly to equity (2006 £942,000 credit)

UK Corporation tax 15 calculated at 30% (2006 30%) of the eshmated assessable loss for the year
Taxation for other junsdictions 1s calculated at the rate prevailing in the respective junsdictions




9. Dividends

2007 2006
£'000
Equity dividends paid
Ordinary shares of £0 10 each
Final dwdend for year ended 30 Apnl 2006 of nil pence per share (2005 1 82p) — 4,176
Intenm dividend for the year ended 30 April 2007 of nil pence per share
{2006 0 80p) — 1,854
— 6,030

No final dividend can be declared tn respect of the year ended 30 Apnl 2007

10. Loss per share

Basic loss per share 15 calculated by dwiding the loss attnbutable to ordinary shareholders by the
weighted average number of shares in issue The weighted average number of shares for the calculation
of the diluted loss per share in the years ended 30 Aprl 2007 and 30 Apnl 2006 are the same as that for
the basic loss per share because the exercise of share options and warrants would have the effect of
reducing the loss per ordinary share and 1s therefore not dilutive under the terms of IAS 33 Details of
options outstanding that are currently anti-dilutive are included in note 22

Welghted 2007 Weighted 2006
average Loss Average Loss
number  per share number of per share

Loss of shares amount Loss shares amount
£'000 '000 pence £'000 '000 pence
Basic and diluted loss per share
Loss attnbutable to shareholders (8,820) 232,486 (38) (382,182) 231,550 (165 1)




11. Intangible assets

Other

Negative intangible
Goodwill Goodwll assels
£'000

Cost
At 1 May 2005 502,835 — 4,357
Additons—internally developed — — 722
Additrons—acquired 13,899 — —
At 1 May 2006 516,734 — 5,079
Acquired negative goodwill —  (591) —
Derecognised on disposal of a subsidiary (920) —_ —
Other changes (2,529) — —
At 30 Apnl 2007 513,285 (591) 5,079
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 May 2005 21,180 — 2,003
Amortisation and impairment 351,410 — 2,305
At 1 May 2006 372,590 — 4,308
Amortisation and impairment — {591) 771
Derecogrused on disposal of a substdiary (419) - —_
At 30 Apnl 2007 372,171 {591} 5,079
Carrying amount
At 30 Apri 2007 141,114 — —
At 1 May 2006 144,144 — 771
Goodwill

Acquisition accounting has been adopted in respect of all business combinations The Group tests
gooawill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be
imparwed

Goodwill acquired In a business combinaticn 1s allocated at acquisithion to the cash generating units
(CGUs) that are expected to benefit from that business combination Before recognition of impairment
losses, the carrying amount of goodwill was allocated as follows

2007 2006
£'000
UK and Ireland 282,966 282,966
Other European Union 177,218 180,667
Rest of World 31,921 31,921

492,105 495,554

Impairment

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations, derved from the
present value of future cash flows generated by the CGUs There are a number of assumptions and
estrmates involved in calculating the present value of future cash flows, including but not restricted to the
following

= growth rates applied to EBITDA, used as the basis for the future cash flows,
* the long-term growth rates for the Group’s key markets applied into perpetuity,
» the discount rate apphed to the cash flows to calculate their present value, and

* the estimated recoverable value for any CGUs which the Board expects to divest within the time
frame considered
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Although the Board Is satisfied that the assumptions used are appropriate to the current circumstances
of the Group, changes to these key assumptions or estimates could significantly affect the result of the
impaiment calculation The basis of the assumptions used 1s as follows

Management eshmates discount rales using pre-tax rates that refiect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the nsks specific to the business The growth rates are based on management
forecasts for the specific markets

The Group prepares pre-tax cash flow forecasts dernved from the most recent financial forecasts
approved by management for the next two years and extrapolates cash flows for future penods based on
growth rates varying from 0%-5% The Directors consider that the rates used do not exceed the average
long-term growth rate for the relevant markets The rate used to discount the forecast pre-tax cash flows
ranges from 13%-20% and represents the Directors’ current best estmate of the weighted average cost
of capital in each of the years for which cash forecasts have been discounted

The carrying amount of goodwill at the balance sheet date was £141 1 milion (2008 144 1 milion)

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets represent capitalsed development costs The amortisation period for
development costs 15 dependent on the expected Iife of the related product release, which is currently
estimated at one year

Acqguisitions and disposals

i. Acquisition of Novasoft Sanidad

On 11 October 2005, 1ISOFT acquired 100% of the Sanidad healthcare operations of Novasoft
Acquisition accounting was adopted There are no changes to the farr values recogmised at acquisition
Following agreement with Novasoft, no further consideration will be paid resutting in a decrease In
deferred consideration of £2,529,000 from £12,656,000 to £10,127,000

i. Further investment in 1SOFT R&D Private Limited (iSOFT R&D)

In April 2007, the Group increased its stake in ISOFT R&D from 94% to 100% through the repurchase of
the outstanding shares for £243,000 Negative goodwill ansing on the transachion has been calculated
as the difference between the constderation paid and the book value of the assets acquired as follows

£000
Consideration settled in cash 243
Additional net assets acquired {834)
Negative goodwaill (591)

At 30 Aprnil 2008, the minonty interest shareholders, who were also employees of the Group, held a put
option In respect of thew sharsholding, whereby the Group may be required to purchase the remaining
6% minority interest at any time between 31 July 2006 and 31 July 2009 for consideration of shares in
ISOFT Group plc This was settled dunng the year

The negative goodwill ansing has been transferred to the iIncome statement

1. Disposal of iSOFT Switzerland

£501,000 of goodwill has been deducted in arrving at the profit on disposal in relation to the disposal of
Swiss operattons in May 20086
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12 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold and Fixtures,
long leasehold fittings &
land & buildings  equipment Total

£000
Cost
At 1 May 2005 4,650 37,804 42,454
Acquisition of subsidianes — 7 7
Additions — 6,502 6,502
Disposals — (496) (496)
Exchange adjustments — 111 111
At 1 May 2006 4,650 43,928 48,578
Additions 520 3,110 3,630
Transfer frorn net current assets (note 16) 1,000 — 1,000
Disposals (1,401) (2,285) (3,686)
Exchange adjustments — (100) (100}
At 30 Apnl 2007 4,769 44,653 49,422
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 May 2005 1,219 28,870 30,089
Disposals — (459) (459)
Charge for the year 251 4,517 4,768
Exchange adjustments — 123 123
At 1 May 2006 1,470 33,051 34,521
Disposals (187) (2127  (2,314)
Charge for the year 247 6,439 6,686
Exchange adjustments -— (23) (23)
At 30 Apnl 2007 1,530 37,340 38,870
Carrying amount
At 30 Apnl 2007 3,239 7,313 10,552
At 1 May 2008 3,180 10,877 14,057

Addtions to plant and equipment dunng the year include £278,000 financed by new finance leases

At the balance sheet date, the net book value of property, plant and equipment included £679,000 (2006
£1,376,000) i respect of assets held under finance leases Depreciation charged in the penod on those
assets amounted to £887,000 (2006 £1,188,000)

Subsidiaries

A list of the significant investments in subsidianies, including the name, country of iIncorporation and
proportionate ownership interest 1s given In note 4 of the parent Company's individual financial
statements
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13. Deferred tax asset/{liability)

Deferred tax comprises

Assets

Utilisable losses

Short-term timing differences
Pension accrual

Unexercised share options
Accelerated depreciation altowances
Holiday pay

Deferred tax asset

Liabilities
Accelerated depreciation allowances
Development costs

Net deferred tax asset

The movement in deferred tax comprises

At 1 May 2005

Amount charged to income statement
Amount charged to equity

Exchange movements

Income statement credit regarding pnor year

Balance at 1 May 2006

Amount credited to income statement
Amount charged to equity

Exchange movements

Income statement charge regarding pnor year

Balance at 30 Aprl 2007

The movement 1s sphit as follows

Accelerated Short-term

2007 2006
£'000

— 122
3,704 6,291
3,351 3,215
— 273
598 —
— 126
7,653 10,027

(312)  (574)

(312)  (805)
7,341 9,222

Rolled

capital timing Share Development Holiday over
allowances differences Losses Pension options costs pay gains Total
£000

As at 1 May 2005 (921) 5,399 48,399 2,750 2,420 (7086) 144 (2,299} 55,186
Income statement

movement 314 854 (48,277) (651} 475 (18) 2,299 (44,828)
Exchange

movements 33 39 — — — — 72
Equity movement — — {1,496} — — —  (1,208)
As at 30 Apnll

2006 (574) 6,292 122 3,214 273 (231) 126 — 9,222
Income statement

movement 860 (2.588) (122) (76) 231 (126) — (1,683)
Exchange

movements — — — — — — — — —
Equity movement — -— — (21} (197) — — — (218)
As at 30 Apnl

2007 286 3,704 -— 3,351 — — — — 7,341
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Atthe balance sheet date, the Group has potential net deferred tax assets, principally ansing from losses
and short-term timing differences totaling £72,263,000 (2006 £69,069,000) for offset against future
taxable profits A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of £7,652,000 (2006 £9,222,000) of
such losses and timing differences No deferred tax has been recognised in respect of the remaining
£64,611,000 (2006 £59,847,000) of losses as ther utilisation cannot be considered more likely than not

14, Trade and other receivables

2007 2006
£'000
Trade debtors 28,894 34,405
Corporation tax recoverable 575 5,636
Other debtors 2578 1,369
Prepayments and accrued income 19,392 24,840

51,439 66,250

The average credit period taken in relation to contract services 1s 51 days (2006 75 days) No interest s
charged onthe receivables Allowance has been made for estimated irrecoverable amounts determined
by reference to default expenence

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their farr
value

Credit nsk

The Group’s pnncipal financial assets are bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables

The Group’s credit nsk 1s primarily attnbutable to its trade recevables The amounts presented in the
balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables An allowance for imparrment 1s made
where there 1s an identified loss event which, based on previous expenience, i1s evidence cf a reduction in
the recoverability of the cash flows

Credit nsk 1s focused on a small number of high value contracts, which are long-term in nature Outside
these contracts the potential exposure is spread over a large number of customers
15. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an
enginal maturty of three months or less The carrying amount of these assets approximates therr fair
value

16 Non-current assets held for sale

2007 2006
£'000
Property held for sale ~— 4,000
Liabilties associated with assets held for sale _— (8,000)

The property held for resale in 2006 has been reclassified to property, plant and equipment in the current
year as the Directors believe that it no longer satisfies the requirements of IFRS 5 to be classified as an
asset held for resale
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17. Trade and other payables

2007 2006
£'000

Trade creditors 10,087 13,626
Other taxation and social security 3,684 11,158
Accruals and other creditors 38,134 27,178
Corporation tax payable — —
Deferred income 53,820 96,814
Deferred consideration 329 2,922

106,054 151,698

Trade creditors and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and
ongoing costs The average credit penod taken for trade purchases 1s 40 days (2006 31 days)

Defarred income represents invoices 1ssued and cash recewved in advance of revenue recogntion
Deferred consideration of £329,000 (2006 £2,922,000) comprises

« £329,000 {2006 £314,000) relating to the acquisition of I-Health on 8 January 2004 The deferred
consideration 1s payable based on proportion of revenue In each of the five years ending
31 December 2008 The amount included in the financial statements represents the Directar’s
estimate of the amounts that will become payable under the terms of the sale and purchase
agreement The maximum potential deferred consideration payable under the terms of the sale
and purchase agreement 1s approximately £8,700,000

+ £NIl (2006 £2,529,000) 1n respect of the acquisihon of Novascft Sanidad on 11 October 2005
* £NiIt (2006 £79,000) in respect of the Torex PLC acquisition of HAS Solutions Pty Limited ("HAS")

18. Bank and other loans

2007 2006
£'000
Due withtn one year
Other loans 15,581 18,639
Bank loans 42,567 28,000
Unsecured loan notes — 1,126
Finance leases 470 947

58,618 48,712

Due after one year

Bank loans — 26,747
Other loans 28,004 43,402
Finance leases 276 529

28,280 70,678
Total 86,898 119,390

All of the Group bank loans and coverdraft are secured by a floating charge over the assets of the Group
and are subject to interest at between 2 0% and 4 5% over LIBOR
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19. Financial assets and liabilities

Fixed Floating Non- Fixed Floating Non-
interest  interest  interest 2007 Interest  interest  interest 2006
rate rate bearing Total Rate rate bearing Total
E'000

Loans 43,585 42567 — 86,152 62,041 54,747 1,126 117,914
Finance leases 746 — — 746 1,476 — — 1,476
Deferred consideration — — 329 329 —_ — 2,922 2,922
Provisions — — 290 2,901 — — 3,142 3,142
At 30 Apnl 44331 42,667 3,230 90,128 63,517 54,747 7,190 125,454

The Group’s financial assets and kabilities compnse bank borrowings, cash and vanous items, such as
trade debtors, trade creditors etc that anse directly from its operations Short-term debtors and creditors
have been excluded from all of the following disclosures except in relation to currency nsk The mamn
risks ansing from, and )impacted by, the financial assets and liabilihes of the Group are interest rate nsk,
foreign currency nisk and hquidity nsk The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing these nsks

Net debt comprises

2007 2006
£'000

Drawings under revolving credit facility(? 6,567 15,747
Term loans 36,000 39,000
Finance lease habilities 746 1,476
Contract finance arrangements 43,585 62,041
Loan notes — 1,126

86,898 119,390
Cash (19,047} (77.543)
Net debt 67,851 41,847

{1} Letters of credit and guarantees of £46 1m (2006 £88 2m) were provided utihsing the revolving credit facilty Drawings are
stated net of prepaid fees of £533,000 {2006 £600,000) and proceeds held on deposit of £900,000 (2006 £MNil)

The Group Is exposed to fair value nsk in respect of its fixed rate financial assets and habilities and cash
flow interest rate nsk in respect of its floating rate habilities

The weighted average interest rate on fixed rate borrowings was 4 09% (2006 4 13%) and the wetghted
average penod to matunty was 2 32 years (2006 2 31 years) The weighted average period to matunty
on non-interest bearnng financial labilities was 1 6 years (2006 4 8 years} The effective interest rate for
financial iabilites ranges from 4% to 10%
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Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents held at the year-end were

2007 2006
£'000

Sterling 1,062 62,155
Euro 13,131 10,926
Australian Dollar 2,456 2,056
New Zealand Dollar 53 7
Singapore Dollar 214 154
Swiss Franc — 575
Indian Rupee 924 877
Hong Kong Dollar 587 359
Canadian Dollar 127 16
US Dollar 249 110
South Afncan Rand 185 177
Norweqian Kroner 59 67

19,047 77,543

All cash 1s at floating rates based on relevant national LIBOR equivalents or government bond rates

Currency nsk

The Group i1s exposed to translation and transaction foreign exchange risk The Group regularly reviews
its exposure to translation nsk and where appropnate will match this nsk with an appropnate level of
borrowings in the same currency From time to trme the Group takes out forward foreign exchange
contracts to hedge foreign currency transaction exposures At 30 Apr 2007 and 2006 the fair value of
currency hedging arrangements was not matenal

There are net foreign currency monetary assets/{labiliies) held by subsidianes with a funchonal
currency of stering of £563,000 (2006 £1,109,000) denominated in euros, £6,000 (2006 £1,000)
denominated in Australian dollars, £185,000 (2006 £177,000) denominated in South Afnican Rand,
£249,000 (2006 £108,000) denominated in US Dollars and £59,000 {2006 £61,000) denominated n
Norwegian Kroner Receipts and payments are made in these respective currencies in the normal course
of business

Liquidity risk

It 15 the Group’s policy to maintain a mix of short, medium and long-term borrowings with iis bankers
Flexibility 15 achieved by the use of a revolving credit facility and a fixed-term loan facility

Al the balance sheet date the Group had a term loan of £36,000,000 (including £9,000,000 at 4 5% over
LIBOR) and a mult-currency revolving credit facility of £105,000,000 The term loan has quarterly
conversions of £3,000,000 which move the borrowing rate from 2 0% to 4 5% above LIBOR As at
30 Apnl 2007, £50,879,000 of the revolving credit faciity was unused by the Group

Current bank facilities

In August 2006, the Group secured the revision of £141 million of faciihes The facilities following the
revision include

* £105 million revolving credit facility,
* £36 million term loan facility with no further amortisation, and
« £25 million facility, avallable following disposal of non-core assets

The matunty date of the above facilities 1s 14 November 2007 The financial terms were amended to
better reflect the Group’s revised business expectations and revenue recognition policies

Warrants over 3 7% of the issued Share Capital of the business were granted to the lender with an
exercise price of 10 pence per share as a condition of the new facilities The warrants will be exercisable
between 1ssue and 36 months from the date of the revision of the facilies Additionally, further fees are
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payable on faciliies outstanding post 31 December 2006 These additional fees are payable at the end
of the facility term or, if earlier, at the date of any refinancing of the faciliies These fees, calculated on the
total facility available, are § 0% per annum for the three months to the 31 March 2007, 7 5% per annum
for the three months to 30 June 2007, and 10 0% per annum thereafter

The costs of refinancing include an amendment fee of £1 2 milion, the wrte off of £0 6 million In
unamortised fees and professional fees of approximately £1 0 milllon The cost of interest has increased
In accordance with the revised margins Margins on debt now range between 200 and 450 basis points
over LIBOR depending on the usage of different elements of the faciibes The financral covenants
applicable to the revised facilities relate to key performance indicators (KPIs) such as roling EBITDA and
the reduction in letters of credit To assist in the monttoning of the KPIs, further financial and non-financial
information ts provided to the lenders on a penodic basis In addition the faciliies may be termmated Iin
the event of certain actual or threatened Iitigation, termination of matenal contracts or the exercise of
step in nghts As part of the rewision to the facilites a waiver of any prior breaches of covenants was
provided

These banking faciliies have provided the Group with a penod of stability during which the corporate
finance strategy of the Group has been considered and executed, resulting in a recommended offer for
the Company Additionally, these banking agreements include mandatory prepayments relating to
plarnned disposals, additicnal covenants relating to matenal contracts, additional reporting requirements
and wawvers of any previcus breaches of financial covenants

The directors, having undertaken to pursue a refinancing of the Group, have recommended an offer (as
detalled in note 30) for the Company The future funding of the group s expected to be provided for
through the banking facilities to be provided by the proposed new parent Company

Maturnity of financial liabiltties

The matunty profile of the Group’s financial liabilties, other than short-term trade creditors and accruals
was as follows

Bank Bank

and and

other Finance 2007 other Loan Finance 2006

loans leases Other Total foans notes leases Other Total
£'000

Due within one year, or on demand 58,148 470 2,111 60,729 46,639 1,126 947 3,865 52,577
Due after one year but not more than

two years 12,460 276 642 13,378 26,998 — 304 487 27,787
Due after two years but not more than

five years 15,064 — 477 15,541 38,200 — 225 885 39,310
Due in more than five years 480 — — 480 4,953 — _— 827 5,780
At 30 Apni 86,152 746 3,230 90,128 116,788 1,126 1,476 6,064 125,454

Other financial habilmes represent deferred consideration payable of £329,000 (2006 £2,922,000), the
Group’s restructuning provision of £154,000 (2006 £115,000) and the Group’s property provisions of
£2,747,000 (2006 £3,027,000)
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Obligations under finance leases

Minimum
lease Present value ol
payments lease payments
2007 2006 2007 2006
£'000
Amounts payable under finance leases
Within one year 512 1,030 470 947
In the second to fifth years inclusive 299 554 276 529
811 1,584 746 1,476
Less future finance charges {65) (108) — —
Present value of lease obligations 746 1,476 746 1,476
Less Amount due within 12 months (470) (947)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 276 529

The Group has leased certain of its fixtures and equipment under finance leases The average lease term
15 3 years For the year ended 30 Apnl 2007, the average effective borrowing rate was 9 56% (2006
9 56%)} Interest rates are fixed at the contract date All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no
arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments

All lease obligations are denominated it sterling

The fair value of the Group’s lease obligations approximates their carrying amount There 1s no matenal
difference between the book vafue and fair value of the aforementioned financial instruments

20. Prowvisions for liabihties and charges

Restructuring  Property Total

£'000

At 1 May 2005 407 3,929 4,336
Utilsed (108) (725) (833)
Credited t0 Income statement (184) (177) (361)
At 30 Apnl 2006 115 3,027 3,142
Utised — (1,279) (1,279)
Credited to income statement (115) (1,400) (1,515)
Created in the year 154 2399 2,553
At 30 Apnl 2007 154 2,747 2,901

2007 2006

£'000

Included in current abiiities 1,783 943
Included in non-current habilities 1,118 2,199

2,901 3,142

The provision held in respect of properties represents the estimated cost of exiting a number of vacant
properties held by the Group of £1,519,000 (2006 £2,102,000) and the prowision for leasehold
dilapidations on a number of the Group’s leasehold properties of £1,228,000 (2006 £925,000)
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The anhcipated timing of outflows in respect of provisions is as follows

2007 2006

£000

Within 1 year 1,783 943
Within 1-2 years 642 487
Within 2-5 years 476 885
After more than 5 years — 827

2,901 3,142

21 Defined benefit pension schemes
21a) Assumptions and scheme deficit

The Group has a mixture of defined benefit and defined contnbution schemes, the former having been
acquired as part of the merger with Torex The assets of the Torex Medical Systems (TMS) defined
benefit scheme are held in a separate trustee administered fund Full actuanal valuations of the scheme
are undertaken on a tniennial basis The last completed full actuanal valuation was at 1 January 2005
The most recent actuanal valuation of the scheme for IAS 19 disclosures was at 30 Apnl 2006 The lAS 19
valuation of the TMS scheme used the projected umit method and was carmed out by KPMG,
professionally qualfied actuanes, using the following assumptions

2007 2006 2005

%
Rate of increase in pensionable salanes 40 40 43
Rate of increase in pensions in payment and deferment 31 29 28
Discount rate 535 525 54
Inflation assumption 31 29 28
Uplit on liabilities for mortality assumptions 50 50 50

The fair value of the assets of the scheme and the wetghted average expected return were

Long-term rate of Long-term rate of

return expected Value at return expected Value at
at 30 Apnl 30 April at 30 April 30 April

2007 2007 2006 2006

% £'000 % £'000
Equities 78 12,995 75 12,723
Bonds 53 2,454 47 1,372
Insurance pohcy — — 50 1,319
Other 375 1,811 375 833
Total market value of assets 17,260 16,247
Present value of scheme habilities (28,427) (26,959)
Deficit in the scheme (11,167} {10,712}

The long-term rate of return expected on the various classes of scheme asset 1s set out above For bonds
and cash balance the market yields at the balance sheet date are known and the overall expected rate
for bonds will therefore reflect the actual portfolio of bonds held by the scheme

For equities the future yield i1s subjective It is usually expected that the long-term return on equities will
be tugher than the return from bonds as a result of the equity-risk premwum The rates have remained
refatively unchanged year on year as the yield on Government bonds has been relatively unchanged
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21b) Total expense recognised in the Income Statement

2007 2006
£'000
Current service cost 670 760
Interest on obligations 1,418 1,196
Expected return cn assets (1,113} (866)
Total operating charge 975 1,090

A charge for the year of £670,000 (2006 £760,000) has been included in wages and salanes costs and
£305,000 (2006 £330,000) has been included in finance costs Actuanal gains and losses have been
included in the statement of recognised income and expense

21c) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit oblhigation

2007 2006
£'000
Opening defined benefit obligation 26,959 21,979
Service cost 670 760
Interest cost 1,418 1,196
Actuanal (gain)/losses (212) 3,594
Employee element of service cost 150 161
Benefits paid (558) (731)
Closing defined benefit obligation 28,427 26,959
21d) Movement in fair value of scheme assets during the year
2007 2006
£'000
Opening fair value of assets 16,247 12,812
Expected return 1,113 866
Actuanal {losses)/gains (142} 2,637
Contnbutions by employer 450 502
Employee contrbutions 150 161
Less benefits pad (558) (731)
Closing farr value of assets 17,260 16,247

21e) History of experience gains and losses

2007 2006 2005

Difference between the actual and expected return on scheme assets

Amount {£'000) (142) 2,637 203
Percentage of scheme assets (1%) 16% 2%
Expenence gans/(losses) on scheme habilities

Amount (£'000) 92 (1,665) 645
Percentage of the present value of the scheme labilities 0% (6%) 3%

The directors anticipate that coninbutions to the scheme in the year to 30 Apnl 2008 will be
approximately £2,000,000

21f) Overseas arrangements

As a result of the merger with Torex, the Group also acquired pension obligations in the Netherlands
ISOFT Netherlands BV participates in an industry-wide defined benefit pension plan, known as the
PGGM The PGGM provides pension benefits related to final pay at retirement for approximately
1 8 milhon people, who are cuirent or former employees in the healthcare and social work sector in the
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Netherlands The PGGM 1s a multi-employer plan under which 1ISOFT Netherlands BV 1s unable to
identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities, and the Group has therefore adopted defined
contnbution accounting as pernitted by IAS 19 The premiums paid by the employer for the year were
€1,161,000 (approximately £785,000} The employer's contnbuhions are expected to increase by up to
15% in the foreseeable future to restore the funding level of the PGGM in respect of past service benefits
to its target level Non-current habiities in the amount of £2,682,000 (2006 £3,327,000) have been
recognised In respect of this scheme within other payables

The Group 1s party to gratuity fund and leng service award schemes in India, the liability for which 1s
calculated on an actuanal basis The hability at 30 Apnit 2007 was £854,000 (2006 £448,000) of which
£349,000 1s included within other payables within one year and £505,000 1s included within other
payables after more than one year

The Group 1s party to a |local defined benefit scheme in Germany the liability for which 1s calculated on an
actuarial basis The hability at 30 Apnl 2007 was £572,000 (2006 £534,000) and 1s included within other
payables after more than one year

22. Share capital

2007 2008
g

Authonsed

350,000,000 (2005 350,000,000) crdinary shares of £0 10 each 35,000,000 35,000,000

2007 2006

£

Aliotted, called up and fully paid

232,485,722 (2006 232,485,722) ordinary shares of £0 10 each 23,248,572 23,248,572

There have been no shares issued dunng the year

Share options

The following options are outstanding under the Company’s unapproved and approved share option
schemes Exercise of these options 1s subject to employees meeting individual performance crteria and
also to the performance of the Group measured over three years from the date of grant Options include
directors’ share options Executive options are granted at market value at the date of grant

Subscription  End of personal Period Period

price per performance exercisable  exercisable
Date of grant Number share {pence) penod from to
11-Jul-00 100,000* 1100 10-Jul-01 11-Jul-03  10-Jul-10
13-Apr-01 50,000* 1890 12-Apr-02 13-Apr-04  12-Apr-11
11-Oct-01 225,000* 2175 10-Oct-02 11-Oct-04  10-Oct-11
30-Sep-02 500,000* 1513 29-Sep-03 30-Sep-05 29-Sep-12
25-Mar-04 1,460,000 3380 24-Mar-05 25-Mar-07  24-Mar-14
09-Feb-05 3,165,787 3717 08-Feb-06 09-Feb-08 08-Feb-15
30-Jun-05 250,000 423 8 29-Jun-06 30-Jun-08 29-Jun-15
28-Jul-05 687,500 4180 27-Jul-06 28-Juk-08  27-Jul-15
05-Sep-06 8,103,611 503 04-Sep-07 05-Sep-09 05-Sep-16
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The following Torex share options were rolled over into options over ISOFT Group shares at the time of
the merger and are still outstanding

Subscription  End of personal Period Period
price per performance exercisable exercisable
Date of grant Number share (pence) period from to
09-Feb-00 37,461* 295 67 23-Dec-03 09-Feb-03 08-Feb-10
15-Mar-01 131,798* 374 46 23-Dec-03 15-Mar-04 14-Mar-11
27-Feb-02 102,608* 418 27 23-Dec-03 27-Feb-05 26-Feb-12

* The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under IFRS 2 not to apply the requirements of that IFRS to
options granted pnor to November 2002

In addition to the options above, 4,603,131 options were cutstanding in respect of the Company’s
savings related share option scheme, 338,607 have an exercise price of 266 14 pence (first exercisable
in 2007}, 87,541 have an exercise price of 348 5 pence (first exercisable in 2008) and 4,176,983 have an
exercise price of 44 1 pence (first exercisable in 2009} These options are granted at a 20% discount to
market value at the date of grant

Furthermcere, awards of 765,039 shares were made under the Performance Share plan (PSP) 2005 con
28 July 2005 of which 732,151 were outstanding at 30 Apnl 2007 As at 30 Apnl 2007, 884,665 shares
were held in trust to satisfy the awards under this plan

Further details of share options in respect of directors are included in the Remuneraton Report on
page 36
Warrants

During the year the Group 1ssued warrants in respect of 8,595,362 shares The holders have the nght to
subscribe for new 1ISOFT shares at a price of 10 pence per share and are exercisable at any ime prior to
17 October 2009

23. Reserves and reconciliation of changes in equity for the year ended 30 Aprnil 2007

23a) Movement on Group reserves:

Share Merger

premium  and other Own Retained
account reserves shares earnings
£°000

At 1 May 2005 43,082 361,332 — (23,412
Loss for the year — — — (382,182)
Dividends — — — {6,030)
Elgible transfer of impawment charge to merger reserve — (233,175) — 233,175
Prermium on shares i1ssued net of Issue costs 10,461 - —_ —
Share based payment charge for the penod — 2,585 — —
Minonty interest movement — — — (139)
Shares acquired in the penod — — {3,758) —
Other recognised gains and losses — — — (360)
At 30 Apnl 2006 53,543 130,742 (3,758} (178,948)
Loss for the year — — — (8,820)
Share option charge for the year — 2,800 — —
Elgible transfer to retained earnings — (4,269) — 4,268
Minonty interest movement — — — (258)
Other recognised gamns and losses — — — (46)
At 30 April 2007 53,543 128,273 (3,758) (183,803}

Merger and other reserves include merger reserves of £124 million (2006 £124 milion)

Dunng 2006 the Group acquired 884,655 shares at a cost of £3,758,000 These shares were acquired
through the Group Employee benefit trust, to satisfy grants made i the current year under the
Performance Share Plan (PSP} 2005 and under the Directors’ deferred share plan
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23b) Consolidated reconciliation of changes in equity for the year ended 30 April 2007

2007 2006
£'000

Total recognised income and expense

for the year (8,866) (382,542)
Opening equity . 25,438 404,255
Dividends paid — {6,030}
Minonty interest movement (868) —
Issue of ordinary shares, net of costs — 10,928
Share based payment charge 2,800 2,584
Investment in own shares — (3,758)
Closing equity 18,504 25,438

24. Reconciliation of loss from operations to net cash from operating activities

2007 2006
£°000
Loss from operations {14,309) (338,101)
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 771 353,715
Release of negative goodwill (591) —
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6,686 4,768
Share-based payment charge 2,800 2,585
Difference between pension charge and cash contrbutions 220 258
Decrease in provisions (241) (833)
Profit on disposal of subsidiary (269) —
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital (4,933) 22,392
Decrease In inventories 595 492
Decrease in recevables 8,967 12,547
Decrease In payables (43,927) (33,485)
Cash(used in)/generated from operations {39,298) 1,946

25. Operating lease commitments

At 30 Apnl 2007, the Group had outstanding commitments for future lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases expinng as follows

2007 2006
Vehicles, plant Vehicles, plant
and and
Property equipment Property equipment
£'000
Within one year 4,318 927 4,375 1,761
Within two to five years 9,556 857 11,424 511
After five years 9,832 159 10,921 —
23,706 1,943 26,720 2,272

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group under property and equipment
leases These leases are negotiated for terms of up to 25 years on property with break clauses typically
every 5 years with rentals fixed for similar periods

26. Share-based payments

Equity-settled share option and deferred share schemes

The Company has a number of share option and SAYE schemes for all employees of the Group,
together with a performance share scheme for certain senior employees and a deferred share bonus
scheme for Directors Detalls of the operation of these schemes are included in note 22 and the
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Drrectors’ remuneration report Detatls of the executive and SAYE options outstanding during the year
are as follows

2007 2006

Weighted Weighted

Number of average Number of average

share exercise share exercise
options price options price

(£) {£)

Outstanding at beginning of period 9,286,085 343 11,747,388 283
Granted dunng the period 12,904,138 048 1,652,256 404
Forfeited dunng the period (2,773,337) (283) (415,338) 310
Exercised in the penod —_ — (3,698,211} 182
Exercisable at the end of the penod 19,416,896 156 9,286,095 343

There were no exercises of share options exercised during the period The options outstanding at
30 Apnl 2007 had weighted average remaining contractual life of 8 46 years Details of options and
shares granted in the year ended 30 April 2007 are included in note 22 The aggregate of the estmated
fair values of the options granted was £2,486,000 (2006 £1,870,070)

The inputs into the Black-Scholes model for the applicable options granted in the year are as follows

2007 2006
Weighted average share price (£) 05t 371
Weighted average exercise price {£) 048 354
Expected volatiity 048 052
Expected hfe (years) 300 300
Risk-free rate (%) 481 460
Dividend yield (%) 098 060
Fatr value (£} 019 136

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the histoncal volatiity of the Group’s share price over
the previous seven years The expected Ife used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restnctions and behavioural
considerations

The Group has also granted deferred bonus shares to directors The movement on these entitlements
was as follows

Weighted
Number average
of shares  exercise price
(£)
At 1 May 2005 818,756 330
Granted in the year 119,616 427
Lapsed in the year (39,628) (4 08)
At 30 Apnl 2006 898,744 339
Lapsed in the year (212,731) (334)
Exercised in the year (240,153) (331)
At 30 Apnl 2007 445,860 3 46

Due to the nature of the scheme the farr value equates to the exercise price

The Group granted 765,039 shares under the Performance Share Plan (PSP) 2005 on 28 July 2005 of
which 732,151 are still outstanding These shares were valued using a binemial model and have an
estimated fair value of £2 67 per share

The Group recognised total expenses of £2,800,000 (2006 £2,585,000) related to equity-settled share-
based payment transactions
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27. Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated
on consalidation and are not disclosed in this note

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the Group, I1s set out
below in aggregate for each of the categones specified in IAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” Further
information about the remuneration of individual directors 1s provided in the audited part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 32 to 38

2007 2006
T goo0
Short-term employee benefits 2,803 2,402
Post-employment benehis —_ 1
Termination benefits 802 —
Share-based payment 559 1,097
4,164 3,500

28. Capital commitments
At the year end capital commitments totalled £3,000 (2006 £588,000)

29. Contingent habilities

The Group has contracted to supply health information systems to the Health Services Executive (HSE)
in Ireland over the penod to 2015, with a contract value of €566 miflion To date, implementation of these
systems 1s in accordance with the operational plans Within the contract, however, ISOFT contracted to
provide a letter of credit if the net assets shown in the consolidated accounts of ISOFT Group plc are less
than €75 milion and to mamntam professional ndemnity msurance cover at levels not currently available
to the Company in the insurance markets Following the Group’s change in accounting pohcy for the
year ended 30 Apnl 2006 and the significant goodwill impairment charge, 1its consolidated net assets
under the new accounting policies fell below this amount Additionally, 1SOFT contracted to make
available certain software functionality which will not be available in the imescales contracted 1SOFT
and the customer are engaged in discussions to resclve these matters, which the directors are hopeful
will lead to a satisfactory outcome However, were agreement not to be reached, the remedies for such
breaches in contract could include termination of the contract and damages The remainder of the HSE
programme s proceeding satisfactorily It 1s not possible for the Board to conclude what implications, if
any, may anse from the conclusion of the engeing discussions into these matters

Litigation

As at the date of this document, ISOFT 1s aware of the following hitigation proceedings involving the
ISOFT Group

(@) the proceedings in the Supreme Court of Queensland, Brisbane Registry (Proceedings No
BS59769/06), between the Australian Church in Australia Property Trust in Australia (Q) {as
plaintiff) and 1SOFT Austraba Pty Ltd (as defendant) The plaintff alleges that 1SOFT Australia
Pty Lid breached a software supply agreement dated 17 September 2001 and made
misleading and deceptive representations, such that the plamtiff has suffered loss and damage
In the amount of approximately A$9,115,000, and

{b) the proceedings under case number CIV-2006-404-004502 filed in the High Court at Auckland,
New Zealand, between |-Health Lmited (as plaintiffy and 1SOFT NZ Limited and ISOFT Australia
Pty Limited (as first and second respondents respectively) The proceedings arose out of a
business and asset sale agreement entered into by ISOFT NZ Limited (as purchaser), ISOFT
Australia Pty Limited (as the purchaser’s guarantor) and J-Healih Limited {as vaendor), whereby
1ISOFT NZ Limited acquired the business and assets of I-Health Limited {including I-Health
Limited’s software known as “healthviews”) Payment for the business included payments
based on revenue earned by ISOFT NZ Limited from the healthviews software over a five-year
penod following settlement of the sale |-Health Limited claims that \[SOFT NZ Limited has
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breached its oblgations under the business and asset sale agreement 1o, inter alia, promote
and develop the healthviews software thus negatively impacting on the earn-out payments due
to |-Health Limited The maximum payable under the earn-out agreement 1s A$24 9 million

30 Subsequent events
CSC arrangements

On 18 June 2007 1SOFT reached agreement with CSC which provide improved efficiency of the overall
NPIT delivery process whilst retaiming ownership of the development expertise and LORENZO
intellectual property and increasing the certainty as to payment recewvable from NPAIT This involves
(1) integrating the CSC and I1SOFT teams involved in the development of the software for NPAIT under
CSC'’s leadership, (11} 1SOFT retaining the intellectual property nghts to LORENZO including nghts to
exploit it outside of the CSC clusters, (n) CSC taking responsibility for the 1 Patient Manager and
1 IE product code streams for the NPAIT, and (v} some two thirds of the licence payments due to ISOFT
under the arrangement being calendar-based with the balance being based on agreed milestones

Recommended Offer for the Company

Following the announcement by 1ISOFT on 6 July 2007 that the resolutions proposed in connection with
the IBA offer, for the entire 1ssued and to be issued share capital of ISOFT via a scheme of arrangement,
at both the Court meeting and exiraordinary general meeting of ISOFT shareholders had been passed
by the requisite majonty, on 19 July 2007 the 1ISOFT Board received an unsclicited proposal from
CompuGROUP UK Limited (a newly incorporated wholly-owned subsidiary of CompuGROUP Holding
AG, which has been formed for the purposes of effecting an offer for 1ISOFT via a scheme of
arrangement), compnsing an all cash offer of 66p per share for the entire 1Issued and to be 1ssued share
capital of ISOFT The only conditions to the proposal are approval by ISOFT’s shareholders and court
approval for the scheme of arrangement pursuant to which CampuGROUP will acquire (SOFT

This proposal has been recommended by the ISOFT board and was formally announced as an offer to
the market on 20 July 2007

CompuGROUP will finance the acquisiion and repayment of ISOFT's existing bank facilities, which are
repayable upon a change of control of ISOFT, and the ongoing working capital requirements of the
Entarged Group, through a combination of CompuGROUP Holding's existing cash resources and
committed new debt faciliies of £285 million arranged and underwnitten by SEB AG

CompuGROUP Holding has reached agreement with CSC, if the scheme of arrangement becomes
effective, whereby CSC wil take full control of certain of its obhgations 1n respect of the NPAIT
UK Corporation Tax

As a result of the budget announced by the Chancellor of the Exchequer on 21 March 2007, the rate of
corporation tax for large companies in the United Kingdom will reduce from 30% to 28% from Apnl 2608
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ISOFT GROUP PLC

We have audited the individual company financial statements of ISOFT Group plc for the year ended
30 Apnl 2007, which comprise the balance sheet and the related notes 1 to 14 These indindual
company financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

The corporate governance statement and the directors’ remuneration report are included in the Group
annual report of ISOFT Group plc for the year ended 30 April 2007 We have reported separately on the
group financial statements of ISOFT Group plc for the year ended 30 Apnl 2007 and on the information In
the directors’ remuneration report that 1s descrnbed as having been audited That opinion in that reportis
qualified on the grounds of imitations on audit scope and 13 modified by the inclusion of an emphasis of
matter regarding going concemn

Thus report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985 Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibiliies for preparing the annual report and the individual company financial
staterments 1n accordance with applhcable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Prachce) are set out in the statement of directors’
responsibilities

Our responsibility i1s to audit the individual company financial statements in accordance with relevant
United Kingdom legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland)

We report to you cur opinion as to whether the individual company financial statements give a true and
farr view and whether the individual company financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our opimion the directors’
report 15 consistent with the individual company financial statements The information given in the
Directors’ Report includes that specific information presented in the Financial and Operating Review,
Report of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Corporate Social Responsibility Statement and Key
Performance Indicators that are cross-referred from the Business Review secthion of the Directors’
Report

In addtion we report to you if, In our apinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we
have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified
by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read the other information contained in the annual report as descrbed in the contents section and
consider whether it1s consistent with the audited individual company financial statements We consider
the 1mplications for our report f we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matenal
Inconsistencies with the individual company finanoial statements Our responsibilities do not extend to
any further information outside the annual report

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued
by the Auditing Practices Board, except the scope of our work was hmited as explained below An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
individual company financial statements It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
Judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the individual company financial statements, and
of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the company’s circumstances, consistenily
appled and adequately disclosed

We planned our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the individual
company financial statements are free frorm matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irregulanty or error
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However, the evidence available to us was imited because of the following significant matters

Investigations into accounting irregularities in relation to subsidiaries

As detailed in note 1 to the Group financial statements, the Board imtiated a formal investigation into
accounting irregulanties on 20 July 2006, which has given nse to investigations by the Financial Services
Authonty (“FSA”) and the Accountancy Investigaton and Discipline Board (“AIDB”) The Directors
recognise that the AIDB investigation concermns individuals and ancther party rather than the Company

The FSA has confirmed to the Company that their investigations have not caused them to look at any
other matters outside those particular contracts drawn to therr attention by the Company These matters
could /mpact on reported revenues and profits and, in the balance sheet, deferred income, accrued
iIncome and consequent potential labities As detalled in note 1 to the Group financial staterments, the
Directars consider that the restatement of revenues in the financial statements for the year ended
30 Apnl 2006 corrected, where appropnate, the impact of these particular matters However, the
Directors recognise that the FSA investigation s not yet finally concluded

Given the circumstances, the ability of the directors to conclude on the completeness or accuracy of
transactions recorded in the year ended 30 Aprl 2007 and pnior penods 1s hmited Consequently, the
evidence avallable to us was imited, and there were no other satisfactory audit procedures that we could
adopt to confirm that no further adjustments to the indwidual company financial statements as presented
are required

In forming our opinion we alsc evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information In the
individual company financial statements

Qualified opinion arising from limitation in audit scope

Except for any adjustments to the individual company financial statements that might have been found
to be necessary had we been able to obtain suffictent ewdence concerming the matter noted above, In
our opInion

* the individual company financial statements give a true and far view, in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the company’s affars as at
30 April 2007,

* the indwvidual company financial staterments have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985, and

* the information given in the directors’ report 1s consistent with the individual company financial
statements

In respect of the hmitations on our wark referred to above we have not obtained all the information and
explanations that we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit

Emphasis of matter—going concern

Without qualifying our opinion in this regard, we draw attention to the disclosures made in note 1 to the
Group financial statements concerning the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern These
include the following uncertanties

» the successful completion of the proposed acquisition of the Group by CompuGROUP UK
Limited, which 15 subject to shareholder and court approval,

= the ongoing willingness and ability of CompuGROUP UK Limited to provide adequate financing
arrangements if the transaction legally completes,

« the renewal of existing banking faciities, which are presently scheduled to expire on
14 November 2007, should the proposed acquisition by CompuGROUP UK Limited not take
place, and

= satsfactory trading in line with the Directors’ expectations The nature of the Group’s business 1s
such that there can be considerable unpredictable vanation and uncertainty regarding the timing
and margin on sales, the quantum and timing of cash flows from new business activity and the
achievement of contractual milestones and contractual requirements
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Hawving taken into account these matenal uncertainties, the directors constder itis appropnate to prepare
the financial statements on the going concem basis. In the circumstances of the Group, these
condiions, along with the other matters included in note 1, indicate the existence of a matenal
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a gong concem

The financial statements do not includa the adjustments that would result if the Company were unable to
continue as a going concern, which would include wnting down the canrying value of assets, including
goodwill, to their recoverable amount and praviding for any further labiifies that might anse as it 1s not
practicable to determine or quantify them.

D/\ag 3:53\ ol T_O—L&./K N
Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Audritors
Manchester, Unted Kingdom
31 July 2007




Balance sheet as at 30 April 2007

Note 2007 2006
£'000
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets 3 617 2,749
Investments 4 87,218 87,218

87,835 89,967

Current assets
Debtors 5 27,446 64,827
Cash at bank and n hand 504 12

27,950 64,839

Creditors amounts falling due within one year 6 (74,626) (66,769)
Net current habiities (46,676) {(1,930)
Total assets less current habiliies 41,159 68,037
Credrtors amounts faling due after one year 7 —  (26,640)
Provisions for llabilities and charges 8 (2,117) —
Net assets 39,042 61,397
Capital and reserves

Called-up share capital 9 23,249 23,249
Share premium account 10 53,543 53,543
investment in own shares 10 (3,758) (3,758)
Share-based payment reserve 10 3,603 4,800
Merger reserve 10 88,683 88,683
Profit and loss account 11 (126,278} (105,120)
Equity shareholders’ funds 39,042 61,397

The financial statements were approved by the Board of directors and authonsed for i1ssue on
31 July 2007 They were signed on its behalf by

RN

John Weston Gavin James
Charrman and Acting Chief Executive Officer Group Finance Director
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Significant accounting policies
i. Basis of accounting

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act
1985 They have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention and in accordance with applicable
United Kingdom accounting standards and law In prepanng these indwidual company financial
statements the imitations and circumstances set outin note 1 to Group financial statements, in particular
in relation to investigations into accounting irregulanties, were taken into account

The pnncipal accounting polictes are summansed below They have been applied consistently
throughout the year and the preceding year There have been no new financial reporting standards
impacting the Company n the current year

i. Foreign exchange

Transactions denominated in foreign currenctes are translated into sterling at the rates ruling at the dates
of transactions Monetary assets and hlabihttes denominated tn foreign currencies at the balance sheet
date are translated at the rates ruling at that date Translation differences are taken to the profit and loss
account

in. Tangble fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less any applicable discounts Depreciation i1s provided at rates
calculated to wnte down the cost of tangible assets over ther estimated usefu! life on a straight-line
basis The annual rates of depreciation on office equipment, fixtures and fithings are 12 5% to 20 0%

iv. Share-based payments

The Company has applied the requirements of FRS 20, “Share-based Payments” In accordance with
the transitional provisions, FRS 20 has been appled to all grants of equity instruments after 7 November
2002 that were unvested as of 1 May 2005

The Company issues equity-settled share-based payments {6 certain employees

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments 1s expensed on a straight-hne
basis over the vesting pericd, based on the Company’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest Fair
value 1s measured by use of a Black-Scholes model or binormial model, as most appropnate for the terms
of the Instrtument The expected hife used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations The
cost 1n relation to the deferred bonus scheme 1s charged in the year of performance

v. Fixed asset investments

Fixed asset investments are stated at cost less any provision for imparrment

vi  Leased assets

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line
basis over the penod of the lease

vil. Taxation

Corporation tax 1s provided on taxable profits at the current rate

Deferred tax 1s provided on timing differences that have ansen but not reversed by the balance sheet
date, where the ttming differences result in an obligation to pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax, in the
future Timing differences anse because of differences between the treatment of certain items for
accounting and taxation purposes

Deferred tax assets are recagnised to the extent that itis regarded as more likely than not that they will be
recovered
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Deferred tax 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penods when the timing
differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and law enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date Deferred tax assets and habihities are not discounted

vili. Pensions

The Company operates a defined contribution scheme The pension charge shown represents the total
contnbutions madse by the Company for the year

2. Loss for the year

2a) Company profit and loss account

As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the Company has elected not to present its own
profit and loss account for the year A loss of £23,618,000 (2006 loss of £379,545,000) i1s dealt with in the
accounts of the Company The loss in the prior year includes investment and loan impairments totalling
£383,353,000

The auditors’ remuneration for services to the Company was £50,000 (2006 £45,000)

2b) Staff costs

2007 2006
£'000
Employees costs including directors amounted to
Wages and salaries 13,134 12,714
Soctal secunty costs 1,113 1,257
Other pension costs 366 577
14,613 14,548

2¢) The average monthly number of employees, including executive directors, employed by the
Company during the year was

2007 2006
Number
Development 16 20
Sales and marketng LA 17
HR, legal and finance 48 55
Computer services 3 37
s 129
3 Tangible fixed assets
Fixtures,
fittings
& equipment
£'000
Cost
At 1 May 2006 3,035
Disposals (2,085)
At 30 Apnl 2007 950
Depreciation
At 1 May 2006 286
Charge for the year 384
Disposals (337)
At 30 Apnt 2007 333
Net book value
At 30 Apnl 2007 617
At 1 May 2006 2,749
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4. Fixed asset investments

Cost

At 1 May 2006 and 30 Apnl 2007

Provision for impairment

At 1 May 2006 and 30 Apnl 2007

Net book value

At 30 Apnl 2006 and 30 Apnl 2007

Principal trading Subsidiaries

1ISOFT plc

1ISOFT R&D Private Limited*

1ISOFT Australia Pty Limited*

1ISOFT NZ Limited*

tSOFT Holdings (Singapore)
Limited*

ISOFT Lid

Revive Health Limited*

Torex Health Limited*

Torex Services Limited*

Torex Medical Systems Limited*

ISOFT Netherlands Bv*

ISOFT Deutschland GmbH*

ISOFT Business Solutions
(Ireland) Limited*

1ISOFT Business Solutions (HK)
Limited*

1ISOFT Business Solutions UK
Limited*

Torex Radiology Systems
Limited*

Torex Protos Limited*

HAS Solutions Pty bimited*

Paramedical Pty Limted*

1ISOFT Sanidad SA*

* denotes shares not held directly by 1SOFT Group plc

Shares in
subsidiary
undertakings
£'000
449,680
{362,462)
87,218
Class of Proportion Country of
share held of shares Nature of business incorporation
Qrdinary 100%  Computer services England & Wales
Ordinary 100%  Software development India
Ordinary 100%  Computer services Austraha
Ordinary 100%  Computer services New Zealand
Ordinary 100% Computer services Singapore
Ordinary 100%  Computer services Ireland
Ordinary 100%  Computer services England & Wales
Ordinary 100%  Computer services England & Wales
Ordinary 100%  Computer services England & Wales
Ordinary 100%  Computer services England & Wales
Ordinary 100%  Computer services Netherands
Ordinary 100%  Computer services Germany
Ordinary 100%  Computer services Ireland
Ordinary 100% Computer services Hong Kang
Ordinary 100%  Computer services England & Wales
Ordinary 100%  Computer services England & Wales
Ordinary 100%  Computer services England & Wales
Ordinary 100%  Computer services Australia
Ordinary 100% Computer services Australia
Ordinary 100%  Computer services Spain

All companies have a financial year end of 30 Apnl, with the exception of ISOFT R&D Private Limited,
which has a financial year end of 31 March

5. Debtors

Amounts owed by Group undertakings

QOther debtors

Prepayments and accrued income

Deferred tax
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2007 2006
£°000
26,656 63,093

121 —
360 767
309 967
27,446 64,827




Deferred tax comprises

Accelerated capital allowance
Short-term tming differences

Deferred taxation asset

The movement on deferred tax comprises

As at 1 May 2006
Credited n the year

As at 30 Apnl 2007

6. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Bank and other borrowings

Trade creditors

Amounts owed to Group undertakings
Corporation tax

Accruals and other creditors

Bank loans and overdrafts mature as follows

Amounts falling due within 1-2 year
Amounts falling due within 2-5 years

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounts falling due withun 1 year

7. Creditors- amounts falling due after more than one year

2007 2006
£'000
(268) 121
(41) (1,088)
(309) (967

2007

£°000

(967)

658

(309)

2007 2008
£'000

42,566 47,262

1,126 864

21,629 14,845

— 24

9,305 3,774

74,626 66,769

2007 2006
£'000

— 11,760

— 14,880

— 26,640

42,566 47,262

42,566 73,902

Creditors falling due after more than one year in the pnor year compnsed bank loans In August 2006 the
Company entered into new facility arrangements, detalls of which are included in note 19 of the
Consolidated Group Accounts As a result of the revised arrangements all amounts are now payable

within 1 year

8. Pravisions for liabilties and charges

Provisions for habilities and charges compnse provision against onerous lease liabihties as follows

As at 1 May 2006
Charge for the year
Transfer from accruals
Utilised 1n the year

As at 30 Apnl 2007
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2007
£'000
2,251
466

(600)
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9 Called-up share capntal

2007 2006
£
Authonsed
350,000,000 (2005 350,000,000) ordinary shares of £0 10 each 35,000,000 35,000,000
2007 2006
£
Allotted, called-up and fully paid 232,485,722 (2006 232,485,722)
ordinary shares of £0 10 each 23,248,572 23,248,572

There were no shares 1ssued during the year

Share options

The following cptions are outstanding under unapproved and approved share option schemes Exercise
of these options 15 subject to employees meeting individua! performance critena and also to the
performance of the Group measured over three years from the date of grant Options include directors’
share options Executive options are granted at market value at the date of grant

Subscription  End of personal Period Period

price per performance exercisable  exercisable
Date of grant Number share (pence} period from to
11-Jul-00 100,000* 1100 10-Jul-01 11-Jul-03 10-Jul-10
11-Oct-01 150,000* 2175 10-Oct-02 11-Oct-04  10-Oct-11
30-Sep-02 210,000+ 1513 29-Sep-03  30-Sep-05 29-Sep-12
25-Mar-04 765,000 3380 24-Mar-05 25-Mar-07  24-Mar-14
09-Feb-05 1,861,929 3717 08-Feb-06 09-Feb-08 08-Feb-15
30-Jun-05 250,000 4238 29-Jun-06 30-Jun-08  29-Jun-15
28-Jul-05 173,000 4180 27-Jul-06 28-Jul-08  27-Jui-15
05-Sep-06 3,052,611 503 04-Sep-09 05-Sep-06 04-Sep-16

The following Torex share options were rclled over into options over ISOFT Group shares at the tme of
the merger and are still outstanding in respect of employees of ISOFT Group plc

Subscription  End of personal Period Period
price per performance exercisable  exercisable
Date of grant Number share (pence) period from to
27-Feb-02 21,229* 418 27 23-Dec-03 27-Feb-05 26-Feb-12

*  The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under FRS 20 not to apply the requirements of the FRS to
options granted pnior to ¥ November 2002

In addition to the options above, 192,905 options were outstanding In respect of the savings-related
share option scheme, 8,142 have an exercise price of 266 14 pence (first exercisable in 2007), 6,360
have an exercise price of 348 5 pence (first exercisable in 2008) and 178,403 have an exercise prnice of
44 1 pence (first exercisable in 2009) These options are granted at a 20% discount to market value at the
date of grant

Furthermore awards of 731,008 shares were made under the Performance Share plan (PSP} 2005 on
28 July 2005 An equivalert number of shares were held in trust to satisfy the awards under this plan
Equity-settled share option and deferred share schemes

The Company has a number of share option and SAYE schemes for all employees of the Group,
together with a performance share scheme for certain senior employees and a deferred share bonus
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scheme for Directors Details of the executive and SAYE options outstanding during the year are as
follows

30 April 2007 30 Apni 2006

Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
share exercise share exercise

options price options price

£ £

QOutstanding at beginning of period 4,385,967 350 6,416,686 279

Granted dunng the penod 3,644,152 050 506,204 417
Forfeited durng the period (1,253,445) (2 68) {54,903) (157)
Exercised in the penod — — (2,482,020 (184)

Exercisable at the end of the penod 6,776,674 204 4,385,967 350

There were no options exercised in the peniod The options outstanding at 30 Apnl 2007 had weighted
average remaining confractual Iife of 8 12 years The aggregate of the estimated fair values of the
options granted in the year was £652,000 {2006 £601,477)

The inputs into the Black-Scholes model for the above options are as follows

30 April 2007 30 April 2006

Weighted average share price (£) 051 372
Weighted average exercise price (£) 050 369
Expected volatihity 047 051
Expected Iife (years) 300 300
Risk-free rate (%) _ 476 4 62
Dividend yield (%) 097 0 60
Fair value (£) 018 135

Expected volatlity was determined by calcutating the historical volatility of the Group’s share price over
the previous seven years The expected Iife used 1n the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferahility, exercise restrictions, and behavioural
considerations

The Group has also granted deferred bonus shares to directors The movement on these entitiements
was as follows

Number Weighted average

of shares exercise price
£

At 1 May 2005 818,756 330
Granted in the year 119,616 427
Lapsed in the year (39,628) (4 08)
At 30 Apnl 2008 898,744

Lapsed n the year (212,731) {3 34)
Exercised in the year {240,153) {3 31)
At 30 Apnl 2007 445,860 346

Due to the nature of the scheme the fair value equates to the exercise pnice

The Group granted 765,039 shares under the Performance Share Plan (PSP) 2005 on 28 July 2005 of
which 732,151 were outstanding at 30 April 2007 These shares were valued using a binomial model and
have an estimated fair value of £2 67 per share

The Company recognised total expenses of £1,263,000 (2006 £1,727,000) related to equity-settled
share-based payment transactions
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Warrants

Dunng the year the Group 1ssued warrants in respect of 8,595,362 shares The holders have the nght to
subscribe for new ISOFT shares at a price of 10 pence per share and are exercisable at any time pnor to
17 October 2009

10. Reserves

Share
Share based Investment
premium payment in own Merger
account reserve shares reserve
£'000
At 1 May 2006 53,543 4,800 (3,758) 88,683
Ehgible transfer from share based payment reserve —  (2,460) — —
Share option charge — 1,263 — —
At 30 Apnl 2007 53,543 3,603 (3,758) B8B,683
11. Profit and loss account
£'000
At 1 May 2006 (105,120)
Transfer from share based payment reserve 2,460
Loss for the financial year (23,618)
As at 30 Apnl 2007 (126,278)
12. Reconciliation of movement in shareholders’ funds for the year ended 30 April 2007
2007 2006
£'000
Loss for the financial year (23,618) (379,545)
Dividends — (6,030)
(23,618) (385,575)

Shares ssued net of costs — 10,932
Share option reserve 1,263 1,727
Investment in own shares — (3,758)
Net decrease in shareholders’ funds (22,355) (376,674}
Opening shareholders’ funds 61,397 438,071
Closing shareholders’ funds 39,042 61,397

13. Operating lease commitments

At 30 April 2007 the Company has lease arrangements n respect of properties, vehicles, plant and
equipment for annual rentals are as follows

2007 2008
Vehicles, Vehicles,
plant and plant and

Property equipment Property equipment
£°000

Leases expinng

Within one year — — — —
Within two to five years — 35 — 53
After five years

F-N
i=y
E-9
[
a4}
~

387 53

lal

444

14. Commitments and contingencies

ISOFT Group Plc has expressed #s intention to provide financial support to certain subsidiary
undertakings for periods up to 12 months It 1s net practicable to quantify the impact, if any, should such
financial support be required
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

UK UK
IFRS IFRS IFRS GAAP  GAAP
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
£m
Results
Revenue 1752 2017 1861 948 513
Operating profit/(loss)
Normalised operating profit/(loss)* 66 133 72 (150) (148
Normalsed (loss)/profit before tax* (11) 77 09 (177) (167)
(Loss)/profit from operations {14 3) {(3381) 85 (342) (192)
Key statistics
{Loss)/earnings per share {pence) (38) (1851) 26 (171) (126)
Underlying (loss)/earnings per share (pence) 289 (133) 26 81) (120)
Net funds/(debt) (679) (418) (16) (647) (396)
Cash {used in)/generated by operations {39 3) 19 92 4 359 235
Average number of employees 3,107 3,224 2546 1338 580

u

Stated before goodwill amortisation, goodwill imparment and exceptional costs

94




COMPANY INFORMATION

Executive directors
John Weston

Chairman and acting Chief Executive Officer

Executive directors
Bill Henry
Chief Operating Officer

Gavin James
Group Finance Director

Financial advisers & stockbrokers
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Ltd
25 Cabot Square

Canary Whart

London E14 4QA

Gleacher Shacklock LLP
Cleveland House,

33 King Strest,

London SW1Y 6RJ

Bridgewell Ltd

0Old Change House

128 Queen Victona Street
London EC4V 4B.)

Independent Auditor
Delcitte & Touche LLP
2 Hardman Street
Manchester

Me0 2AT

Solicitors
Linklaters

One Silk Street
London EC2Y 8HQ

Ashurst
Broadwalk House
5 Appold Street
London EC2A 2HA

Remuneration advisers
Kepler Associates Limited
60 Trafalgar Square
London WC2N 5DS

95

Non-executive directors
Geoft White
Non-executive Deputy Chairman

Ken Lever
Senior Independent Director

Eurtyl ap Gwilym
Rene Kern
David Thorpe

Company Secretary
Teifion Hill

Bankers

Lloyds TSB Bank ple
25 Gresham Sireet
London EC2V 7HN

Royal Bank of Scottand plc
135 Bishopsgate
London EC2M 3UR

Barclays Bank plc

5 The North Colonnade
Canary Wharf

London E14 4BB

HSBC Bank plc
8 Canada Square
London E14 5HQ

Public relations
Financial Dynamics
Holborn Gate

26 Southampton Buildings
London WC2A 1TB

Registrars

Lloyds TSB Registrars
The Causeway
Worthing

West Sussex BN99 6DA

Registered & head office
iSOFT Group plc
Daventry Road

Banbury

Oxfordshire OX16 3JT

Registered number
3716736

Website
www Iscftplc com




